Public Document Pack

monmouthshire
P sir fynwy
Neuadd y Sir
Y Rhadyr
Brynbuga
NP15 1GA

Dydd Gwener, 18 Medi 2020

Hysbysiad o gyfarfod

Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau Cryf

Dydd Llun, 28ain Medi, 2020 at 2.00 pm,
Remote Microsoft Teams Meeting

Nodwch y cynhelir rhag-gyfarfod 30 munud cyn dechrau’r cyfarfod ar gyfer
aelodau’r pwyllgor

AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb

2. Datganiadau o Fuddiant
3. Fforwm Agored i'r Cyhoedd.

| rannu eich adborth am adroddiad Darparu Canolfannau Ailgylchu Gwastraff y
Cartref yn y Dyfodol neu’r Wasanaeth Casgliadau Gardd:

e Anfonwch e-bost at registertospeak@monmouthshire.gov.uk
e abyddwch yn cael ymateb awtomatig gyda chyfarwyddiadau ar sut i
gyflwyno'r ffeiliau hynny i'r pwyllgor.
e Gallwch wedyn:
o lanlwytho ymateb ysgrifenedig (uchafswm o 500 gair), neu
o recordio clip fideo neu sain er mwyn rhannu eich barn
(uchafswm o 4 munud).

Os bydd cyflwyniadau'n fwy nag awr yn gyfan gwbl, caiff sylwadau eu rhannu
yn 6l thema (a heb eu chwarae’n llawn) ond bydd pob cyflwyniad ar gael i'r
pwyllgor.



mailto:registertospeak@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Y dyddiad cau ar gyfer cyflwyniadau cyhoeddus yw dydd Mercher 23ain Medi
am 5pm. Mae manylion llawn am y broses siarad cyhoeddus ar gael ar dudalen
4y pecyn agenda.

Craffu cyn penderfynu ar Ddarpariaeth Canolfannau Ailgylchu Gwastraff
y Cartref yn y Dyfodol (gan gynnwys Brynbuga).

Craffu cyn penderfynu ar y Gwasanaeth Gwastraff Gardd.

1-174

175 - 208

Paul Matthews

Prif Weithredwr




MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
CYNGOR SIR FYNWY

MAE CYFANSODDIAD Y PWYLLGOR FEL A GANLYN:

Y Cynghorwyr Sirol: P. Clarke
L.Dymock
D. Dovey
A. Easson
L. Guppy
R. Harris
D. Batrouni
V. Smith
J.Treharne
A. Webb

Gwybodaeth I'r Cyhoedd

Mynediad i gopiau papur o agendau ac adroddiadau

Gellir darparu copi o'r agenda hwn ac adroddiadau perthnasol i aelodau'r cyhoedd sy'n
mynychu cyfarfod drwy ofyn am gopi gan Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 01633 644219.
Dylid nodi fod yn rhaid i ni dderbyn 24 awr o hysbysiad cyn y cyfarfod er mwyn darparu
copi caled o'r agenda hwn i chi.

Edrych ar y cyfarfod ar-lein

Gellir gweld y cyfarfod ar-lein yn fyw neu'n dilyn y cyfarfod drwy fynd i
www.monmouthshire.gov.uk neu drwy ymweld &'n tudalen Youtube drwy chwilio am
MonmouthshireCC. Drwy fynd i mewn i'r ystafell gyfarfod, fel aelod o'r cyhoedd neu i
gymryd rhan yn y cyfarfod, rydych yn caniatau i gael eich ffilmio ac i ddefnydd posibl y
delweddau a'r recordiadau sain hynny gan y Cyngor.

Y Gymraeg Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawu cyfraniadau gan aelodau'r cyhoedd drwy gyfrwng
y Gymraeg neu'r Saesneg. Gofynnwn gyda dyledus barch i chi roi 5 diwrnod o hysbysiad
cyn y cyfarfod os dymunwech siarad yn Gymraeg fel y gallwn ddarparu ar gyfer eich
anghenion.



Canllawiau Fforwm Agored Cyhoeddus _
Pwyllgor Craffu Dethol Cymunedau Cryf 282" Medi 2020

Bydd y Pwyligor Craffu Dethol Cymunedau Cryf yn cael ei gynnal yn rhithwir ac yn cael ei
ffrydio'n fyw. Bydd dolen i ffrwd fyw'r cyfarfod ar gael ar dudalen gyfarfod gwefan Cyngor
Sir Fynwy yma:
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=139&MId=4614

Rydym wedi arwain y ffordd o ran dychwelyd i gyfarfodydd cwbl fyw ond mae cyfyngiadau'r
dechnoleg yn ei gwneud yn anodd cynnal fforwm agored cyhoeddus confensiynol.

Byddwn yn defnyddio'r un dull & phroses siarad cyhoeddus pwyllgor cynllunio'r
awdurdodau i alluogi'r rhai sy'n dymuno siarad ar y pwnc i fynegi eu barn i'r pwyllgor.
Gwahoddir preswylwyr i rannu eu barn ar y cynigion a gallant eu cyflwyno i'r pwyllgor yn
un o'r fiyrdd canlynol:

Fideo

Gallwch recordio fideo gyda sain nad yw'n fwy na 4 munud o hyd a fydd yn cael ei
chwarae i bawb sy'n cymryd rhan a’r cynghorwyr yn y pwyllgor wrth ystyried yr eitem
berthnasol.

Sain

Gallwch gofnodi ffeil sain yn unig nad yw'n fwy na 4 munud o hyd a fydd yn cael ei
chwarae i bawb sy'n cymryd rhan a’r cynghorwyr yn y pwyllgor wrth ystyried yr eitem
berthnasol.

Sylwadau Ysgrifenedig

Os nad ydych yn gallu defnyddio'r opsiynau uchod neu os nad ydych yn dymuno
defnyddio’r opsiynau uchod, gallwch gyflwyno sylwadau ysgrifenedig i'r cyngor a fydd yn
cael eu darllen i'r pwyllgor wrth ystyried yr eitem berthnasol. Rhaid i sylwadau
ysgrifenedig fod nid yn fwy na 500 gair.

Gallwch gyflwyno cynrychiolaeth i ni drwy ddefnyddio'r ddolen ganlynol:
https://iweb.itouchvision.com/portal/f?p=customer:category_link:::::CUID,LANG:A8FACFF3
E01C14610361E05361401A8COF7AE41B,EN&P _LANG=en. Bydd angen i chi gofrestru ar
gyfer cyfrif Fy Sir Fynwy er mwyn cyflwyno'r ymateb neu ddefnyddio eich manylion
mewngofnodi os ydych wedi cofrestru o'r blaen.

Y dyddiad cau ar gyfer cyflwyno sylwadau i'r Cyngor yw 5pm dydd Mercher 232" Medi
2020.

Mae'r ffurflen gyflwyno wedi'i sefydlu i adlewyrchu proses ein pwyllgorau cynllunio ac felly
gellir anwybyddu unrhyw gyfeiriad at geisiadau cynllunio. Gellir disodli unrhyw gyfeiriad
neu gais am wybodaeth i geisiadau cynllunio gyda'r geiriad 'Pwyllgor Craffu Dethol'.

Os bydd y cyflwyniad fideo yn fwy nag awr o hyd, bydd fideos yn cael eu rhannu fesul
thema (ni chaiff eu chwarae’n gyfan gwbl), er y bydd yr holl gynrychiolaethau a dderbynnir
ar gael i gynghorwyr cyn y pwyllgor.


https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk%2FieListDocuments.aspx%3FCId%3D139%26MId%3D4614&data=02%7C01%7CJohnPearson%40monmouthshire.gov.uk%7C5212b5d40b71407f50ec08d85bd410f5%7C2c4d0079c52c4bb3b3cad8eaf1b6b7d5%7C0%7C0%7C637360313653693038&sdata=gj6jnQJrEBYVKa4m7l%2Fy2s7aIyDgPv8%2BZpXv6bO8jy4%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fiweb.itouchvision.com%2Fportal%2Ff%3Fp%3Dcustomer%3Acategory_link%3A%3A%3A%3A%3ACUID%2CLANG%3AA8FACFF3E01C14610361E05361401A8C0F7AE41B%2CEN%26P_LANG%3Den&data=02%7C01%7CJohnPearson%40monmouthshire.gov.uk%7C5212b5d40b71407f50ec08d85bd410f5%7C2c4d0079c52c4bb3b3cad8eaf1b6b7d5%7C0%7C0%7C637360313653702979&sdata=lkLafXrM02NZq%2BPNL7UlnFJ2%2B6RzlrhByivlAEiWzEI%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fiweb.itouchvision.com%2Fportal%2Ff%3Fp%3Dcustomer%3Acategory_link%3A%3A%3A%3A%3ACUID%2CLANG%3AA8FACFF3E01C14610361E05361401A8C0F7AE41B%2CEN%26P_LANG%3Den&data=02%7C01%7CJohnPearson%40monmouthshire.gov.uk%7C5212b5d40b71407f50ec08d85bd410f5%7C2c4d0079c52c4bb3b3cad8eaf1b6b7d5%7C0%7C0%7C637360313653702979&sdata=lkLafXrM02NZq%2BPNL7UlnFJ2%2B6RzlrhByivlAEiWzEI%3D&reserved=0

Nodau a Gwerthoedd Cyngor Sir Fynwy

Cymunedau Cynaliadwy a Chryf

Canlyniadau y gweithiwn i'w cyflawni

Neb yn cael ei adael ar 6l

e Gall pobl hyn fyw bywyd da
o Pobl & mynediad i dai addas a fforddiadwy
o Pobl & mynediad a symudedd da

Pobl yn hyderus, galluog ac yn cymryd rhan

e Camddefnyddio alcohol a chyffuriau ddim yn effeithio ar fywydau pobl
e Teuluoedd yn cael eu cefnogi

e Pobl yn teimlo'n ddiogel

Ein sir yn ffynnu

e Busnes a menter
e Pobl & mynediad i ddysgu ymarferol a hyblyg
e Pobl yn diogelu ac yn cyfoethogi'r amgylchedd

Ein blaenoriaethau

e Ysgolion
e Diogelu pobl agored i niwed
e Cefnogi busnes a chreu swyddi

e Cynnal gwasanaethau sy’n hygyrch yn lleol

Ein gwerthoedd

Bod yn agored: anelwn fod yn agored ac onest i ddatblygu perthnasoedd ymddiriedus

e Tegwch: anelwn ddarparu dewis teg, cyfleoedd a phrofiadau a dod yn sefydliad a
adeiladwyd ar barch un at y llall.

e Hyblygrwydd: anelwn fod yn hyblyg yn ein syniadau a'n gweithredoedd i ddod yn sefydliad
effeithlon ac effeithiol.

e Gwaith tim: anelwn gydweithio i rannu ein llwyddiannau a'n methiannau drwy adeiladu ar
ein cryfderau a chefnogi ein gilydd i gyflawni ein nodau.



Canllawiau Pwyllgorau Craffu Sir Fynwy

R6l y Rhag-gyfarfod

1.
2.
3.

Pam mae'r Pwyllgor yn craffu ar hyn? (cefndir, materion allweddol)
Beth yw r6l y Pwyllgor a pha ganlyniad y mae Aelodau am eu cyflawni?
A oes digon o wybodaeth i gyflawni hyn? Os na, pwy allai ddarparu hyn?

- Cytuno ar y drefn holi a pha Aelodau fydd yn arwain
- Cytuno ar gwestiynau i swyddogion a chwestiynau i'r Aelod Cabinet

Cwestiynau ar gyfer y Cyfarfod

Craffu ar Berfformiad

1.

Sut mae perfformiad yn cymharu & blynyddoedd
blaenorol? A yw'n well neu’n waeth? Pam?

. Sut mae perfformiad yn cymharu a pherfformiad

cynghorau eraill/darparwyr gwasanaethau eraill?
A yw'n well neu’n waeth? Pam?

. Sut mae perfformiad yn cymharu a thargedau

penodol? A yw'n well neu’'n waeth? Pam?

. Sut y pennwyd targedau perfformiad? Ydyn

nhw'n ddigon heriol/realistig?

. Sut mae defnyddwyr gwasanaeth/y

cyhoedd/partneriaid yn gweld perfformiad y
gwasanaeth?

. A fu unrhyw archwiliadau ac arolygiadau

diweddar? Beth oedd y canfyddiadau?

. Sut mae'r gwasanaeth yn cyfrannu at gyflawni

amcanion corfforaethol?

. A yw'r gwelliant/dirywiad o ran perfformiad yn

gysylltiedig & chynnydd/gostyngiad mewn
adnoddau? Pa gapasiti sydd i wella?

1.

2.

Craffu ar Bolisiau

Ar bwy mae'r polisi'n effeithio ~ yn
uniongyrchol ac yn anuniongyrchol? Pwy fydd
yn elwa fwyaf/lleiaf?

Beth yw barn defnyddwyr
gwasanaeth/rhanddeiliaid? A ydynt yn credu y
bydd yn cyflawni'r canlyniad a ddymunir?

Beth yw barn y gymuned gyfan - safowynt y
'trethdalwr’?

Pa ddulliau a ddefnyddiwyd i ymgynghori &
rhanddeiliaid? A wnaeth y broses alluogi
pawb sydd & buddiant i ddweud eu dweud?

Pa arferion a dewisiadau a ystyriwyd wrth
ddatblygu/adolygu'r polisi hwn? Pa dystiolaeth
sydd ar gael i lywio'r hyn sy'n gweithio?

A yw'r polisi hwn yn cyd-fynd &'n hamcanion
corfforaethol, fel y'u diffinnir yn ein cynllun
corfforaethol?

A ystyriwyd yr holl oblygiadau datblygu
cynaliadwy, cydraddoldeb a diogelu
perthnasol? Er enghraifft, beth yw'’r
gweithdrefnau y mae angen eu rhoi ar waith i
amddiffyn plant?

Faint fydd y gost hon i'w gweithredu a pha
ffynhonnell ariannu sydd wedi'i nodi?

Sut bydd perfformiad y polisi'n cael ei fesur a'r
effaith yn cael ei gwerthuso.

Cwestiynau i'r Pwyllgor, i orffen ...

A oes gennym y wybodaeth angenrheidiol i ffurfio casgliadau/gwneud argymhellion i'r weithrediaeth, y
Cyngor, partneriaid eraill? Os nac oes, a oes angen i ni:

(i)
(ii)

Ymchwilio i'r mater yn fanylach?

Cael rhagor o wybodaeth oddi wrth dystion eraill — Aelod Gweithredol, arbenigwr annibynnol,

aelodau o'r gymuned leol, defnyddwyr gwasanaethau, cyrff rheoleiddio ...

(iii)

Cytuno ar gamau pellach i'w cymryd o fewn amserlen/adroddiad monitro yn y dyfodol...







This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

" monmouthshire
W\ sir fynwy
SUBJECT: FUTURE PROVISION OF HOUSEHOLD WASTE RECYCLING
CENTRES (HWRC) INCLUDING THE CLOSURE OF USK
MEETING: STRONG COMMUNITIES SELECT COMMITTEE
DATE: 28™ SEPTEMBER 2020

DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: ALL

1. PURPOSE:

1.1 This report sets out the measures that will be necessary to meet the future statutory
recycling targets and deliver waste services efficiently and effectively moving forward.
Many of the decisions agreed by Cabinet in December 2019, endorsed and supported
by Strong Communities Select Committee, were postponed due to the Covid 19
pandemic. This report provides an update on implementation and seeks scrutiny,
endorsement or amendment to the recommendations prior to reporting to Cabinet. ,
The report considers proposals for revised service delivery changes for the Household
Waste Recycling Centres (HWRCSs) including the full closure of Usk HWRC. These
changes are in light of increased budget challenges and the many positive behavioural
changes by the public in managing waste during Covid 19.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 In December 2019 Cabinet agreed to implement several service changes at the
HWRCs including:

e black bag opening, this is due to be implemented on all sites

e revised opening hours for the procurement of the HWRC contract that would
be decided in conjunction with Chief Officer and Cabinet Member(given the
new data that is now available since Covid 19 this information is presented to
Strong Communities Select Committee for further consideration)

e full closure of Usk HWRC. (Usk is currently closed due to Covid 19)

2.2 The recommendations to rationalise the service provision of household waste recycling
centres are:

A) Continuation of the booking system at all sites, initially implemented to ensure
social distancing

B) The full closure of Usk HWRC

C) Introduce revised opening hours of 08:00 to 16:00

D) Additional day closure at Five Lanes and Llanfoist

E) Commence procurement of the HWRC contract based on the revised service
model above.

Page 1



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

KEY ISSUES:
Overview

Monmouthshire’s recycling rate peaked in 2016 at 67% and there has been a slow but
steady decline in annual performance since that point. The UK has seen a plateauing
of recycling performance and many Councils have seen reductions in recycling
tonnages. The all Wales household recycling rate decreased from 61% in 2017/18 to
60.7% in 2018/19 but there has been substantial investments and interventions across
Wales and most local authorities are expected to meet the 2019/20 64% target.

Monmouthshire was forecast to miss the recycling targets in 2019/20. As such, reports
highlighting potential service changes including rationalisation of HWRC provision
were taken through Strong Communities and Cabinet. The decision to close the Usk
facility taken in December 2019 is in abeyance to allow further consultation on the
wider HWRC provision and additional compositional analysis of waste streams.

Monmouthshire achieved the recycling target for 2019/20. This turnaround was due to
a strong campaign of recycling messages from December to March and also the
unforeseen closure of HWRCs due to Covid 19 on March 23" 2020. The closures and
sudden reductions in waste entering the HWRC’s ensured targets were met. It is
difficult to predict performance in 2020/21 but the first quarter saw the highest recycling
rate ever in MCC of 74% with record numbers of residents using kerbside recycling
collections and with HWRCs closed.

Fines for failing to meet the recycling targets remain a concern. The implementation of
measures already agreed along with the proposals within this report, will be key to
ensuring MCC continue to meet and exceed the recycling targets. These targets are
fully aligned to the Council’s Climate Change Emergency and Circular Economy policy
commitments.

Monmouthshire tries to ensure that the focus on waste management is reducing waste
production wherever possible. Promotions and campaigns to reduce food waste, single
use plastics, and using returnable milk bottles impact negatively on recycling tonnages
but remain the right thing to do for the waste hierarchy and the environment.

After waste reduction, kerbside collections of a wide range of materials is the most
environmentally friendly way to manage household recycling and waste.
Monmouthshire County Council provide collection services for the vast majority of
household recycling and waste streams.

There is a statutory duty under Environmental Protection Act 1990 to provide one Civic
Amenity site (more commonly known now as Household Waste Recycling Centres)
within a County Council to dispose of bulky items. The site must be open on at least
one day of the weekend unless this period is over Christmas. These sites were
originally set up to dispose of waste that couldn’t be collected at the kerbside.

Page 2



3.8 Public awareness of climate change and the rise in waste specific TV shows like Money
for Nothing have impacted positively on the public psyche. Covid 19 has dramatically
changed public behaviour in relation to waste and the wider environment. We should
actively promote and maintain these positive behaviours that support action for climate
change emergency. People are slowly moving away from the thought that HWRCs are
tips and dumps and more towards re-use and recycling facilities.

3.9 There are many who believe visiting the sites several times per week to dispose of
black bag and residual waste and not using kerbside recycling options is still
acceptable. Ease of access, unchallenged use of the residual waste skip, disposal of
black bags full of mixed waste undermines the efforts of the vast majority who try to
recycle everything they can at the kerbside each week. Future provision needs to offer
a wider variety of recycling and reuse options on a smaller number of sites.

3.10 Over the last five years many local authorities have rationalised service provision and
focussed investment in fewer, better quality and higher performing sites. Like
Monmouthshire, most have implemented day closures and many more have
reduced/seasonal hours.

3.11 Almost 50% of all domestic waste and recycling produced in Monmouthshire in
2018/19 arrived at the HWRCsas single car/van journeys. This is despite
Monmouthshire having full kerbside recycling systems for domestic waste streams and
a bulky waste collection service operated by Homemakers. The average site
throughput across Wales is closer to 30% of domestic waste and recycling.

3.12 Vehicle restrictions including van and trailer permits were introduced in 2016. This saw
a reduction of waste from traders using the sites to dispose of commercial waste. An
outright ban of commercial type vehicles was deemed impractical and a registration
and permitting system was introduced. The system worked well but single use permits
for one off visits was also introduced and this saw tonnages increasing again on sites.
The resident permits followed in 2019.

Pre-covid

3.13 A growing number of Welsh authorities introduced compulsory recycling at HWRCs in
2018/19. Black bag sorting stations appeared in Swansea, Rhondda Cynon Taf,
Torfaen and Blaenau Gwent and recycling rates increased by 15-20% at the sites.
Reducing black bag skips also allowed for more recycling streams to be separated and
hard plastics, mattresses, carpets and other materials are now offered at most of those
sites.

3.14 Many sites across Wales and the UK are reporting +80% recycling rates compared to
Monmouthshire’s combined recycling rate of 58% across the four sites as shown in

Table 1 below.

Table 1

Page 3



3.15

3.16

3.17

Five Lanes| Llanfoist Troy Usk Total
Residual 3021.89| 4288.50] 1268.28 680.06| 9258.73
Recycle 4622.08| 6013.91 1519.99 625.85| 12781.83
7643.97| 10302.41| 2788.27| 1305.91| 22040.56|
Recycling % 60.47%| 58.37% 54.51%| 47.92%| 57.99%

The recycling rates at the sites are the lowest in Wales and this reduces the positive
recycling percentages being achieved by the high number of residents who recycle
at the kerbside. This is not only due to the high volumes of waste that enter the sites
but a lack of capacity at the smallest sites to include additional recycling options.

Welsh Local Government Association benchmarking data highlights issues with the
Monmouthshire sites and the recommendations from 2016/17 included the
retendering of the contract with specific recycling targets, rationalisation of facilities
to ensure 70%+ recycling and pre/post sorting of black bags to capture additional
recyclate.

As can be seen from the WLGA Benchmarking data of HWRC provision below,
Monmouthshire is the most expensive service with the lowest recycling rates. This is
due to the high cost of operating 4 sites open 70 hours per week compared to
neighbouring authorities who only provided the single statutory site. It is also the
higher than average percentage of household waste delivered to the site which meant
Monmouthshire had the lowest waste collections cost in 2017/18.

HWRC Sites 15/16 WLGA Benchmarking Data

m Total net service cost; £32.40 per household.

m Ranked 15th lowest cost out of 22, median cost £28.63, lowest cost £13.58.

m HWRC sites handled 21,745 tonnes of waste at an average of 528kg per household per
annum. (Ranked highest out of 22, median 290kg, highest 528kg). Of this total, 13,695
tonnes was recycled which represents a diversion rate of 63% (Ranked 19th of 22, median
77%, highest 100%).

HWRC Sites 2017/18 WLGA Benchmarking data

m Total net service cost; £63.37 per household.

m Ranked 22nd lowest out of 22, median cost £30.13, lowest cost £5.58.

m HWRC sites handled 16,257 tonnes of waste at an average of 391kg per household per

annum. (Ranked 1st highest out of 22, median 221kg, highest 391kg). Of this total, 8,922.05
tonnes was recycled which represents a diversion rate of 54.88%.

Page 4




3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

Table 1 shows for 2018/19 shows improvement over 17/18 benchmarked data of
3.11% increase in recycling but also an increase of almost 6000 tonnes of waste.
This increase coincided with recycling interventions in neighbouring authorities.

The resident permits were introduced in June 2019 where, every household was
issued with a permit to use the sites. This was in response to increasingly high
volumes of cross border waste entering the sites following neighbouring authority
restrictions on their sites. This has been very successful and overall waste tonnages
reduced by over 3000 tonnes in 2019 compared to 2018. The 3000 tonne reduction
in waste entering the sites also contained a high percentage of recycling and this
negatively impacted recycling rates.

A trial of mattress recycling was due to be introduced at the HWRCs this year and
will be followed by carpets. These are very high cost recycling materials, typically
costing twice that of Energy from Waste treatment per tonne. These materials will
need to be recycled at Five Lanes and Llanfoist to meet our 70% target. If the booking
system and restrictions remain in place there will be less need to recycle more low
quality, very high cost items as the throughput of materials to the sites will be reduced.

Chart 1 shows compositional analysis of residual waste going into Llanfoist, Five
Lanes and Mitchel Troy. It shows how much material could have been recycled at the
kerbside. Almost 20% of residual waste entering the sites was food waste (also
known as putrescibles). In comparison, Table 2 shows that 38% of black bag waste
contents at the Usk site was food waste.

Chart 1 — Compositional analysis of black bags at Llanfoisr, Five Lanes and Mitchell
Troy

0.8% 1.7% 1.8%

1.7%
3.2%
= 6. Other Non-Combustible

\ 14.4%
= 7. Glass
V e = 8. Putrescibles
. = 9. Ferrous Metal

= 10. Non Femous Metal

= 11. WEEE
= 12. Potentially Hazardous

= 1. Paper and Card
2. Plastic Film
= 3. Dense Plastic

= 4 Textiles

52% = 5. Other Combustible

= 13. Fine Material

Table 2 —Compositional analysis of black bags in Usk HWRC 2019

Page 5



3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

Food 38% Usk HWRC residual

Textiles 8%

Paper/card 8%

Garden 4% 8%

DIY 3% ‘

Glass 3% T~ o B

Metal 2% 39 % 4%

Other recyclable 1% aroa W Taitiles panerCand
Garden DIy o Glass

Residual 34% W Metal B Other recyclable m Residual

Table 2 shows that making local waste disposal an easy option does not achieve high
recycling rates. Many residents use the sites rather than participating in kerbside
recycling or adhering to the two black bag limit.

Recycled waste at the Usk site reduced again in 2019 to 45% and is the lowest
performing site in Wales. The data gathered during Covid19 confirms that greater
participation in kerbside collections and reduced access to HWRCs increases
recycling rates.

Black bag sorting was agreed as part of the Cabinet Report in December 2019,
however, implementation was delayed due to Covid 19 restrictions. Authorities who
have successfully implemented these types of intervention have reported that
residents pre-sort more waste before coming to the sites and black bag waste
reduces substantially. Sustainability experts, WRAP and the HSE have produced
guidance on introducing and operating these types of schemes as the success of
early adopters is clear (Appendix 1).

Five Lanes and Llanfoist have ample space to introduce a black bag sorting area and
a good level of options for other waste streams to be recycled. It is important that
when this is implemented it is done across the board or it will increase waste tourism
within the county as residents opt for sites with no restrictions.

Black bag sorting will be impossible to implement at Usk due to the size of the site
and lack of recycling options there. It will also be very difficult at Mitchel Troy but there
is additional space and a greater number of options available for additional recycling.

Key Issues: HWRCs usage through a Covid 19 lens

The Covid pandemic has shown what can be achieved in recycling terms when all
the sites were closed. A recycling rate of 70%+ was achieved when waste was only
collected at the kerbside. The efforts of the residents that support all the recycling
schemes at the kerbside are undermined by a minority that use the HWRCs for
disposal of black bag waste with high quantity of material that could have been
recycled at the kerbside. The recycling rate achieved at the HWRCs also increased
with the smaller sites remaining closed and the booking system introduced.

Page 6



3.28

3.29

There has also been a massive reduction in number of visitors to the sites compared
to 2019 as evidenced by the booking system data. This positive behaviour change
has increased recycling at the kerbside and high overall recycling rates are being
maintained.

Table 3 below shows visitors during June 2019, Usk was not included on the count
but tonnage data would suggest that 170 - 200 cars per day use the facility when
compared to the larger sites and material composition.

Table 3

Mitchel troy Total number of entrants in June: 7184

Average Tuesday Wednesday |Friday Saturday |Sunday

Bam - 9am 30 16 24 24 25 Average per day 342.0952
9am - 10am 26 25 37 49 37

10am - 11lam 30 33 42 38| 45

llam - 12pm 42 30 35 49

12pm - 1pm 30 35 34 49 37

1pm - 2pm 24 25 20 41 50

2pm - 3pm 30 36| 35 37 43

3pm -4pm 32 30/ 28 41 42

4pm - S5pm 21 24 18 36| 27

Spm - 6pm 14 20 19 23 18

Average Total: 277 274 292 387 375

Five Lanes Total entrants in June: 9736

Average Monday Tuesday Wednesday |Friday Saturday |Sunday
Bam - 9am 20 17 20 22 38 34 389.4533
9am - 10am 38 77 33 43 43 39
10am - 11am 41 39| 42 42

llam - 12pm 39 40| 37 36| B

12pm - 1pm 27 36 30 33 45

1pm - 2pm 41 29 39 50 a8 49
2pm - 3pm a6 a2 3e| 53| a7 a7
3pm -4dpm 25/ 30| 32 45 42 49
4pm - Spm 33 33 28 40| 41 38
Spm - 6pm 21 20 18 25 19 17
Average Total: 339 311 314 397 407 as1|
Llanfoist Total entrants in June: 16598

Average Monday l
8am - 9am 663.92
9am - 10am

10am - 1lam

1lam - 12pm

12pm - 1pm

1lpm - Zpm

Z2pm - 3pm
|3pm - 4pm

d4pm - Spm

Spm - 6pm - 36

Average Total: BBI

Tables 4 a, b, ¢, d show numbers of visitors during the last two months and where
those visitors came from.

Table 4a

Visits to Llanfoist July — September 2020. The original capacity for 420 vehicles was
reduced to allow vans and trailers and currently there is capacity for 360+ vehicles
per day.

Page 7



>

02/07/2020 19 16/07/2020 327 30/07/2020 307 13/08/2020 289 27/08/2020 296
03/07/2020 145 17/07/2020 316 31/07/2020 301 14/08/2020 310 28/08/2020 302
04/07/2020 179 18/07/2020 303 01/08/2020 110 15/08/2020 253 29/08/2020 250
05/07/2020 170 19/07/2020 222 02/08/2020 127 16/08/2020 176 30/08/2020 238
06/07/2020 163 20/07/2020 253 03/08/2020 201 17/08/2020 216 31/08/2020 210
07/07/2020 226 21/07/2020 270 04/08/2020 164 18/08/2020 130 01/09/2020 201
08/07/2020 0 22/07/2020 0 05/08/2020 0 19/08/2020 0 02/09/2020 0
09/07/2020 294 23/07/2020 315 06/08/2020 296 20/08/2020 294 03/09/2020 265
10/07/2020 288 24/07/2020 311 07/08/2020 303 21/08/2020 259
11/07/2020 241 25/07/2020 298 08/08/2020 249 22/08/2020 203
12/07/2020 230 26/07/2020 243 09/08/2020 211 23/08/2020 197
13/07/2020 233 27/07/2020 238 10/08/2020 241 24/08/2020 243
14/07/2020 262 28/07/2020 251 11/08/2020 170 25/08/2020 172
15/07/2020 0 29/07/2020 0 12/08/2020 0 26/08/2020 0
Table 4b
Heat map showing visits
-\.- ) il
LIanfoust HWRC 1

Table 4c
Five Lanes visits, capacity for 360 visits

Us{qe 5515 prOpér

'l

¥
o

Page 8




03/07/2020 123 17/07/2020 319 31/07/2020 263 14/08/2020 284 28/08/2020 284
04/07/2020 109 18/07/2020 213 01/08/2020 106 15/08/2020 169 29/08/2020 218
05/07/2020 136 19/07/2020 172 02/08/2020 89 16/08/2020 129 30/08/2020 125
06/07/2020 137 20/07/2020 167 03/08/2020 148 17/08/2020 151 31/08/2020 133
07/07/2020 128 21/07/2020 197 04/08/2020 117 18/08/2020 121 01/09/2020 115
08/07/2020 186 22/07/2020 219 05/08/2020 139 19/08/2020 96 02/09/2020 137
09/07/2020 0 23/07/2020 0 06/08/2020 0 20/08/2020 0 03/09/2020 0
10/07/2020 250 24/07/2020 302 07/08/2020 273 21/08/2020 253

11/07/2020 181 25/07/2020 217 08/08/2020 195 22/08/2020 137

12/07/2020 191 26/07/2020 187 09/08/2020 155 23/08/2020 136

13/07/2020 160 27/07/2020 174 10/08/2020 162 24/08/2020 175

14/07/2020 219 28/07/2020 157 11/08/2020 122 25/08/2020 119

15/07/2020 209 29/07/2020 184 12/08/2020 110 26/08/2020 103

16/07/2020 0 30/07/2020 0 13/08/2020 0 27/08/2020 0

KW 5 e
i N A
- ‘3,‘\ e v " A

Page 9



3.30

3.31

3.32

3.33

3.34

Tables 3, 4a and 4c, show a stark difference in site usage as we come out of Covid
restrictions. In 2019, the average daily visits were 1500 across the 4 sites, in 2020
this is reduced to 420 across the two sites open.

The heat maps 4b and 4c show that Llanfoist not attracts more visits. This is despite
Five Lanes being closer in mileage terms for many of those visits. Encouraging
residents to use the full range of kerbside services will reduce unnecessary milage
and single journeys to sites.

Table 3 shows a reduction in usage between 4pm and 6pm, this is considerably more
noticeable during the winter hours. The booking system allowed for a clean down of
the site between 10am-11lam, 1pm-2pm and 5pm and 6pm with no public access.
We have not received any requests for visits between these times since the
introduction of the booking system.

Tonnage and performance data in Table 5 shows what can be achieved when the
usage of the HWRCs was limited.

Table 5
2019 2020 2019 2020
Kerbside 8629 9678 67.5% 68.5%
HWRC 6772 2393 64% 74%

e Overall decrease in tonnage of approximately 3,400 tonnes (-22%)
¢ Increase in kerbside tonnage of approximately 1,000 tonnes (+12%)
e Decrease in HWRC tonnage of 4,400 tonnes (-65%)

e Figures indicate a slight increase in kerbside recycling rate

e Figures indicate a 10% improvement in HWRC recycling rate

Bookings peaked in week 2 with 80% of slots filled. This has decreased to 62% of
capacity being used on the two sites open in July and August. The reopening of
Mitchel Troy will give a small increase in capacity resulting in 40% headroom. Table
6 shows the potential savings that could be achieved if the sites were opened to align
with actual capacity usage’.

Table 6

Current Service provision in contract - 220 hours per week

Opening hours currently operated (inc Mitchel Troy) - 117 hours per week

Capacity currently utilised - 75 hours per week

Open 8am to 4pm - maintain 2 x 30 min breaks for cleaning/skips - capacity 117 hours
Open 8am to 4pm and close additional day Llanfoist and Five Lanes - capacity
103 hours

8am — 4pm estimated saving £140k pa
Close additional day Llanfoist and Five Lanes estimated saving £100k

Page 10



3.35

3.36

Over 80% of the bookings are made via the self-service portal and 20% of residents
booking via the Contact Centre. Many of residents are complimentary to staff on site
despite some initial issues for some in using the booking system. The system is not
as intuitive as we would want long term but was developed very quickly to get the
sites re-opened.

HWRC provision survey

The Cabinet decision to close the Usk facility is currently in abeyance to allow for a
consultation on the provision of services and proposed changes. The consultation
ran from March 10" to April 10t 2020 and was promoted on social media, the press,
on the sites and through Usk Town Council. Usk Town Council were due to canvas
residents of Usk and a letter drop was planned to coincide with the consultation
process. There was a total of 959 on-line responses received. 8 respondents did not
complete what site they use but answered a range of the other questions. Not all
guestions were completed by all respondents. The consultation did not focus on the
closure of Usk alone and asked a range of questions regarding the HWRC provision
across Monmouthshire as set out below.

Which site do you use most regularly?

Five Lanes 330
Llanfoist 206
Mitchel Troy 233
Usk 182
Total 951

What is most important to you about a Household Waste Recycling Centre?

Helpful staff 4256
Wide range of facilities for recycling

4218
How far | have to travel to site 4102
Black bag/rubbish is accepted 3889
Area for putting items aside for re-use/resale 3686
Ease of access to skips on site e.g. No steps 3585
A reuse shop on site open to the public 3342
Stopping business waste being brought to site 3047
Commercial vehicles are restricted e.g. Vans and trailers 2953
Area for sorting black bags on site (to increase recycling) 2651

The question asked residents to rank the most important thing to them about the sites
1-5 where 5 was the most important. The table above shows the data for all 4 sites.

What is most important to you about a Household Waste Recycling Centre?
(Usk only responses)

Page 11



Wide range of facilities for recycling

515
Helpful staff 469
How far | have to travel to site 467
Area for putting items aside for re-use/resale 417
Black bag/rubbish is accepted 391
Stopping business waste being brought to site 390
Commercial vehicles are restricted e.g. Vans and trailers 383
A reuse shop on site open to the public 332
Ease of access to skips on site e.g. No steps 314
Area for sorting black bags on site (to increase recycling) 312

3.37 The responses from users of the Usk facility ranked the importance of a wide range
of recycling facilities on site as their main priority. This is likely to be in recognition
that the Usk facility has the narrowest range of recycling facilities on site and this
limited choice is reflected in the poor recycling performance.

Do you agree with the recommendation to reduce the number of HWRCs across
Monmouthshire?

EYes EMNo MBlank

e Any consultation that recommends a reduction in service is unlikely to see
an overwhelming positive response. Almost a quarter of respondents did
support a reduction in the number of HWRCs in Monmouthshire.

Page 12



Do you support the recommendation to close the site at 16:00 on Saturday
and Sunday?

HYes ENo HBlank

e Almost three quarters supported sites closing at 16:00 on Saturdays and
Sundays.

Do you support the recommendation to close at 16:00 during the winter when
visitor numbers are reduced?

M Yes
® No

m Blanks

e Overwhelming support for shorter opening hours in the winter

How often do you visit the site to dispose of waste/recycling?

How often do you visit the site Usk Mitchel Troy Llanfoist Five Lanes
More than once a week 27 14 9 5
Once a week 59 42 27 21
fornightly 20 41 29 48
Monthly 32 50 55 89
Occasionally 22 77 72 158
Never 1 1 3
Total 161 225 192 324

Page 13



e 17% of Usk visits are more than once a week compared to 6% Mitchel Troy,
5% Llanfoist and 1.5% Five Lanes

o 37% of Usk visits are once a week compared to 19% Mitchel Troy, 29%
Llanfoist and 5% Five Lanes

e 14% of Usk visits are occasional compared to 34% Mitchel Troy, 38%
Llanfoist and 49% Five Lanes

e Based on the responses at least 71% of the visitors to Usk HWRC were also
there the week before depositing waste/recycling.

What material do you mainly bring to site?

FIVE LANES

other

. recyclables
Electrical items

Black bags

DIY waste

Househo
recycling (glass =%
bottles, tins,
cans, paper
and cardboard)

Garden waste

LLANFOIST

other recyclables

Electrical items
Black bags

DIY waste

Household
recycling (glass
bottles, tins, cans,

paper and
cardboard)

Garden waste

Page 14



MITCHEL TROY

other
recyclables
Electrical items

Black bags

DIY waste

X

Household
recycling (glass
bottles, tins,
cans, paper and
cardboard)

Garden waste

USK

other
recyclables
Black bags

Electrical items

DIY waste

recycling (glas Garden waste

bottles, tins,
cans, paper and
cardboard)

e Respondents state that they mainly deposit material that could be collected
at the kerbside (approximately 65%) on all sites. This is black bags, garden
waste and household recycling.

e The proportion of Usk users stating they mainly bring household recycling to
the site is far greater than other sites at 12% compared to 2% in Five Lanes.

e These are the perceptions of site users and do not correspond with site
tonnage data. Five Lanes is the most accurate match on perception and
actual tonnage with black bags and variety being 33% and current recycling
rates of 63%+

3.38 The survey also allowed free typing for other comments:
e There was a wide range of comments provided. The majority of comments

from Mitchel Troy related to the frequent temporary closures and the need
to resolve this issue.

Page 15



3.39

3.40

3.41

e The majority of Usk users comments related to keeping the site open and
flytipping concerns.

e Llanfoist and Five Lanes had a range of comments regarding staff being
helpful/unhelpful, flytipping concerns, return to weekly rubbish collections,
stop single use plastic bags, free garden waste service, no to sorting black
bags, preference to use these sites rather than Usk Mitchel Troy, others
requested additional facilities be positioned closer to their towns etc.

e Some confusion and mis-communication is clearly present. One response
from Usk was that they preferred to use the split-level ramp in Llanfoist for
easy access but could no longer do this since the permits were introduced.
They believed as a resident of Usk they could not use Llanfoist. (the
resident permits allow residents to use any of the MCC sites)

Rationalisation of HWRC provision and the closure of Usk

Discussions on future waste provision through Strong Communities and subsequent
reports to Cabinet in December 2019 recommended the closure of Usk for a number
of reasons.

It is recognised that the facility at Usk is highly regarded by a large number of local
residents. Following the announcement of the planned closure in December 2019 an
on-line petition on Change.org saw approximately 1000 signatories sign the petition
to keep the facility open these signatories include support from outside of the county.
The petition is now closer to 1800 signatures. The consultation process set out was
also promoted though this medium.

M LU ML IS YIS i, | g S S B 1L O e S e o

Survey link

As promised, please find below the survey link for the recycling survey
from MCC. Please complete if you want to have your say....

Lela Pirouet
6 months ago

Update from Usk Town council

Hello all.

| had an email from Chris Wilkinson from Usk Town Council. She informed ...
Lela Pirouet
w 6 months ago

1,500 supporters 7 months ago

Usk Town Council have submitted a report to the Council highlighting the reasons
why the site should not be closed and potential options that should be reviewed. The
report from Usk Town Council is provided as an appendix to this report being
considered by the Committee. The report states that Usk does not compare
favourably in service provision to the other major towns yet serves a community,
including outlying villages of 1987 households. It states that residents of Usk would
need to travel a 20 mile round journey to Llanfoist or Five Lanes.

Page 16



In addition, Usk Town Council have recently established an initiative and a local
action group called Save Usk’s Recycle Facility (SURF) which welcomes residents
to share their views. It is unclear at the time of writing this report if the action group is
supporting the data and evidence for closure in the December Report or countering
them.

3.42 In order to provide the Strong Communities Select Committee with relevant
information pertaining to the matters raised in the Usk town Council report and
concerns raised by SURF further information is provided as follows.

Only Abergavenny and Monmouth have an HWRC within the extended town area.
Chepstow and Caldicot don’t have a facility within their town and residents travel a
15 mile and 10 mile round journey to use Five Lanes. The picture below shows that
over 99.9% of residents live within a 9 mile radius of Llanfoist, Five Lanes and Mitchel
Troy, the hatched circle is a 9 mile radius of Usk and includes Llanfoist and Five
Lanes sites.

The Usk Town Centre Report request that sites should be maintained to service an
area as described of 1987 households (a radius of 2.5 miles of Usk). If this coverage
of existing sites was replicated it would leave huge areas across the county without
services.

Page 17



3.43

3.45

2.5 mile radius of exiting sites

\bedr Forest Coal Pit Llangattock Lingoed Skanfrith Pen*v-e-g—r!‘l

Bont Cross Ash :
Bettws Llangrove
Llanrothal 9 Kerrd
Llangenau g
[ 9 Welsh Newton Whitchurch/  welsh
Newcastle
ollen Llanvetherine / Llanwytherin
Symonds Yat
lantilio Pertholey)/ LMQdeilo Bertholau 4 I
wyne
0 Llangattock-Vibon-Avel
Llantilio Crossenny English Bic
=rn Abergavenny /Y Fenni
o Llanvihangel-Ystern-Llewern * -
3 ristchurc
lanfoist / Udofanfoist Monmouth /T refynwy :
Lland@@wi Rhydderch Berry Hill
il P Penrhos NVyesham
Coed Morgan willhastow Hotel TTO))
Uanell Llanarth .
- Tregare / Tre'r gae Coleford
-erw
Llanvihangel Gobion Caer Llan Penallt Newland Milkwa
Blaenavon
Llanover Raglan Castle Clearwell
Pen-y-clawdd / Pen-clawdd
Llanfair Kilgeddin Trow ¢
Varteg Nant-y-derry \ » Whitebrook
tyleri Twyn-y-Sheriff / Twynysheriff Llangovan Trellech
Penperlleni
ABERSYCHAN 0
ABERSYC ol Llandogo St Briavels
ttie Mill Llanishen
Little Mill || 43y 0/Llancaeo Parkhouse
Trevethin Llansoy
Mol ¥ Hewelsfield
Cwm Ffrwd-cer Glascoed Trelleck Grange
Tintern
Tranch Usk
o Llarfivm Nevepinn
Pontypool
N ve 1ew W ]
Wolvesnewton Bevatden Woolg
\ Sebastapol Coed-y-pa Llanllowell Devauden Court
Strog
Newchurch
Wibdon
Croesyceiliog Llangybi / Llangibby e GRnriiverd St Arvans
CWMBRAN ] tand h Itton Commeon Tidenham
Cwmbran Handegvet Pen-y-cae-mawr Earlswood Tutshill
Mynydd-bach
= ) ) 2
Henllys Llanfrechfa Shirenegn Chepstow /Cas-Gwent
Llanhennock ,
Ulanvair Discoed i
Castell-y-bwch  Croessy-mwyalch Pwlimeyric
Malpas Parc S@mour
i Caerleon ) 5tan
tisca Cat's/Ash m Mathern/Merthyr Tewdrig [l
Sy Penhow .

l
ol |_|anmartin 5 v
Christchurch an Highmoor Hill L Wallstone Farm
N

-
jerstone”/sTy-Du A
Aust

any Nileric
Llanwern Wileric () s lidbrook
Rhiwderin ] >
Works Llandevenny Northwick
Bassaleg Undy / Gwndy —/-
NEWPORT / CASNEWYDD REdwicks A

Pilning

Duffryn — 5

mimad SavarniRaarh

From a wider Wales perspective, Torfaen, Blaenau Gwent and Newport residents are
served by a single site in each county. Cardiff’'s 364,000 residents are served by two
sites. Residents in Crickhowell travel a 28 mile round trip to their nearest facility in
Brecon or 64 mile round trip to Llandrindod Wells when Brecon is closed.

The Usk site does not meet current best practice guidelines due to the steps and
gantries that are used at the site. The gantries make the site unsuitable for disabled
or infirm residents and poor lighting of the gantries leads to complaints and potential
slips, trips and falls. The difficulty in keeping the gantries clean along with site staff
unable to support residents with material is the reason that Usk has remained closed
during Covid 19.

Page 18



3.46

3.47

3.48

3.49

3.50

3.51

Lighting and electrics on site need investment and power surges knocked out lighting
in the Maryport street carpark several times in November 2019. This work would have
been needed to be completed in readiness of winter hours for 2020.

A near miss with a disabled resident and 44 tonne vehicle occurred when the vehicles
used to drive out against the flow of traffic. A Viridor Health and Safety investigation
at the time requested that this long standing practice be stopped. The loss of 18 car
park spaces to improve the access and egress for the large vehicles was
implemented but issues with traversing through a busy carpark with a 44 tonne
vehicle remains a substantial risk. Removal of the site would enable an increase in
car parking spaces that would be of significant benefit to traders in the town and the
car park is frequently full.

There have been several bumps in the car park with cars waiting for the site. A woman
struck by her husband’s car on the exit to the site was thankfully not harmed seriously.
Several claims for damage for slips, trips and falls on the site have continued to be
raised over the years despite the improvements made.

The links between air pollution and respiratory diseases are well-documented. During
peak summer season the site attracted between 170 and 200 additional vehicles
through the car park and town each day. The introduction of the booking system (Usk
site will only accommodate a maximum of 10 cars per hour post-covid and social
distancing) will substantially reduce this impact but any return to normal will again
exacerbate these issues.

A review of service provision based on site use, tonnages and capacity to improve
carried out by Eunomia in 2017 clearly identifies the need for further investments in
Usk and Troy with particular concerns regarding drainage and Health and Safety at
Usk. Even with investment in the drainage required to meet NRW standards,
investment in gantries, surfacing and lighting improvements estimated at over
£30,000 the site would still be too small to accommodate a wide range of skips and
will remain the lowest performing recycling centre in Wales.

Flytipping is cited as the main concern when any changes to waste services are
proposed. There is little correlation between access to HWRCs and fly-tipping and
authorities that have closed sites do not report increased fly-tipping as a result.
Reported flytipping:

Flytipping Comparison

2019/20 2020/21
April 113 119
May 115 116
June 73 107
July 132 129
August 54 68

Page 19



3.52

3.53

3.54

3.55

3.56

3.57

3.58

The data for April to August 2020 shows a spike in June 2020 this is likely to be linked
to lockdown restriction lifting as sites across Wales opened at the end of May.

The increases in fly-tipping are predominantly in Abergavenny and along the border.
Of the reported incidences 10 were related to a bin store within 2 minutes of Llanfoist
HWRC and occurred in July and August. The Llanfoist site had been open for over a
month at this point.

There has been a reduction in fly-tipping in Monmouth during 2020 compared to 2019
and Usk remains at similar levels.

HWRC and Transfer Station Contract Management

The existing contract for HWRC management has been operational since 1992 and
is due to be retendered. The contract is partnership arrangement Monmouthshire
County Council and Viridor and both parties recognise that the existing contract
needs to be substantially changed to take account of recycling performance and
budget constraints. Viridor have worked with the Council throughout this partnership
and have been instrumental in increasing recycling on sites and reducing operational
costs despite the original contract being based on landfill.

Cabinet agreed to retender the service in 2016 and soft market testing was carried
out with a good level of market interest. It was clear from the market that clarity of
service provision in the tender documentation was key to reducing risk pricing. The
tendering process was due to commence in 2017 with conclusion in 2018. Changes
to the service provision as a result of the Medium Term Financial Planning budget
processes including day closures, rationalisation, household permits and profit
sharing mechanisms meant the clarity required by contractors was not available.
Ambiguity in tenders can lead to risk pricing, legal challenges or low numbers of
tenders and therefore the procurement process has not commenced.

MCC negotiated with Viridor to reduce the management of sites fee by £40,000 with
no indexation of contract for 20/21. This was on the understanding that the contract
will be retendered during 2020 and the existing contract was extended until March
315t 2021. This has now been extended until September 2021 to allow for decisions
on service provision to be finalised. Abeyance of the decision on Usk and subsequent
Covid 19 pressures have delayed progress. Viridor have agreed to support MCC until
September 2021 to allow for the tender process to be completed but this is likely to
incur additional costs.

Officers have reviewed the costs and identified options for insourcing. This would
give the Council flexibility in service provision going forward but the recent crashes in
the recycling market have identified the wider risks of predicting running costs against
income generation from recycling. Monmouthshire’s total tonnages are very small
and the buying and selling power of larger waste management companies offer far
less risk in volatile markets.

Page 20



4.0

4.1

4.2

OPTIONS APPRAISAL

4.1 Booking System

4.2HWRC service provision
4.30pening hours

4.4 Additional day closures
4.5HWRC Contract Management

Booking System

Option 1 : Do Nothing

¢ Allow residents to visit the site without booking. This would not allow the
controls necessary to manage the Covid 19 requirements.

Option 2 : Continuation of booking system

e The data supports the continuation of the booking system. We will work with
the neighbouring authorities and Abavus to ensure the system is more intuitive
and supports self-servicing at higher levels

Closure of Usk

Option 1: Do Nothing

e Do nothing is rarely an option. Escalating costs, poor performance, budget
constraints, procurement deadlines all necessitate change, coupled with Covid
19 the Do Nothing Scenario is unlikely to be an option for any service going
forward.

Option 2: Unmanaged (un-staffed) recycling facility or bring bank system on
existing or other site.

e Any permanent waste storage facility would need planning and permitting.
While existing sites are usually accepted by neighbouring properties, new sites
or changes to existing facilities are usually vehemently opposed. An
unmanned facility would only be able to take waste materials that are collected
at the kerbside.

¢ Bring banks were removed in Wales with the roll-out of kerbside collections,
historically they attracted fly-tipping and trade abuse and in some areas they
became a target for arsonists. Many were on large supermarket sites where
there was a physical and CCTV presence that helped control abuse.

e Powys recently closed its unmanaged facilities and garden waste skips due to
increased trade abuse and spiralling costs of contamination in skips. Sites
accepting potentially hazardous materials tyres, asbestos, paint, waste
electrical and electronic equipment (WEEE)etc must be managed and staffed.

Option 3: Managed (staffed) facility with recycling only on present site.

Page 21



In theory, this would seem an ideal solution to increase recycling. This would
potentially work on a large site with a very wide range of recycling facilities but
on a site limited by size and capacity the options for a variety of recycling
materials are significantly limited.

e A rrecycling only facility was considered as an option for Usk but the relatively
low tonnages through the site would not justify the costs of managing the
facilities. The 625 tonne recycling throughput at Usk would equate to staff costs
of £115 per tonne compared to £10 per tonne in Llanfoist.

e Any material brought to the site that could not be recycled in the very limited
number of skips would be turned away. Residents turning up with
carpet/underlay, hard plastics, plastic bags, mixed materials, upholstery, MDF,
crisp packets, tetrapaks etc. in any quantity would be advised to visit one of
the other sites. If the booking system is retained it would be unlikely that these
sites would have been booked by the residents and residents would have to
take the waste home again and rebook for another day. This would be a
constant source of frustration for the residents.

e Overall residents ranked black bag disposal as the fourth most important issue
and 25%-+ of residents said they mainly dispose of black bags. It is unlikely
that they would feel their expectations regarding, helpful staff, wide range of
recycling facilities and proximity of the site was positively managed, if they
were not allowed to bring any residual waste (including bulky items) to site.

e Over 60% of waste entering Usk could be collected at the kerbside. Over 60%

of the black bag contents, being disposed at Usk, could easily be recycled at
the kerbside.

Option 4: Consider other restrictions

e Restricting the quantity of black bags allowed per visit was an approach taken
by several Councils. Most had a maximum of 2-4 black bags per visit being the
equivalent of a missed kerbside collection. Many residents state they use the
sites on a daily/weekly basis and limits are unlikely to be effective. The issue
on Usk is not only black bags but any waste material that could be recycled on
a larger facility.

e Restricting numbers of visits per year per household is equally difficult to
enforce and make equitable and introduces the same issues of restricting
vehicle sizes. Different size vehicles, vans/trailers, types of waste brought in
etc. Restricting size of vehicle was partly introduced with restrictions on
vans/trailers but there are many exemptions.

¢ Reduce skip size to include additional recycling capacity at Usk. Reducing the
size of the skips would necessitate additional closures to remove the popular
materials. It will be more expensive to make an increased number of
collections of smaller skips and increase the carbon footprint of haulage.

Page 22



4.3

4.4

5.0

5.1

Option 5: Site managed and operated by Usk TC/ third party/ volunteers

e Sites must be permitted to accept waste. Sites must be managed and operated
by suitably qualified persons.

e The staffing costs on the site are relatively small compared to the cost of
disposal of material throughput. The 1300 tonnes of material entering the site

would cost approximately £120,000 to treat (recyclate value netted off).

e Several businesses have shown an interest in using the site and this could be
investigated by Usk Town Council as a community led facility.

Option 6: Insourcing to reduce costs

e Insourcing the services has been fully investigated and remains an option
dependant on the final tender costs received and the prevailing risks
associated with volatility of recycling markets. The flexibility benefits in the
Council managing the sites would be reduced if officers are able to negotiate
favourable service and variation of provision terms with tenderers but this is
not guaranteed.

Opening Hours
Option 1 : Do Nothing

Maintain existing hours, this would be providing an over capacity of 40% based on
current figures.

Option 2 : Reduce hours

The reduction in hours will provide savings as set out in report, it will maintain an
headroom of 40% capacity with a reduction in site closures in the middle of the day
to 2 x 30 min breaks for cleaning down site.

Additional day closures

Option 1 : Do Nothing
Maintain existing hours, this would be providing an over capacity of 40% based on
current figures.

Option 2 : Reduce hours

The additional day closures will provide savings as set out in report, it will maintain
an headroom of 25% capacity. Greatest savings are achieved with weekend closures
but costs are based on mid-week closure.

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Measures used to measure the success of the proposals will include.

Page 23



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.0

7.1

An increase in the proportion of waste received at HWRCs which was recycled;
A reduction in average operating costs of HWRCs;

Maintenance of fly tipping at or below current levels

Increased levels of residents self-servicing for bookings

Capacity and headroom for bookings maintained at +10%

REASONS:

The statutory recycling targets set out by Welsh Government are extremely
challenging. It is recognised that increasing recycling can only be achieved by
reducing easy options for rubbish disposal. Monthly collections of residual waste,
closures of HWRCs, reduced capacity of residual collections are challenging but all
deliver higher recycling and better environmental outcomes.

Changes to the way we operate the HWRCs in Monmouthshire are key to increasing
overall recycling rates due to the higher than average volumes of waste that enter the
sites. Diverting waste into the domestic kerbside recycling collections will benefit the
climate change emergency work with fewer car journeys. Segregating black bags on
site will change behaviour and further increase recycling.

The booking system makes people consider what they are buying and how they will
dispose of their rubbish. For the first time there is accurate unequivocal data showing
site usage patterns and capacity on sites. Working to known capacity rather than
trying to meet perceived demand will ensure the Council can continue to provide more
of the services our residents rely on.

Many residents have said that they now use Freecycle and other services to reuse
material that they previously brought to site for disposal. Many have also commented
that they think more carefully on the items they purchase since Covid 19.
Consideration of the lifecycle, obsolescence and re-use of items is critical in creating
a circular economy.

The costs of providing four recycling sites across the county places huge budgetary
constraints on the waste section. A review of service provision based on site use,
tonnages and capacity to improve carried out by Eunomia in 2017 in appendix
ndicates that Usk and Mitchell Troy are only sustainable long term with significant
and costly improvements with particular concern regarding drainage and gantries in
Usk.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

Continuation of the booking system is relatively straightforward using the existing
portal. The portal is based on a bulky waste booking form and is clunky but sufficient
and usable. Improvements are likely to incur some additional costs but as it's used
by neighbouring authorities who would also benefit from a bespoke system, these
costs may be minimal. Although 80% of customers are self-servicing the increase in
telephone enquiries at the Contact Centre is acknowledged. The booking system
reduces peaks and troughs on site and this should be reflected in lower tender prices.

Page 24



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

8.0

8.1

8.2

The closure of Usk would provide an in year cashable saving of £40,000 in 2020 and
subsequent years in reduced management fees. There are £30,000 unbudgeted
costs in reviewing the drainage and upgrading lights, gantries and surfacing should
Usk reopen in 2020. There will be increased costs in kerbside collection but through
Covid 19 these resources have been quantified and at current collection rates these
are managed within existing rounds.

Revised opening hours of 08:00 to 16:00 in line with continuation of booking system
will see a reduction in staffing costs of £140,000 compared to existing provision.
These savings are based on MCC operating the service in-house.

The additional day closure at Llanfoist and Five Lanes will reduce staffing costs by
£100,000 based on in-house provision.

Costs are saved by reduction in agency costs and overtime and should not impact
existing staff wages. The existing contract is based on minimum wage while the
proposed new contract is based on the living wage. Reductions in hours for staff on
site is offset by the increased hourly rate.

An additional re-use shop at Five Lanes is dependant Welsh Government funding. If
successful, the income generation and subsequent profit will be invested in climate
change emergency projects.

Retendering the HWRC and Transfer stations will need resources from the council’s
legal, finance and procurement departments. At this stage the financial costs are
unknown but it is anticipated that a like for like service provision would increase costs.
The continuation of the booking system, the closure of Usk and reduced opening
hours being included in the tender documents will reduce tender prices and contact
costs going forward. Clarity on future service provision will ensure the market can
provide the most economically advantageous tender position for MCC. The
procurement of a 10 year contract with an estimated value of £15m will be supported
through Atebion, clarity on all aspects of the contract will reduce complexity and costs
of procurement for all parties.

WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS IMPLICATIONS (INCORPORATING
EQUALITIES, SUSTAINABILITY, SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE
PARENTING):

The changes to the services proposed or to be considered further as a consequence
of this report have significant positive contributions to make to the Wellbeing Goals.
In particular it has strong benefits for a Prosperous Wales, by supporting the ongoing
development of a low carbon economy. There is also potential to contribute to
Cohesive Communities, by working collaboratively and in partnership with our
communities to reduce the impact that waste has upon our communities.

There are no significant positive or negative impacts on the protected characteristics,
safeguarding or corporate parenting. The principles of Long term, Prevention,

Page 25



8.3

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

Integration, Collaboration and Involvement have been used throughout the
development of these proposals.

It is clear that the closure of the Usk facility is strongly opposed by a number of local
residents and Usk Town Council. Perceived negative impacts on the community of
Usk would be offset with improved air quality, additional parking close to the high
street for businesses and improved recycling rates across the county.

CONSULTEES:

Cabinet Member

Strong Communities Select

Soft market testing of the Market
All Member waste awareness days

BACKGROUND PAPERS:

WLGA Benchmarking Finance Data 2015/16 and 2017/18

Eunomia Study into Monmouthshire County Council HWRC provision
WRAP and HSE — Black bag sorting guidance

AUTHOR: Carl Touhig

CONTACT DETAILS:

Tel: 07580362121
E-mail: carltouhig@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 26


mailto:carltouhig@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to MCC
Public Services

2020

SEPTEMBER 21™ 2020

Usk Town Council
Authored by: Chris Wilkinson




Report to MCC Public Services
September 2020

1. Background to this report

In March 2020 MCC announced the proposed closure of the recycling facility in
Usk. After protests and the admission, on MCC’s part, that there had been little or
no consultation with the Town Council or residents, it was agreed that any decision
be postponed for six months to allow that consultation to take place.

Later that month we were plunged into the Covid 19 pandemic with the resulting
drastic and necessary changes to our normal routines. Originally all four recycling
centres in the County closed but the two largest have now re opened with Mitchel
Troy and Usk remaining closed. We are told that this is a temporary measure
during the pandemic and is constantly being reviewed.

Usk Town Council and its residents are convinced that this is the first step in
justifying the closure of our site. The only consultation, to our knowledge, has been
an on line survey which was County wide and not specific to Usk, not the
consultation that we were promised and expect.

2. Comparisons of the five Monmouthshire towns

Usk is the smallest of the five towns in Monmouthshire yet our rates our
comparable to our much larger neighbours. The benefits however do not compare!

All five towns benefit from the basic services from MCC including
Planning/emergency planning, Building control, Highways, Education services,
kerbside Recycling, Community Hubs & Libraries etc.

Unfortunately, there the similarities and provisions end.

Page 30



3.

Additional benefits enjoyed by the residents of Abergavenny, Monmouth,
Chepstow and Caldicot: -

Large Leisure centres providing; -

Swimming pools,

Saunas,

Gymnasiums,

Fitness suites,

Full programmes of classes for all ages,

All weather outdoor pitches and courts,

Children’s activities throughout the school holidays

And in addition

Skate parks.
Hubs/ Libraries
Good transport links.

We acknowledge that a small town may not be able to sustain the leisure centres
that the other larger towns enjoy, or benefit from Section 106 funding from
House Builders or Supermarket Chains, but surely that should be taken into
consideration when making decisions that impact significantly on this town.

4.

What additional benefits does Usk have?

A Hub/Library (its retention fought for by a group of dedicated locals)
A Post Office (part funded by UTC)

A Recycling Centre

No comparison to our neighbouring towns!!

What we do not have: -

Any leisure facilities provided by the County Council even on a smaller scale.
Any play parks/skate parks provided by the County Council.

Any Children’s activities available throughout the school holidays.

Any decent or reliable transport links even to Abergavenny the site of our nearest
hospital.

Page 31



Usk residents are very resourceful and generous with their time so every leisure
activity, every club and society has been funded, is run and maintained by
volunteers.

6. The Real issues

MCC are considering closing one of the few benefits that we have.

The demography of Usk is of an ageing population. You acknowledge in your
RDLP that ‘poor access to community facilities and declining local service
provision is a particular issue for rural communities’ (well-being goal 5)

Usk residents would have a 20-mile round trip to either Five Lanes or Llanfoist
sites, Yes, residents from other areas may well have this distance to travel but we
are talking here of the population of a whole town and surrounding villages,
upwards of some 1987 households.

In the RDLP Monmouthshire County Council recognises that we are in a climate
emergency and that the high volume of car journeys in the County raises carbon
emission levels. MCC also commit to strive to limit the increase in global
temperatures and support carbon reduction through a variety of measures. (goal
17 ) Forcing car owners to make avoidable journeys makes a mockery of your
objectives.

Your decisions are apparently based on budget pressures which we appreciate, but
some measures can only result in more expenditure rather than less. During the
time that the local recycling centre has been closed we have sadly seen a rise in fly
tipping, this will inevitably increase with a considerable cost to the County Council
and to the detriment of our countryside.

7. What do we suggest as a way forward?

The main sources of contention appear to be the perceived misuse of the black bag
(household waste) skip, health and safety issues around the stairways and cost
effectiveness.

Paga 32



We would like to make the following proposals to mitigate these concerns: -
e Remove the black bag facility if necessary,
e Remove the current large skips and stairways/platforms,
e Replace the current large skips with 4x20 cubic feet builder’s skips, (green waste,
general non- recyclable waste — mattresses, broken furniture etc.)
e Retain the current glass, metal, wood, plastic, paper etc.
e Retain small/medium electrical,
e Add a re-use/upcycling section
e Possibly add cooking/engine oil container.
e Consider re introducing larger electrical disposal facility.
e Amend opening hours/days (less staff hours and more mobility between sites)

With these changes in place we can deliver on the following: -
¢ Eliminate the Health and Safety issues
e Eliminate the need for extra large lorries,
e Savings to be had on vehicle fuel and wear and tear for Viridor and MCC
e Reclaim parking spaces
e No food issues
e No black bag issues
e Reduce the likelihood of fly tipping
e Salary savings to Viridor
e Cost savings for MCC
e Manageable
e Reduce carbon emissions across the town and other areas
e Improve statistics on recycling

8. And finally; -

Usk is a beautiful little town attracting many thousands of visitors to the area
every year. Its reputation as a town of flowers, the open gardens, the picturesque
square and the historic buildings all make it a favourite destination in this
wonderful County. We feel that we make a great contribution to the economy of
Monmouthshire but receive very little in return.

Monmouthshire County Council have stated recently that their motivation is to
help improve lives and build sustainable and resilient communities. Usk Town

Council has always worked alongside MCC and been amenable to help, both
Page 33



practically and financially wherever possible. We believe that to close the re
cycling centre would be a mistake that would be counterproductive and deal a
further blow to a town that already feels neglected.

Page® 34



Wrap

Cymru

Draft Report

Monmouthshire HWRC
Compliance and Health & Safety
Review

A high-level review of the HWRC network across Monmouthshire, with
recommendations on measures that could be adopted to improve health
& safety and permit compliance.

Project code: CCP102-075 page 35
Research date: January 2019 Date: February 2019



Page 36

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 2



WRAP's vision is a world in which resources
are used sustainably.

Our mission is to accelerate the move to a
sustainable resource-efficient economy
through re-inventing how we design,
produce and sell products; re-thinking how
we use and consume products; and re-
defining what is possible through re-use
and recycling.

Find out more at www.wrapcymru.org.uk

Document reference (please use this reference when citing WRAP's work):
[WRAP, 2019, Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and H&S Review, Prepared by Eunomia
Research & Consulting Ltd.]

Written by: Emma How and Neil Greenhalgh
a

& e
o090

eunomio ssés

Front cover photography: Usk HWRC Site, January 2019

While we have taken reasonable steps to ensure this report is accurate, WRAP does not accept liability for any loss, damage, cost or expense incurred or arising from reliance on
this report. Readers are responsible for assessing the accuracy and conclusions of the content of this report. Quotations and case studies have been drawn from the public
domain, with permissions sought where practicable. This report does not represent endorsement of the examples used and has not been endorsed by the organisations and
individuals featured within it. This material is subject to copyright. You can copy it free of charge and may use excerpts from it provided they are not used in a misleading
context and you must identify the source of the material and acknowledge WRAP's copyright. You must not use this report or material from it to endorse or suggest WRAP has
endorsed a commercial product or service. For more details please see WRAP's terms and conditions on our website at www.wrap.org.uk

Page 37


http://www.wrapcymru.org.uk/

Page 38

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 1



Contents

1.0
2.0

3.0

4.0

INtrodUCtioN. . cuieiieiiermarmssesrasmassasnasnasnssnssassassassasnasnssnssnssnssassnssassasnasnssnnsnssnnnnsnas 6
Background .....cecusessssssnssnssmnssnssmnssnssnnssnnssnssnnsnnssnnssnssnnsnnssnnsnnnsnnsnnssnnsnnnsnnsnnnsan 7
0 R © | o = o V= PP 7
2.2 Overall Structure of the REPOIt......coiiviiiiiiiici 7
Five Lanes HWRC.....coiuimeimmsmmesmasmmssmassnasmsssnssmassnssssssnssnassnsssassnsssassnnsnnssnnsnnnsen 8
G 780 R 1 1= g T o (o] o« PP 8
TR N Y 1 (Y | 8
3.1.2 Data Gathering ......cuuuoiiiiiiiiiiiii e 8
20 G TR 2= oo ] PPN 9
3.2 Traffic ASSESSMENT .. .iieeeriieiierrrieeeerrnss s s e rrns s s s e rrns s s s e rrna e e s s e rns e s s e rrnnneeeernnnns 9
3.2.1 AcCesS tO the Site .uuuiiiriiiiii s 9
3.2.2  Site DESCHIPLION. ..cevuniiiriiiirsirrrs s eaas 10
3.2.3 Vehicle MOVEMENLS .......ovvvviiiiiiiiiiis e 12
3.3  Operational H&S REVIEW ......ccuuuiiiiiiiiiiieieiesree e e e e e e 15
120G 20 A 0T | o o PP 15
3.3.2 ACCESS ROA ...cuuiiiriiiiiiiciis i sr s r e nas 15
G0 T0C T @ o= o1 [o 1 ] 41PN 15
3.3.4 StaffiNg ceee e 15
3.3.5 Site ACHIVITIES .evuuiiriiiiiri e 15
3.3.6 Tonnage throughput .........coocuiiiiiiiiii e 15
3.3.7 NEIGNDOUIS...cceeiieeiee e e e e s 16
3.3.8 Traffic SEParation .......ccoiviuiiiiiiiiicie s 16
3.3.9 Dust, NOISE & OAOUL ..uivuiieiiiiriei e ranrenes 16
3.3.10 Site SUMACE...ceuiiiri it enas 16
3.3.11 Site DraiNage.....cccceiiiiiieii i 16
3.3.12 User Pedestrian and Vehicle Movements .........cccovvvviiiiiiiininiincennnnennn, 16
3.3.13 General Site House KEEPING .....ccuvuuiriiereneiieerneeeeeenee e eeene e e eenn s 17
3.3.14 Site SIgNAGE . cvuiiiiriiii i 17
3.3.15 Containers and Storage Ar€as ........ccviiuiiiiiiinisinieeni e ran e eaas 17
G 2 S @o 5 ol (U1 T o £ PP PPPP 17
3.5  RecomMmENdationS.......cicuuuiiiiiiiiii et raa 17
LIanfoist HWRC .....ceimureuresmasmaimesmssmssssmsssasmassassassssssssssssssssassassassssnnsnssnssnssnsnnns 18
4.1 MethOodolOgy....cuuieeiiiiiii e 18
O I Y | (Y | PP 18
4.1.2 Data GatheriNg ....ccuueiieeeuieieecee e e e e e e e s e e e e e eenn e e eees 18
4.1.3 REPOM et 19
4.2 Traffic ASSESSMENT .. cvuiiieieeeeteeetereeerr e e e s e e rae e e s eaeranreensensesnsernseennnns 19
4.2.1 ACCESS t0 the SItE ..evuriieiei i 19
4.2.2 Site DeSCHPLION. . .cuiii i 21
4.2.3 Vehicle MOVEMENLS ....ccvuiieiiiiiiie et s s re e s s ea e ee e e e s ea e e e e eennes 23
4.3 Operational H&S REVIEW .....cceuuiiiiieiiieieeeenae e e eeene e e eeee s e e e e e e ernn e e eennnns 26
T 3G T A o o= (o] o PP 26
4.3.2 ACCESS ROAA .....iiivuiiiiiiiiiiie e r e r s r s s enas 27
4.3.3 OpeniNg TIMES ...ceuuiiirniiernrreersirrnssrrss s e e s rrn s rra s ren s ranssrnnseenns 27
4.3.4 StaffiNg ceucieeiiiii i 27
4.3.5 Site ACHIVILIES ..uuiire i 27
4.3.6 Tonnage throughput .........coo oo 27
4.3.7 NeIghbDOUIS....cuu it 28
4.3.8 Traffic SEparation .........ccccuiiiiiiiii i 28
4.3.9 Dust, NOISE & OAOUN ...cvuiiruiirerienierteerurrererseernrrenerserenrreaeesnreennees 28
Page 39

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 2



5.0

6.0

N T O Y1 (TS U [ 7= < 28

4.3.11 Site DraiNage......cuuuiiruniiiiniirinirrrn e 28
4.3.12 User Pedestrian and Vehicle Movements .........cccoveviiiviiiiiicnicinnceenns 28
4.3.13 General Site House KeepinNg ......cccoevviiuiiiriieiiiiiisenieessesnnsensesnseennaes 29
4.3.14 Site SIgNAGE ..euuriieniiirn i 29
4.3.15 Containers and Storage Areas .......ccvevuiieriierssrnnsesneessesnnsesnessnsaenns 29
4.4 CONCIUSIONS .euuieriieeieeii et ses e et s s e s e s s e s e s s s s s ensea s e s s e s s ensesnsernnsnnnnns 29
4.5  ReCOMMENAAtIONS.....iiiriiiiiii i 29
Mitchel Troy HWRC ...cuieuimeummsmsesmsssmssssssssssssssassssssnssssssnssnsssnssnsssnssnsssnssnnssnssnns 30
T 0 Y 1 | PP 30
5.1.2 Data Gathering ....c.coovuiiiiii e 30
T G T 2= 0o ) o T 31
5.2 TraffiC ASSESSIMENT .. .cvuuiiiriiiiirii e et e s s e s e s e s s s eaan e e eaaaees 31
5.2.1 ACCeSS O the Site ..uiveiii i 31
5.2.2 Site DeSCriplion......ciiviiiiiiiiiiirii s 32
5.2.3 Vehicle MOVEMENES ......cvuiiiiiiiicci et eas 32
5.3  Operational H&S REVIEW ......ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceiic s er e en s s s eaa e eas 36
510G T8 A o Yo T o P 36
5.3.2 ACCESS ROAA ...cevuiiiriiiiiiiiienii st s e s s s e s s e e s e an e e eraaees 36
5.3.3 0pening TiMES ...vuiiuiiiiiiiieeiirireners e s a s e er s s s e enns 36
5.3.4 Staffing cceeeee e 36
5.3.5 Site ACHIVILIES ..ivvniir i 37
5.3.6 Tonnage throughput .........ceoiiiiiiiii e 37
5.3.7 NeIghDOUIS.....coeeiiiieii e 38
5.3.8 Traffic Separation ...........oooeuuiiiiiiiiii e 38
5.3.9 DuSt, NOISE & OUOUN ..vuivuririireurerrereaserrnresrenrearrs e rereasanreans 38
5.3.10 Site SUMACE....ctviiiiriieri e e e r e raaeee 38
5.3.11 Site DraiN@ge......oieeuuiernrieinririrssrs s sess s s s s s s s s s ra s raa e 38
5.3.12 User Pedestrian and Vehicle Movements .......ccccccevvviiiiiinicecncscneeenn, 38
5.3.13 General Site HOuSE KEEPING .....ccceevuuiriieeenieieeeenae e eeee e e eeee e eeennas 39
5.3.14 Site SIgNAQGE .. cevuriiiriiiirir et 39
5.3.15 Containers and StOrage Ar€as .........cuvveeiiiuiiiiiieiieeiins e se s eaans 39
T o] o T (U1 To] [ PPN 39
5.5  RecommENdations........ccicuuiiiiriiiiiis e er s s e 39
USK HWRC ..ouicieiiaresmaramssnasassssassasssssmassssasssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassssssssnsnasnssnnas 40
O N Y | (Y | PP 40
6.1.2 Data Gathering .......cuoiiiiiiiiiii e 40
ST 0 T = o ) N 41
6.2 Traffic ASSESSMENE ... cvuiiii i 41
6.2.1 ACCESS tO the Site .uiveii i 41
6.2.2  Site DESCHIPLION. ..cevuiiiriieirsiernr i rri e s a e enas 43
6.2.3 Vehicle MOVEMENLS .....ccuiiiiicii e 44
6.3  Operational H&S REVIEW .....ccuiiiiiiiiciii it r s aaas 45
0 70 R 1 Yo | o (o o N 45
6.3.2 ACCESS ROAA ...cuuiieiiieiiiiiriee et e et et e e e s e s e e s e a s e e e e ean s ea s eaneeaneennnes 46
6.3.3 OPeniNg TIMES ..euiieiiiiiieie i s s e a s e e e aaenns 46
6.3.4 StaffiNg .eeee e 46
6.3.5  SItE ACHIVILIES covuieeiei e 46
6.3.6 Tonnage throughput ..........coiiiiiiiiii s 46
6.3.7 NEIGNDOUIS....ceeii i e e e e e e e e e e e e s 47
6.3.8 Traffic SEPAration .........ccceveiii i 47
6.3.9 Dust, NOISE & OUOUN .. ceuiiuiitiiiirie e r s e eraeaenaes 48
6.3.10 SitE SUMACE .. etuiieiee et e et r e e et e e e e e e s ea e ra e e eanreaseaneeanreennnns 48
6.3.11 Site DraiN@ge.....ccvuieeieriieeer et s s e s s s 49
Page 40

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 3



6.3.12 User Pedestrian and Vehicle MOVEMENLES .....ovuvieieniiiieieiireeiinrenenenns 50

6.3.13 General Site House KEeping.......c.ueiieereniiierniirieer s senn e eeens 50

6.3.14 Site SIgNAGE ...euuiiriieieii e 50

6.3.15 Containers and Storage Aras........cvieeiiiriiiniieniseneern e eernnaenns 50

6.4  CONCIUSIONS ..vuiiiieiiiciie e e e e s e e s e r s s e ra e e e ra s e eaaneeenns 50
6.5  RecomMmMENdationS.......cocuuiiiruiiiiiiiiiins s 50

Figures
Figure 1: Locations of HWRC Sites across Monmouthshire .........cccevvviviiiiiiiiiiinc e, 6
Figure 2: Overview of Five Lane HWRC and WTS Site showing site access road (Google Maps
01 T 0 L ) PP 9
Figure 3: Five Lanes Site Entrance Gate and Site Information Boards (E.How 31/02/2019).10
Figure 4: Five Lanes HWRC Site Safety Plan (Viridor, FLN 2000).......ccccivtviiiiruiiiinnnniennnnens 11
Figure 5: Main site entrance, site office, staff parking and HWRC entry/exit (E. How
007 R ) PP 12
Figure 6: Staff ONlY Ara......occeueiieiiee e e e r e e e e e rnnns 13
Figure 7: Raised Section of The HWRC Public Area showing parallel parking bays and one
way system. (E. HOW 31/02/2019) ...cuiiuiiiiiiiiicii et er s s e s er s rae s eanas 14
Figure 8: Lower Section of The HWRC Public Area showing parallel parking bays and one
way system. (E. HOW 31/02/2019) .....ccuuuuiiiieernieieeennaseeernnsssesrnnsssssrnns s s ssennssssesnnnssasees 14
Figure 9: Overview of Llanfoist HWRC and WTS Site showing site access road (Google Maps
08/02/2019) ..ieeeuiieiieieree e e ettt e e et e e e e 19
Figure 10: Llanfoist HWRC Public Entrance showing Site Sign and Traffic Information (E.How
31/02/2019) .uieeeeiei et e e a e e ar e e r s 20
Figure 11: Public Exit from the Llanfoist HWRC (E.How 31/02/2019).......cccvvuiiiiirrnninnneennnn. 20
Figure 12: Separate Llanfoist WTS and HWRC Service Entrance / Exit (E.How 31/02/2019) 21
Figure 13: Llanfoist Site Survey Plan (LLAOO1) (ViridOr) .....oiivuiiiiiiiiiiiiics v s v eenae e 22
Figure 14: WTS Area (Free Map TOOIS).....ccuuuerieeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeee s s eeens s s e e e s e eenn e e eeennns 23
Figure 15: Main User Area Showing Parking Bays (E.How 31/02/2019) ........ccovveevvnierreennnn. 24
Figure 16: User Parking and Pedestrian Walkway (E.How 31/02/2019) .....cccooeviiviiiiniiinnnns 24
Figure 17: Disabled User Parking (E.HOW 31/02/2019)......cicuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic s eneeeeeens 25
Figure 18: Pedestrian Access to Recycling Containers (E.How 31/02/2019) .......ccceueeeveennn. 25
Figure 19: Central CoVEred Ara .......ciiuiiiuiiiiiiiiei e etie et s s e s et s s e s e e s s senn s e s aenns 26
Figure 20: Overview of Mitchel Troy HWRC showing site access road (Google Maps
11/02/2009) iiituiiiieiiie et r et e e e e e e e e e er e aaens 31
Figure 21; Top Entrance Gate (E.HOW 31/01/2019) ....c.ciiuiiiiiiiiiiiiin e eere s en e s e 32
Figure 22: Mitchel Troy HWRC Site Safety Plan (Viridor TRO 2000).......cccceviviiunieniieinneennnes 34
Figure 23: User vehicles Parked in front of the Roller-Packer machine (to the right) (E.How
31/01/2019) wuiiieieiiee e a e e e e e a e e arrr s 35

Figure 24: Roller-packer Machine Located in the Centre Service Area (E.How 31/01/2019) .35
Figure 25: User Vehicles Parked in Parallel Bays and Dedicated Pedestrian Walkway (E.How

31/01/2019) ittt e e e e e e a e 36
Figure 26: Location of Usk HWRC (BlIU€ Star) ......cccuiiiiiiiii et ee e 41
Figure 27: External Site Gates looking towards the public car-park. (E.How 31/01/2019)....42
Figure 28: Usk Site Pedestrian Access to the Permitted Area.........cccvveieiviiieienieevneeeeeeennn 42
Figure 29: USKk HWRC Site Plan......ccuiiiuiiiiiiiiiieie st s s s s s s s a s s s e s sn s s s ennes 43
Figure 30: Containers Accessed via Stepped Metal Gantries (E.How 31/01/2019)............... 44
Figure 31: Marked Parking Bays in the Additional Operational Area..........cccceeveveevrnieeeeeennn. 45
Figure 32: Usk Site Viridor Plan (USK 2000)........ccuuiiirerriuiiereerrnineseesnnnessesnnsessesnnsessesnnns 48
Figure 33: Area within the Designated Parking Area that require Resurfacing .................... 49
Tables

Table 1: Tonnage Throughput 2017/18 .......iiiiiiiiiiiie e 15

Page 41

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 4



Table 2: Tonnage Throughput 2017/18 .......ciiiiiiiiiiiiii e 27

Table 3: Tonnage Throughput 2017/18 .......oiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 37
Table 4: Tonnage Throughput 2017/18 ....ceuiieiiiiiieicce e e 46
Acknowledgements

The authors would like to thank staff at Monmouthshire County Council and Viridor for their
assistance in compiling this report.

Page 42

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 5



1.0 Introduction

Eunomia was commissioned in January 2019 by WRAP Cymru to undertake a compliance and
health and safety review of the two Household Waste & Recycling Centres (HWRCs) in
Monmouthshire at Usk and Mitchell Troy with a high-level review of the remaining two HWRC
sites at Five Lanes and Llanfoist to provide context to the work. Figure 1 shows the locations
of the four HWRC within the County.

Figure 1: Locations of HWRC Sites across Monmouthshire

N - ol 2 sow
| T
: s
R : i A
A \ ‘«7.. A ot .
e \__.‘n\ 7 S—
A‘ \
b w ; o \
Llanfoist i \ o
i Nt ’ Mitchel Troy
S | ...
/(Y A A A
e Q. —
e N Usk | i
et o Vi
Five Lanes i
. i L ‘. -
'3 o ™ T, SRS .\o-:q.-
( .
Neopn Vg > kol
r " sl - Pt 1
o - Y,
® HWRC Locations ]
A Abergavenny . X L
A Monmouth
: )
[__1Monmouthshire Boundary A % o
. !
. 9 0a - -; ~ - . ~ J .o
= F YT Service Layer Credits: Sourcas: Eari, HERE, Gammijh, USE&S| Irtermam
eunomId ss°s INCREMENT P. NRCan, £3n Japan, MET!, Esn'ShpdtHand Kongl
e Esil Koren, Estl (Thalkindy, NGCC, ® OpensStlee Ity "vlllll'.'lﬂd“«\q.”“"_l“'
Qay e 2 4 6 8 eSS, User-Conimahily
O e Viles Cantsins Ordnance Survey daa/Crown copyright 20d |
. o 4 “dajgbase Tigfit {2019) |

Page 43

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 6



2.0 Background

The HWRC sites at Mitchel Troy and Usk are both small and operationally difficult with the
site at Usk raising particular concerns regarding the use of gantries to access the larger
waste containers and waste containers being changed over using the adjacent public car
park.

The site at Usk is well used by the local population but has the smallest through-put at 8%
of the total HWRC throughput for the County and has the lowest recycling rate at below
50%; many householders use the site for the deposit of small amounts of residual waste.
The site at Troy is larger (throughput of 17% of total HWRC tonnage) and has adjacent land
which may be suitable for expansion/relocation. All sites are run by Dragon Waste a co-
owned Viridor and Monmouthshire Borough Council organisation.

In addition, and in order to provide context to the reviews at the Usk and Mitchel Troy
HWRCs, a review of the remaining HWRC sites at Five Lanes and Llanfoist was also
undertaken.

2.1  Objective
The objective of the work is to provide Monmouthshire CC with a report which contains:

High-level compliance and Health & Safety reviews of the HWRC sites at:
e Five Lanes, Llanvaches, NP6 4AY; and
e Llanfoist, Heads of the Valleys Road (access via Merthyr Road), Llanfoist, Abergavenny,
NP7 9AQ.

And more in depth compliance and Health & Safety reviews for the HWRC sites at:
e Mitchel Troy — Off the B4293, Mitchel Troy, Monmouth, NP25 4HX; and
e Usk — Maryport Street Car Park, NP15 1A

2.2 Overall Structure of the Report

The report is structured such that the review of each site can be read as a standalone
document.

The report presented here consists of four standalone sections, one for each HWRC site.
Each section provides a Health and Safety review of the current operation of the site
commenting on site practices, the general operation of the site including the layout, signage,
staffing levels and the interaction between the public, contractors, and trade users (where
present) of the site.

Included is a basic appraisal of the traffic flows and current routing of vehicles within the
public areas of the site, and an appraisal of the general layout of the site paying particular
attention to the arrangement of the recycling, reuse and residual waste areas. The general
conditions on the site are also commented on.

Together with the observations made during each site visit, each assessment provides a
number of potential learning points and recommendations which the council should take into
account as it considers the future options for HWRC provision across the county.

Page 44

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 7



3.0 Five Lanes HWRC
3.1 Methodology

3.1.1 Site Visit

A site visit was conducted on the 31st of January 2019 between 9:30am and 11:00am by
Emma How, Specialist Technical Advisor, Eunomia Research & Consulting to assess the site
in terms of site Operational Health and Safety (OH&S) systems and practices. Emma was
accompanied by Anne Tucker (Waste Data Flow Manager, Monmouthshire County Council);
and Rhys Lloyd (HWRC Supervisor, Viridor).

As a part of the site visit conversations were conducted with relevant staff to understand
issues relevant to the site, and to understand what operational changes might already be
being considered going forwards.

Observations were made which, where possible, included:
e how householders use the site;
e material deposit, storage and dispatch;
e use of plant and equipment;
e how traffic and plant movements are managed.

The site visit also took into account site related activities outside of the permitted boundary
such as:

o traffic/pedestrian movements;

e site access (user and service vehicles); and

e how traffic / pedestrian movements are managed.

3.1.2 Data Gathering
The observational information gathered during the site visit was assessed alongside a
desktop review of the information provided by the Council and Viridor. Based on initial
discussions with the Council at the project inception meeting, the information provided for
the Five Lanes HWRC site included:
e Five Lanes HWRC Site Environmental and Emergency Plan (FLN 2999);
e Five Lanes HWRC Site Safety Plan (FLN 2000);
e Five Lanes Transfer Station Site Lease Plan (FLNTS001);
e Five Lanes Quarry, Caerwent — Revised plans incl. gate;
e Five Lanes TS Site Drainage & Ducts (FL/01/016);
e Five Lanes Transfer Station Risk Assessment (which includes assessment of HWRC
provisions); and
e Five Lanes TS Setting Out and Contractor’s Area (FL/01/08);
e Five Lanes Environmental Permit:
o Transfer Station Waste Disposal Licence, Five Lanes Quarry, Caerwent
(PHD/JLR/10"" December, 1992. TS/WDL/5LANE);
WP3599FY V002 Variation Notice; and
WP3599FY V008

On-site observations made during the site visit were considered in the light of current best
practise on HWRC operations and safety and in the context of the site characteristics
(physical and operational constraints)!. Best practice characteristics of other sites were
compared to the notes and photographs taken during the site visit.

1 WASTE 26 — Managing Health & Safety at Civic Amenity Sites — Issue 1 2015; https://wishforum.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2017/02/WASTE-26-.pdf

Page 45

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 8


https://wishforum.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/WASTE-26-.pdf
https://wishforum.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/WASTE-26-.pdf

A key element of site safety is the management of the pedestrian movements and traffic
flows in relation to site patrons both public and commercial, along with the movement of
large vehicles and site plant. The interaction between all of these was observed and
reviewed, and has been commented upon.

All of the on-site operations including the handling of materials by the public and site staff,
plant and equipment operation, and arrangements for the removal of materials were
assessed for their operational health & safety implications. Where possible this was done by
direct observation however time constraints meant that much of the information relating to
plant and equipment operation was obtained via interviews with staff.

3.1.3 Report

The intention of this report is to provide a document which draws together the elements of
the project - the site visit and review of available documents — to provide a number of
potential learning points and recommendations which the council should take into account as
it considers the future options for HWRC provision across the county.

3.2 Traffic Assessment

3.2.1 Access to the Site

The HWRC has good access from the highway (A48), Figure 2 shows the site and its access
road in relation to the A48. Access is via a dedicated private gated access road which also
serves the WTS (Figure 3). The access road is shared between traffic using the HWRC (cars,
trailers and light vans) and that using the WTS (HGVSs). During the time of the site
assessment the site was quiet with no traffic queuing to enter the site. However, it is
understood that at times when the HWRC is most busy site staff are deployed to manage
HWRC user traffic on the access road to enable traffic to access the site safely. The access
road is sufficiently long that traffic accessing the site has not queued onto the A48.

Figure 2: Overview of Five Lane HWRC and WTS Site showing site access road (Google
Maps 08/02/2019

S

&

Five Lanes Quarny @

o

Page 46

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 9



Figure 3: Five Lanes Site Entran

ce Gate and
L Ve e 3
o f{.” & i

.Site Inform_tion Boards %E.Hgyv‘ 31/02/2019)

X o g
. d

3.2.2 Site Description

Figure 4 (Viridor Site Safety Plan FLN 2000) shows the current layout and path of traffic on
the site.

The site consists of a Waste Transfer Station area which includes site office and weighbridge,
waste storage shed, staff parking, and loading yard located in the northern side of the site
and the Household Waste Recycling Centre which consists of a HWRC Yard Area and HWRC
Public Area and is located to the south of the site. A former landfill is located at the west of
the site whilst an area of unmade ground on the eastern side of the site is currently used for
empty container storage. The HWRC is of split-level design.

Page 47

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 10



g obed

Figure 4: Five Lanes HWRC Site Safety Plan (Viridor, FLN 2000)

\ k ~
-~ . / ~ —

R

i

Uiy

B ORTICE AN 3E

SL1ALD X STorAR AN

i
‘

MO K e00HTb: popEnid viufas - e
I

l?

TOAC S = A g ] ' S b ’ .;\J : je "\7
24 \ BB N =

.. MO —

- s - =
o~ v , -

> Ny > e ~ ot FLN 2000
. s - |

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 11



3.2.3 Vehicle Movements

The most hazardous activity on HWRC sites is the movement of vehicles in the proximity of
pedestrians. Of all vehicle movements, reversing is the most hazardous. During the visit
HWRC traffic flows were observed at first hand.

The HWRC benefits from a dedicated one-way system. Figure 4Figure 5 shows in-bound
traffic flows in blue whilst out-bound traffic flows are shown in red.

HWRC and WTS traffic enter the site via a share access then separate by the site office and
weighbridge with WTS traffic continuing to the left of the building across the weighbridge
and HWRC traffic passing to the right-hand side of the building, past the staff parking area
and HWRC Yard Area before continuing up a access ramp to the HWRC Public Area. Figure 5
shows the main site entrance (left of the picture), the site office (green cabin), staff parking
and entry/exit roads to/from the HWRC Public Area from the bottom of the access ramp to
the HWRC Public Area.

Figure 5: Main site entrance, site office, staff parking and HWRC entry/exit (E. How
31/02/2019

The HWRC is of split-level design with separate public and operational areas. On entry to the
HRWC Public Area users are able to park to unload their vehicles into eight roll-on roll-off 40
cubic yard open top containers. These containers are provided for the deposit of wood (x2),
small electricals, general waste (x2), garden waste, cardboard and scrap metal. Public access
to these containers is by gated walkways of integrated construction with asphalt surfacing.
Once a container is full a member of site staff closes and locks the walkway gate and directs
site users to alternative containers whilst the container is changed over from within the
HWRC Yard Area.

Page 49

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 12



A designated crossing point is provided for to enable access to a small cordoned off area of
the lower part of the site which is accessed via a flight of concrete steps. This area is marked
by suitable signage as Staff Only. Site staff take smaller items such as waste oils, batteries
and textiles from site users and separate them into appropriate containers within this area
(Figure 6). This area of the site is cordoned off using movable plastic barriers along its lower
boundary to prevent users from accessing the area themselves however the cordon is not
sufficient to prevent users accessing the area.

Figure 6: Staff OnIyArea

Continuing down the ramp past the Scrap Metal container users turn right on to the lower
area of the HWRC Public Area where a range of site level bins and containers are provided
for users to deposit materials.

Suitable specialist containers are provided for the storage of gas bottles; TVs and monitors;
oils; automotive batteries; plasterboard; water-based paints and fluorescent lamps. It is
understood from interview with the site supervisor that in order to service these containers
site staff deploy temporary traffic management (cones and a chain) at the top of the out-
going ramp to prevent site users from accessing the lower area of the site until the operation
has been completed.

Designated parallel parking bays of sufficient length are provided on both the raised (Figure
7) and lower sections (Figure 8) of the site to enable users to park and unload their
materials into the designated containers. The use of parallel parking bays reduces the need
for site users to reverse their vehicles as they travel around the site.

Page 50

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 13



Figure 7: Raised Section of The HWRC Public Area showing parallel parking bays and one
way system. (E. How 31/02/2019)

Figure 8: Lower Section of The HWRC Public Area showing parallel parking bays and one
way system. (E. How 31/02/2019

Users exit the HWRC via the one-way system and re-join the shared access with the WTS
traffic just to the left of the site office/weighbridge before exiting the site via the access road

Page 51

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 14



on to the A48. A S5mph speed limit is in force on the site with signs located at strategic points
on site and at the site entrance and are located at a height that ensures that they are not
obscured by traffic.

3.3  Operational H&S Review

3.3.1 Location

The HWRC is co-located with the Five Lanes Waste Transfer Station (WTS). The site (HWRC
and WTS) is located to the north west of Caldicot on the A48. The total area of the site is
0.76 hectares.

3.3.2 Access Road

Metalled roadway with good drainage on approach to site. The road is quiet road leading to
site entrance road is quiet as it only serves the Five Lanes HWRC and WTS. There is good
allowance for vehicles to enter site without impeding A48 main road.

3.3.3 Opening Times
Five Lanes HWRC is currently operational between 0800 and 1800 7 days a week and closed
on Christmas Day, Boxing Day and New Year’s Day.

3.3.4 Staffing

The HWRC public area is staffed by two operatives at all times. These staff members assist
the public in using the HWRC and control user traffic movements. Additional staff are
deployed in the WTS (plant operator) and Site Office (weighbridge operator and admin);
there is a Site Supervisor who has overall responsibility for the site.

3.3.5 Site Activities

There is separation and bulking of materials but no processing. The site accepts trade waste
and trade recyclables at the WTS only. There is an operational weighbridge on the site and
all site activities are carried out within the permit boundary.

3.3.6 Tonnage throughput
The current HWRC tonnage throughput for the year 2017/18 is provided in Table 1.

Table 1: Tonnage Throughput 2017/18

Stream Tonnes
Recycling
Automotive batteries 9
Card 109
Mixed cans 2
Mixed glass 39
Other Scrap metal 247
Paper 46
Plastics 2
Textiles & footwear
Mineral QOil 1
Mixed tyres
Paint 2
Plasterboard 80
Vegetable Oil 1
Page 52

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 15



Stream Tonnes
WEEE - TVs & Monitors 30
WEEE - Fluorescent tubes and other light bulbs 0
WEEE - Fridges & Freezers 51
WEEE - Large Domestic App 42
WEEE - Small Domestic App 125
Wood 760
Green garden waste only 1,421
Rubble 1,001

Sub Total 3,967
Re-Use
Gas bottles 4
Textiles & footwear 41
Books 6

Sub Total 51
Residual
Civic amenity sites waste : Household 1,921

Sub Total 1,921

Total 5,939

Re-use & Recycling Rate (Including plasterboard & rubble) 68%
%o residual 32%

3.3.7 Neighbours

The site is in a rural location with no immediate neighbours.

3.3.8 Traffic Separation

Traffic separation is currently in place on the site. There is segregation of HWRC user vehicle
from HWRC service vehicles via the split-level design and also via traffic management
procedures currently in operation to enable container servicing on the lower public area of

the site.

3.3.9 Dust, Noise & Odour
No dust or odour problems were observed.

3.3.10 Site Surface

The vehicular and pedestrian areas of the site are either laid to asphalt (road way and lower
public area) or concrete (container access walk ways in the upper public area). No pot-holes

or areas of concern were noted.

3.3.11 Site Drainage

Drainage was not observed to be an issue on the site. Review of the site drainage plan
indicates that suitable and sufficient drainage is in place on the site.

3.3.12 User Pedestrian and Vehicle Movements

Road markings including directional arrows, no-entry, exit and parking bays are well defined
meaning that users are able to easily navigate the site safely.

Pedestrians and users vehicles were not adequately separated in the two main areas of the
site — there were no barriers between pedestrians and users vehicles. Consideration

Page 53

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 16



should be given to the installation of barriers or bollard to separate the
pedestrian walk-way from the parking bays as is provided at the Llanfoist HWRC.

3.3.13 General Site House Keeping
The site was clean and tidy with no windblown litter observed on verges, boundary fencing
or under/behind containers.

3.3.14 Site Signage
Both off-site and on-site sighage was observed to be clear, in good condition and at an
appropriate height so that it was not obscured by traffic.

3.3.15 Containers and Storage Areas

Various containers are provided for the deposit of a range of materials. All containers where
observed to be in good serviceable condition.

A storage area for large domestic appliances was provided which was observed to be in a
tidy state.

3.4  Conclusions
The site is a well-managed modern HWRC site which was observed to be serving the needs
of users whilst providing a safe environment for both users and site staff.

The aspects of the site that have the potential to have a negative impact on the Health and
Safety on-site are:

e Site users gaining access to the Staff Only restricted area of the site — more likely at
busy times when the site operatives may be busy with other site users;

e Site users gaining access, either on foot or driving, to the lower section of the site, by
circumventing the traffic management arrangements (cones and chain) whilst
containers in that area are being serviced; and

e Users of the HWRC being required to sharing access to the site with large vehicles
using the WTS.

3.5 Recommendations

e Although no reports of users circumventing the traffic management system where
recorded during the site visit interview the author feels that the site and the site staff
would benefit from having a more permanent gate or barrier installed at the point
where staff currently deploy the temporary traffic management (cones and chain) to
ensure that site users do not enter the lower portion of the site whilst containers are
being serviced in the area. This additional security would provide site staff with
additional flexibility if they were required to attend another area of the site whilst a
container was being changed and it reinforces to users that the area is closed for
use.

e The Staff Only area would benefit from barriers of a more permanent nature to stop
users from access it from the lower area of the site. However, this must be balanced
against the operational requirements in servicing this area.

Page 54

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 17



4.0 Llanfoist HWRC

4.1  Methodology

4.1.1 Site Visit

A site visit was conducted on the 31st of January 2019 between 12:35 and 13:40 by Emma
How, Specialist Technical Advisor, Eunomia Research & Consulting to assess the site in terms
of site Operational Health and Safety (OH&S) systems and practices. Emma was
accompanied Anne Tucker (Waste Data Flow Manager, Monmouthshire County Council); Pete
Somer (Operations Manager, Viridor) and Jason Edwards (Area Charge Hand, Viridor).

As a part of the site visit conversations were conducted with relevant staff to understand
issues relevant to the site, and to understand what operational changes might already be
being considered going forwards.

Observations were made which, where possible, included:
e how householders use the site;
e material deposit, storage and dispatch;
e use of plant and equipment;
e how traffic and plant movements are managed.

The site visit also took into account site related activities outside of the permitted boundary
such as:

e traffic/pedestrian movements;

e site access (user and service vehicles); and

e how traffic / pedestrian movements are managed.

4.1.2 Data Gathering
The observational information gathered during the site visit was assessed alongside a review
of the information provided by the Council and Viridor. Based on initial discussions with the
Council at the project inception meeting, the information provided for the Llanfoist HWRC
site included:

e Safe Operating Procedure: Handling & Disposal of Helium Balloon Cylinders (140529)

as an example of a Safe Operating Procedure document

e Optional Scheme Layout (200807)

e Site Survey Plan (201001)

e Sijte Lease Plan (201302)

e Site Drainage Plan (20080924)

e Fire Risk Assessment (20140530)

e Llanfoist Site Plan (20141128)

On-site observations made during the site visit were considered in the light of current best
practise on HWRC operations and safety and in the context of the site characteristics
(physical and operational constraints)?. Best practice characteristics of other sites were
compared to the notes and photographs taken during the site visit.

A key element of site safety is the management of the pedestrian movements and traffic
flows in relation to site patrons both public and commercial, along with the movement of
large vehicles and site plant. The interaction between all of these was observed and
reviewed, and has been commented upon.

2 WASTE 26 — Managing Health & Safety at Givic Amenity Sites — Issue 1 2015; https.//wishforum.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2017/02/WASTE-26-.pdf

Page 55

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 18


https://wishforum.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/WASTE-26-.pdf
https://wishforum.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/WASTE-26-.pdf

All of the on-site operations including the handling of materials by the public and site staff,
plant and equipment operation, and arrangements for the removal of materials were
assessed for their operational health & safety implications. Where possible this was done by
direct observation however time constrains meant that much of the information relating to
plant and equipment operation was obtained via interviews with staff.

4.1.3 Report

The intention of this report is to provide a document which draws together the elements of
the project - the site visit and review of available documents — to provide a number of
potential learning points and recommendations which the council should take into account as
it considers the future options for HWRC provision across the county.

4.2  Traffic Assessment

4.2.1 Access to the Site

Figure 9 shows the site and its access road in relation to the surrounding road infrastructure.
The HWRC has good access from the highway; the Heads of the Valleys Road (A465) via
Merthyr Road; and has a separate entrance and exit from the Llanfoist WTS (Figure 10 and
Figure 11). A separate entry and exit is provided for traffic accessing the WTS, weighbridge
and HWRC service yard (Figure 12).

During the time of the site assessment the site was quiet with no traffic queuing to enter the
site. It is understood that the access road is sufficiently long that traffic accessing the site
has not queued beyond the roundabout by the adjacent McDonalds outlet and certainly not
as far at the Heads of the Valleys Road.

Figure 9: Overview of Llanfoist HWRC and WTS Site showing site access road (Google

/ . 'Abeygavenny lyres -
‘fMcDonald's

s !

Abergavenny

-~

® Dragon Waste %,

. <> N '?I/.

_ S ‘(),’ o
e Uanfoist Household
Waste Recycling'Centre

Page 56

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 19



Figure 10: Llanfoist HWRC Public Entrance showing Site Sign and Traffic Information
~ ol

(E.How 31/02/2019)

-

Page 57

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 20



Figure 12: Separate Llanfoist WTS and HWRC Service Entrance / Exit (E.How
31/02/2019)

4.2.2 Site Description

Figure 13 (Viridor Site Survey Plan LLA 001) shows the current layout on the site. The
dimensions of the site were not available however the site area (WTS and HWRC) is
estimated at 0.97ha.

Figure 14 shows the site consists of an administration area which includes site office and
weighbridge, public education centre buildings and staff parking in the north western portion
of the site. The Household Waste Recycling Centre public area is located in the north-eastern
portion of the site whilst the HWRC service area and WTS materials storage shed and
container storage area is located within the red boundary line. The HWRC is of split level
design.

Page 58

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 21



6G obed

Figure 13: Llanfoist Site Survey Plan (LLA0O1) (Viridor)

UNCONTROLLED
CONTACT D.0.
FOR LATEST ISSUE

(=

LLANFOIST
o) 77 || TRANsFER STATION

MV W18

SN = -,..

STEINL ¢ i TV L
TIME  ARLT CTTWALT MARCE

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 22



4.2.3 \Vehicle Movements

The most hazardous activity on HWRC sites is the movement of vehicles in the proximity of
pedestrians. Of all vehicle movements, reversing is the most hazardous. During the visit
HWRC traffic flows were observed at first hand.

The HWRC benefits from a dedicated one-way system and separate entry/exit from the WTS.
The HWRC is of split-level design and is separated in to public and operational areas.

On entry to the HRWC public area users are able to park to unload their vehicles into a
variety of roll-on roll-off 40 cubic yard open top containers (Figure 15).

Dedicated walk ways with protective bollards (Figure 16) and a dedicated disabled parking
bay (Figure 17) are provided for HWRC users. Users must reverse either into or out of the
parking bays; best practice is to reduce reversing therefore consideration should be
given to providing parallel parking bays. In considering this option it should be
recognised that while parallel parking mitigates the risks associated with
reversing, their installation will reduce the number of parking spaces which will
reduce user throughput. This is likely to increase the risks associated with
queuing traffic - especially at peak times, users rushing and being less safe, as
well as being less engaged to separate recyclates.

Containers are provided for the deposit of wood, small electricals, general waste, garden
waste, cardboard, plastic, paper (closed ro-ro), bulky waste and scrap metal. Public access
to these containers is by walkways of integrated construction with reinforced concrete
surfacing Figure 18). Once a container is full a member of site staff closes the access to the
container by placing a temporary barrier across the entrance and directs site users to
alternative containers whilst the container is changed over from within the HWRC Yard Area.

3 Free Map Tools, accessed 6" December 2017. https://www.freemaptools.com/area-calculator.htm

Page 60

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 23


https://www.freemaptools.com/area-calculator.htm

The site would benefit from the use of lockable gates at the container access
points as is in operation at the Five Lanes HWRC.

Figure 15: Main User Area Showing Parking Bays (E.How 31/02/2019
X VY WS TR Iy

Figure 16: User Parking and Pedestrian Walkway (E.How 31/02/2019)

Page 61

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 24



E.How 31/02/2019)

Figure 18: Pedestrian Access to Recycling Containers (E.How 31/02/2019)

> € - »

O -

Page 62

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 25



A central covered area is provided opposite the rollon-rolloff containers for users to deposit a
range of smaller materials such as textiles, batteries and also plasterboard and large WEEE
(Figure 19). Currently there is no dedicated pedestrian route from the parking bays to this
area and this combined with the need for users to either reverse in to or out of the parking
bays increases the risk to pedestrian from reversing vehicles. As already noted,
consideration should be given to remarking the parking bays to enable parallel
parking. Again, as previously noted, in considering this option the risks
associated with lower user throughput including those associated with queuing
traffic, users rushing and being less safe, should be considered.

Figure 19: Central Covered Area

FE
_____
““““““

=
T e P

It is understood from interview with the operations manager that in order to service these
containers site staff close the site at the entrance and allow users already on site to compete
their visit before service vehicles enter the site to service this area. Users are not permitted
to enter the site until the operation has been completed.

Users exit the HWRC via the one-way system. A 5mph speed limit is in force on the site with
signs located at strategic points on site and at the site entrance at a height that ensures that
they are not obscured by traffic.

4.3  Operational H&S Review

4.3.1 Location

The HWRC is co-located with the Llanfoist Waste Transfer Station (WTS). The site (HWRC
and WTS) is located on a hew mixed-use development just south of Abergavenny, off the
Heads of the Valleys Road (access via Merthyr Road), Llanfoist, Abergavenny, NP7 9AQ.

Page 63

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 26



4.3.2 Access Road

Metalled roadway with good drainage on approach to site. The road leading to site entrance
road also serves a number of other premises. The road terminates at the site.

There is a good allowance for vehicles to enter site without impeding the Heads of the
Valleys Road.

4.3.3 Opening Times
Llanfoist HWRC is currently operational between 0800 and 1800 7 days a week and closed
on Christmas Day, Boxing Day and New Year’s Day.

4.3.4 Staffing

The HWRC public area is staffed by two operatives at all times. These staff members assist
the public in using the HWRC and control user traffic movements. Additional staff are
deployed in the WTS (plant operator) and Site Office (weighbridge operator and admin);
there is a Site Supervisor who has overall responsibility for the site.

4.3.5 Site Activities

There is separation and bulking of materials but no processing. The site accepts trade waste
and trade recyclables at the WTS only. There is an operational weighbridge on the site and
all site activities are carried out within the permit boundary.

4.3.6 Tonnage throughput
The current HWRC tonnage throughput for the year 2017/18 is provided in Table 2.

Table 2: Tonnage Throughput 2017/18

Stream Tonnes
Recycling
Automotive batteries 11
Card 120
Mixed cans 5
Mixed glass 34
Other Scrap metal 232
Paper 38
Plastics 1
Textiles & footwear 35
Mineral Qil 5
Mixed tyres
Paint 2
Plasterboard 147
Vegetable Oil
WEEE - TVs & Monitors 30
WEEE - Fluorescent tubes and other light bulbs 0
WEEE - Fridges & Freezers 48
WEEE - Large Domestic App 33
WEEE - Small Domestic App 113
Wood 774
Green garden waste only 1,289
Page 64

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 27



Stream Tonnes

Rubble 1,358
Sub Total | 4,456
Re-Use
Gas bottles 4
Textiles & footwear
Books 4
Sub Total | 8
Residual
Civic amenity sites waste : Household 1,946
Sub Total | 1,946
Total | 6,411

Re-use & Recycling Rate (Including plasterboard & rubble) | 70%
%o residual | 30%

4.3.7 Neighbours
The site is in an edge of town location with a number of immediate neighbours including a
residential home for the elderly, hotel, commercial properties and retail outlets.

4.3.8 Traftic Separation

Traffic separation is currently in place on the site. There is segregation of HWRC user vehicle
from HWRC service vehicles via site design (split level) and via the deployment of a traffic
management system and traffic bollards.

4.3.9 Dust, Noise & Odour
No dust or odour problems were observed.

4.3.10 Site Surface
The vehicular and pedestrian areas and areas of waste storage are laid to asphalt and
reinforced concrete hard standing. No pot-holes or areas of concern were noted.

4.3.11 Site Drainage
Drainage was not observed to be an issue on the site. Review of the site draining plan
indicates that suitable and sufficient draining is in place on the site.

4.3.12 User Pedestrian and Vehicle Movements

Clear signage at the site entrance together with road markings including directional arrows
and parking bays are provided. The markings for the parking bays were worn in
places and would benefit from being repainted.

Pedestrian and vehicles were adequately separated in the main area of the site by prominent
black and yellow bollards which were located at the end of each parking bay.

The arrangement of the parking bays means that site users must either reverse into or out
of a parking bay. Consideration should be given to providing parallel parking bays
instead. In considering this option the risks associated with lower user
throughput including those associated with queuing traffic, users rushing and
being less safe, should be considered

Page 65

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 28



4.3.13 General Site House Keeping
The site was clean and tidy with no windblown litter observed on verges, boundary fencing
or under/behind containers.

4.3.14 Site Signage

With the exception of the sign for the small electricals container, in general, both off-site and
on-site signage was observed to be clear, in good condition and at an appropriate height so
that it was not obscured by traffic. The sign for the small electricals container should
be replaced.

4.3.15 Containers and Storage Areas

Various containers are provided for the deposit of a range of materials. All containers where
observed to be in good serviceable condition.

A covered storage area for large domestic appliances and containers for smaller containers
such as textile banks was provided which was observed to be in a tidy state.

4.4  Conclusions
The site is a well-managed modern HWRC site which was observed to be serving the needs
of users whilst providing a safe environment for both users and site staff.

The aspects of the site that have the potential to have a negative impact on the Health and
Safety on-site are:

e Site users reversing into/out of the parking bays.
e Site users gaining access to the rollon-rolloff containers when they are being changed
over.

4.5 Recommendations

e The site would benefit from having the current parking bays repainted, ideally to
enable parallel parking. However, in considering this option the risks associated with
lower user throughput including those associated with queuing traffic, users rushing
and being less safe, should be considered.

e The site would benefit from the installation of gates on the entrances to the rollon-
rolloff container walkways as is the case at the Five Lanes HWRC. This additional
security would provide site staff with additional flexibility if they were required to
attend another area of the site whilst a container was being changed and it reinforces
to users that the container is closed for use.

Page 66

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 29



5.0 Mitchel Troy HWRC

5.1.1 Site Visit

A site visit was conducted on the 31st of January 2019 between 14:15 and 15:00 by Emma
How, Specialist Technical Advisor, Eunomia Research & Consulting to assess the site in terms
of site Operational Health and Safety (OH&S) systems and practices. Emma was
accompanied Anne Tucker (Waste Data Flow Manager, Monmouthshire County Council); and
Pete Somer (Operations Manager, Viridor).

As a part of the site visit conversations were conducted with relevant staff to understand
issues relevant to the site, and to understand what operational changes might already be
being considered going forwards.

Observations were made which where possible which included:
e how householders use the site;
e material deposit, storage and dispatch;
e use of plant and equipment;
e how traffic and plant movements are managed.

The site visit also took into account site related activities outside of the permitted boundary
such as:

o traffic/pedestrian movements;

e site access (user and service vehicles); and

e how traffic / pedestrian movements are managed.

5.1.2 Data Gathering
The observational information gathered during the site visit was assessed alongside a review
of the information provided by the Council and Viridor. Based on initial discussions with the
Council at the project inception meeting, the information provided for the Mitchel Troy
HWRC site included:
e Site Survey — Mitchel Troy (Site Survey of 13/06/2011);
e LRS Site Survey — Mitchel Troy (Mitchel Troy HWRC, Site Report 23/01/2014);
e Mitchel Troy HWRC Operations, Development and Management Plan (Viridor
Permitting Team, November 2012);
e Site Emergency & Safety Plan (Viridor TRO 2000);
e Mitchel Troy HWRC site permit and variation notice (EPR/DP3099FV/V005); and
Mitchel Troy HWRC Traffic Management Plan (Viridor, 08/09/2017).

On-site observations made during the site visit were considered in the light of current best
practise on HWRC operations and safety and in the context of the site characteristics
(physical and operational constraints)*. Best practice characteristics of other sites were
compared to the notes and photographs taken during the site visit.

A key element of site safety is the management of the pedestrian movements and traffic
flows in relation to site patrons both public and commercial, along with the movement of
large vehicles and site plant. The interaction between all of these was observed and
reviewed, and has been commented upon.

All of the on-site operations including the handling of materials by the public and site staff,
plant and equipment operation, and arrangements for the removal of materials were
assessed for their operational health & safety implications. Where possible this was done by

* WASTE 26 — Managing Health & Safety at Civic Amenity Sites — Issue 1 2015; https://wishforum.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2017/02/WASTE-26-.pdf

Page 67

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 30


https://wishforum.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/WASTE-26-.pdf
https://wishforum.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/WASTE-26-.pdf

direct observation however times constrains meant that much of the information relating to
plant and equipment operation was obtained via interviews with staff.

5.1.3 Report

The intention of this report is to provide a document which draws together the elements of
the project - the site visit and review of available documents — to provide a number of
potential learning points and recommendations which the council should take into account as
it considers the future options for HWRC provision across the county.

5.2 Traffic Assessment

5.2.1 Access to the Site

Figure 20 shows the site and its access road in relation to the surrounding road
infrastructure.

The HWRC has adequate access from the highway, the B4293, and has a separate entrance
and exit from the adjacent Highways Depot.

During the time of the site assessment the site was quiet with no traffic queuing to enter the
site. It is understood that the access road is not sufficiently long to allow traffic accessing the
site to queue and that during site operations such as container servicing and compaction
(using the roller-packer) users are turned away from the site.

Figure 21 shows the top set of access gates to the site; a further set of gates are located at
the beginning of the access road. These gates enable the site to be closed to users when site
operations are being undertaken during opening hours.

Figure 20: Overview of Mitchel Troy HWRC showing site access road (Google Maps
11/02/2019

Mitchel Teay
' Recycling Ceatre
i ! §

’

Page 68

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 31



]. gt
}

(e BT

5.2.2 Site Description

Figure 22 (Viridor Site Safety Plan TRO 2000) shows the current layout and path of traffic on
the site. The site is arranged in a horse-shoe shape with a central operational area which
houses a rail operated roller-packer machine.

The site is of split level design which enables users to access the six rollon-rolloff containers
from the top section of the site. There is a Highways Depot to the west and below the site.

5.2.3 Vehicle Movements

The most hazardous activity on HWRC sites is the movement of vehicles in the proximity of
pedestrians. Of all vehicle movements, reversing is the most hazardous. During the visit
HWRC traffic flows were observed at first hand.

The HWRC benefits from a dedicated one way system. Figure 22 shows in-bound traffic
flows in blue whilst out-bound traffic flows are shown in red.

Users enter the site via the dedicated access road and continue past the plasterboard and
rubble containers are the roller-packer machine before continuing up the ramp to upper level
of the site where roll-on roll-off 40 cubic yard open top containers are provided for the
deposit of scrap metal, wood, cardboard, general waste and garden waste (Figure 25).

Users may also park on the lower area of the site, in the area in front of the roller-packer
machine (Figure 23) to access containers in the pedestrian area of the site which is located
to the west of the one-way system.

Page 69

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 32



Parking bays are marked out for users in both the lower and upper sections of the site. The
configuration of parking bays in the lower parking area require users to reverse either into or
out of the parking bay. Users are encouraged to reverse park to reduce the risks associated
in reversing out into the flow of traffic. Parking bays in the upper area of the site are marked
out parallel to the traffic flow.

Public access to all containers is either within the pedestrian area (western area of the site)
or mainly via marked walkways. Some areas of the site such as the plasterboard and rubble
containers have no segregated marked walkways. However, the risk to users is considered to
be low because it is likely that they will be shielded by the vehicle they are unloading.

Once a container is full or the roller-packer (Figure 24) is required to compact materials in
one or more of the rollon-rolloff containers, a member of site staff prevents further users
from accessing the site. Once the site is empty the gates are closed and the required
operation undertaken.

It is understood that the site is closed between four and five times per day at peak times for
compaction to take place. This operation can take up to 45 minutes to complete as the
roller-packer machine, which was installed in 1993, operates slowly. In addition, between
three and four container changes per day can be required at peak times; taking between 25
and 30 minutes to complete each time. Where possible these two operations are undertaken
at the same time to reduce down-time however there can still be a considerable amount of
site down time during peak times. This causes frustration for users as the nature of the
surrounding road infrastructure means that it is unsafe for traffic to queue leading to staff
turning users away from the site. Downtime therefore needs to be minimised as much as
possible.

Users exit the HWRC via the one-way system. A 5mph speed limit is in force on the site with
signs located at strategic points on site and at the site entrance at a height that ensures that
they are not obscured by traffic.

Page 70

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 33



T/ obed

Figure 22: Mitchel Troy HWRC Site Safety Plan (Viridor TRO 2000)

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 34



Figure 23: User vehicles Parked in front of the Roller-Packer machine (to the right)

Page 72

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 35




Figure 25: User Vehicles Parked in Parallel Bays and Dedicated Pedestrian Walkway
(E.How 31/01/2019
=3 e B

5.3  Operational H&S Review

5.3.1 Location

The HWRC is located on land at Mitchel Troy (national grid reference SO 50764 11682). The
site lies to the north east of the village of Mitchel Troy and to the south-east of the town of
Monmouth along the B4293 road.

5.3.2 Access Road

Metalled roadway (B4293) with adequate drainage. The road to the site rises steeply from
the B4293 and takes the user up into the site via a sharp left-hand bend. The road provides
access for both users and service vehicles; the road terminates at the site.

The allowance for vehicles to enter the site without impeding the B4293 is insufficient. There
is a bend on the B4293 at the point where the site access road leaves/joins it and this
together with the current speed limit of 60mph means that turning right into the access road
when travelling from the direction of Monmouth can be challenging.

5.3.3 Opening Times
Mitchel Troy HWRC is currently operational between 0800 and 1800 7 days a week and
closed on Christmas Day, Boxing Day and New Year’s Day.

5.3.4 Staffing

The HWRC is staffed by two operatives who are on site during operating hours. The Area
Charge Hand who looks after both Mitchel Troy and Usk HWRCs is on hand throughout the
day. The staff members assist the public in using the HWRC and control user traffic
movements.

Page 73

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 36



5.3.5 Site Activities

There is separation and bulking of materials but no processing. Trade waste is not accepted
on the site and there is no weighbridge. All site activities are carried out within the permit
boundary.

5.3.6 Tonnage throughput
The current HWRC tonnage throughput for the year 2017/18 is provided in Table 3.

Table 3: Tonnage Throughput 2017/18

Stream Tonnes
Recycling
Automotive batteries 11
Card 110
Mixed cans 0
Mixed glass 42
Other Scrap metal 153
Paper 25
Plastics 2
Textiles & footwear
Mineral Qil 1
Mixed tyres
Paint 1
Plasterboard 60
Vegetable Oil
WEEE - TVs & Monitors 21
WEEE - Fluorescent tubes and other light bulbs 1
WEEE - Fridges & Freezers 42
WEEE - Large Domestic App 33
WEEE - Small Domestic App 97
Wood 455
Green garden waste only 698
Rubble 282
Sub Total 2,033
Re-Use
Gas bottles 3
Textiles & footwear 21
Books 3
Sub Total | 27
Residual
Civic amenity sites waste : Household 1,859
Sub Total 1,859
Total | 3,919
Re-use & Recycling Rate (Including plasterboard & rubble) 53%

Page 74

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 37



Stream Tonnes

%o residual | 47%

5.3.7 Neighbours
The site is in a rural location with no immediate neighbours except for the adjacent
Monmouthshire Council Highways Depot.

5.3.8 Traffic Separation

Traffic separation is currently in place on the site. There is segregation of HWRC user vehicle
from HWRC service vehicles via site design (split level area) and via the deployment of a
traffic management system.

5.3.9 Dust, Noise & Odour
No dust or odour problems were observed.

5.3.10 Site Surface
The vehicular and pedestrian areas and areas of waste storage are laid to asphalt and
reinforced concrete hard standing. No pot-holes or areas of concern were noted.

5.3.11 Site Drainage

Drainage was not observed to be an issue on the site. A drainage plan for the site was not
available however the Viridor Operations Manager believes that suitable and sufficient
drainage is in place on the site.

5.3.12 User Pedestrian and Vehicle Movements

Clear signage at the site entrance together with road markings including directional arrows,
parallel parking bays (along the top section of the site) and pedestrian walkways. These
markings are worn in places and would benefit from being repainted.

Pedestrian and vehicles were not adequately separated in the main areas of the site — there
were no traffic barriers between pedestrians and user vehicles. Consideration should be
given to installing traffic barriers or bollards to separate pedestrians from user
vehicles.

There is limited separation between site users and the roller-packer machine which is located
in the central service area of the site. This service area is cordoned off by movable traffic
barriers but it is difficult to see how an alternative solution could be installed without
impeding the timely changeover of the rollon-rolloff containers. In addition the configuration
of the rollon-rolloff containers for user loading means that the roller-packer is required to
redistribute the contents to allow the containers to be filled evenly. Consideration should be
given to alternative arrangements with regards to how these containers are filled. Clearly the
current container configuration makes the best use of the available space, however to
minimise down-time associated with the use of the roller-packer (up to 5 x 45 minutes per
day at peak times) and to reduce the need to turn users away from the site consideration
should be given to replacing the roller-packer machine with compaction units and
closed rollon-rolloff containers for general waste, cardboard, garden waste and
wood and locating the scrap metal container to the last container position,
currently the garden waste container, where its long side can be accessed by the
yellow metal walkway already provided.

An alternative option would be for a modern roller-packer machine to be installed that is
capable of operating at a quicker speed however there would still be down time associated
with its use.

Page 75

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 38



5.3.13 General Site House Keeping
The site was clean and tidy with no windblown litter observed on verges, boundary fencing
or under/behind containers.

5.3.14 Site Signage
In general, both off-site and on-site signage was observed to be clear, in good condition and
at an appropriate height so that it was not obscured by traffic.

5.3.15 Containers and Storage Areas
Various containers are provided for the deposit of a range of materials. All containers where
observed to be in either reasonable or good serviceable condition.

5.4  Conclusions
The site is a well-managed but suffers from space constraints that mean that at peak times it
is failing to meet the needs of users.

The aspects of the site that have the potential to have a negative impact on the Health and
Safety on-site are:

e The potential for site users to park and or queue up at the bottom gate or along the
B4293 whilst the site is closed for operational reasons; and

e Site users reversing into the flow of traffic from the parking bays in front of the roller-
packer.

5.5 Recommendations

e The site would benefit from having compaction units on the general waste,
cardboard, garden waste and wood containers and the relocation of the scrap-metal
container to the current location of the garden waste container. Although an
alternative option would be for a modern roller-packer machine to be installed that is
capable of operating at a quicker speed there would still be down time associated
with its use.

e In addition, the site would benefit from having the road markings refreshed especially
at the lower section of the site where they are most worn.

Page 76

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 39



6.0 Usk HWRC

6.1.1 Site Visit

A site visit was conducted on the 31st of January 2019 between 11:45 and 15:30 by Emma
How, Specialist Technical Advisor, Eunomia Research & Consulting to assess the site in terms
of site Operational Health and Safety (OH&S) systems and practices. Emma was
accompanied Anne Tucker (Waste Data Flow Manager, Monmouthshire County Council); Pete
Somer (Operations Manager, Viridor) and Jason Edwards (Site Supervisor, Viridor).

As a part of the site visit conversations were conducted with relevant staff to understand
issues relevant to the site, and to understand what operational changes might already be
being considered going forwards.

Observations were made which where possible, which included:
e how householders use the site;
e material deposit, storage and dispatch;
e use of plant and equipment;
e how traffic and plant movements are managed.

The site visit also took into account site related activities outside of the permitted boundary
such as:

o traffic/pedestrian movements;

e site access (user and service vehicles); and

e how traffic / pedestrian movements are managed.

6.1.2 Data Gathering
The observational information gathered during the site visit was assessed alongside a review
of the information provided by the Council and Viridor. Based on initial discussions with the
Council at the project inception meeting, the information provided for the Usk HWRC site
included:

e Usk Site Boundary Plan (USK TS 14000);

e LRS Site Survey — Usk (Usk HWRC, Site Report 23/01/2014);

e Usk HWRC Operations, Development and Management Plan (Viridor Permitting Team,

August 2014);
e Site Emergency & Safety Plan (Viridor USK 2000); and
e Usk HWRC site permit and variation notices (various)

On-site observations made during the site visit were considered in the light of current best
practise on HWRC operations and safety and in the context of the site characteristics
(physical and operational constraints)°. Best practice characteristics of other sites were
compared to the notes and photographs taken during the site visit.

A key element of site safety is the management of the pedestrian movements and traffic
flows in relation to site patrons both public and commercial, along with the movement of
large vehicles and site plant. The interaction between all of these was observed and
reviewed, and has been commented upon.

All of the on-site operations including the handling of materials by the public and site staff,
plant and equipment operation, and arrangements for the removal of materials were
assessed for their operational health & safety implications. Where possible this was done by

5 WASTE 26 — Managing Health & Safety at Givic Amenity Sites — Issue 1 2015; https.//wishforum.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2017/02/WASTE-26-.pdf

Page 77

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 40


https://wishforum.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/WASTE-26-.pdf
https://wishforum.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/WASTE-26-.pdf

direct observation however times constrains meant that much of the information relating to
plant and equipment operation was obtained via interviews with staff.

6.1.3 Report

The intention of this report is to provide a document which draws together the elements of
the project - the site visit and review of available documents — to provide a number of
potential learning points and recommendations which the council should take into account as
it considers the future options for HWRC provision across the county.

6.2  Traffic Assessment

6.2.1 Access to the Site

Figure 26 shows the site and its access road via the car-park in relation to the surrounding
road infrastructure. The yellow area of hatching has been provided to enable HGVs servicing
the site to leave through the car park using a more direct and safer route than following the
car-park one-way system.

Figure 26: Location of Usk HWRC (Blue star
Coffen House -/ b ““"\"\ b : :

The HWRC has adequate access from the highway; Maryport Street; although this is through
the public carpark using its one —way system.

During the time of the site assessment the site was quiet with no traffic queuing to enter the
site. It is understood that the car-park one-way system is sufficient to accommodate queues
from the HWRC at peak times without users queuing back out on to Maryport Street.

Figure 27 shows the new access gates to the additional operational area within which users
can park their vehicles to unload before entering the site on foot.

These gates also enable the site to be closed to users when site operations are being
undertaken during opening hours; the additional area enables HGVs to manoeuvre more
easily.

Figure 28 shows the original site entry/exit which is now a pedestrian access only.

Page 78

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 41



Figure 27: ]Eggrnal Site Gates looking towards the public car-park. (E.How 31/01/2019

“ i .

Page 79

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 42



6.2.2 Site Description

Figure 29 (Viridor Site Safety Plan USK 2000) shows the current layout and path of service
traffic on the site.

Users enter the site on foot carrying there materials. An additional member of staff has been
deployed to assisted users with their materials so that there are now two staff members
available at all times.

Containers are arranged around the edges of the site with access to the roll-on roll-off 40
cubic yard open top containers for garden waste, wood, general waste and scrap metal all
accessed via stepped metal gantries (Figure 30). The surface of the steps and walk ways of
these gantries have recently been upgraded from perforated metal treads to solid checker-
plate treads to reduce the risk of users slipping, tripping or falling. Whilst this is an obvious
improvement over the previous material consideration should be given to
incorporating metal risers into the gaps between the treads to prevent feet being
caught between them when ascending the stairway.

Due to space constraints the site is unable to accommodate materials such as rubble or
plasterboard and this material is currently not accepted.

Figure 29: Usk HWRC Site Plan

1iI.,."'i Tedor

Trassforring was”

T

- A 1:-—-
=1t —
———————| =
r_1 o
e e 1822S
i e, j—
i == =
] = =
L —— et
T — et e
p— ———
Lo, b rm——
v #mm—= | e oRsNE 1S
B UNCONTRELLES
—— CONTAGT 00,
o - FOE L].THT|M
= 2o g ). |

5 o = -
i Ra = v
- - CA e
E E E i

Page 80

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 43



Figure 30: Containers Accessed via Stepped Metal Gantries SE.How 31/01/2019)

-

- -

6.2.3 Vehicle Movements

The most hazardous activity on HWRC sites is the movement of vehicles in the proximity of
pedestrians. Of all vehicle movements, reversing is the most hazardous. During the visit
HWRC traffic flows were observed at first hand.

The HWRC is a pedestrian only site with users parking in the newly designated parking area
just outside of the permitted boundary. Marked parking bays are provided in the additional
operational area however they are now faded and require refreshing (Figure 31).

Page 81

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 44



Once a container is full a member of site staff prevents further users from accessing both the
additional operational area of the site and the site itself. Once the site and the additional
operational area are empty the service vehicle enters the additional operational area and the
gates are closed and locked and the required operation undertaken.

It is understood that the site is closed between two and three times per day at peak times
for container exchanges to take place. This operation can take up to 20 minutes for rollon-
rolloff containers. There can be a considerable amount of site down time during peak times
which causes queuing in the public carpark. It is understood from conversation with the Site
Supervisor and Operations Manager that only empty containers are manoeuvred outside of
the permitted area and that all waste movements are contained within the permitted area.

Once the operation has been completed the service vehicle leaves the site and travels across
the carpark via the designated HGV exit lane.

A 5mph speed limit is in force in the public car park and in the additional operational area
with signs located at strategic points and at a height that ensures that they are not obscured
by traffic.

6.3  Operational H&S Review

6.3.1 Location

The HWRC is located on land at Usk (national grid reference SO 37557 00738). The site lies
to the rear of the Maryport Street (North) Carpark.

Page 82

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 45



6.3.2 Access Road

Access to the site is directly through the Maryport Street (North) car park which is has a
metalled surface. User traffic uses the carparks one-way system to enter and exit the site.
A dedicated exit route for site service vehicle has been installed within the carpark.
Drainage details for the carpark are not available although surface drains where observed
during the site visit.

The allowance for vehicles to enter the site without impeding the flow of the carpark is
insufficient. User traffic queues back into the car-park at peak times. However, traffic queues
do not reach Maryport Street.

6.3.3 Opening Times
Usk HWRC is currently operational between 0800 and 1800 7 days a week and closed on
Christmas Day, Boxing Day and New Year’s Day.

6.3.4 Staffing

The HWRC is staffed by two operatives who are on site during operating hours. The Area
Charge Hand who looks after both Mitchel Troy and Usk HWRCs is on hand throughout the
day. The staff members assist the public in using the HWRC and control user traffic
movements.

6.3.5 Site Activities

There is separation and bulking of materials but no processing. Trade waste is not accepted
on the site and there is no weighbridge on site.

All site activities are carried out within the permit boundary including changing of rollon-
rolloff containers.

6.3.6 Tonnage throughput
The current HWRC tonnage throughput for the year 2017/18 is provided in Table 4.
Table 4: Tonnage Throughput 2017/18

Stream Tonnes

Recycling

Automotive batteries 2

Card 118

Mixed cans

Mixed glass 47

Other Scrap metal 164

Paper 54

Plastics 2

Textiles & footwear

Mineral QOil 5

Mixed tyres 20

Paint 7

Plasterboard

Vegetable Oil

WEEE - TVs & Monitors 37

WEEE - fluorescent tubes and other light bulbs 1

WEEE - Fridges & Freezers 45
Page 83

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 46



Stream Tonnes

WEEE - Large Domestic App 43
WEEE - Small Domestic App 86
Wood 467
Green garden waste only 366
Rubble

Sub Total 1,465
Re-Use
Gas bottles 2
Textiles & footwear 16
Books 5

Sub Total | 22
Residual
Civic amenity sites waste : Household 1,608

Sub Total | 1,608

Total 3,095

Re-use & Recycling Rate (Including plasterboard & rubble) 48%

%o residual | 52%

6.3.7 Neighbours

The site is the centre of the town of Usk. Private car parking for adjacent businesses is
situated to the north of the site; the Maryport (North) public car park which is owned and
operated by Monmouthshire Council is situated to the east of the site; domestic and
commercial premises are located to the west of the site; and an area formerly designated as
part of the Maryport (North) car park is located to the south of the site.

6.3.8 Traftic Separation

During 2017 traffic separation was improved on the site with the designation of the car
parking area directly to the south of the site re-designated as parking for HWRC site users
only and gates installed to delineate the new area from the rest of the public car-park. Site
users may park in one of six designated user spaces and carry their items onto the site.
Figure 32 shows the current permitted area of the site in red whilst the extended area of
operation (additional operational area) is shown in green.

Page 84

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 47




Figure 32: Usk Site Viridor Plan (USK 2000)

THIS DRAWING 12
UNCONTROLLED
CONTALT D.O.
POR LATEST 5508
= O |

[EEET | a- |

- |~ u:a:u:n]

T

6.3.9 Dust, Noise & Odour
No dust or odour problems were observed.

6.3.10 Site Surface

The vehicular and pedestrian areas and areas of waste storage are laid to asphalt and
reinforced concrete hard standing. A number of areas of concern were noted in the
additional operational area which accommodates the parking bays for users to park whilst
they off load their materials and walk them into the site. Consideration should therefore be
given to resurfacing the additional operational area.

Page 85

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 48



Ei_gt_l_re 33: Area within the Designated

SRRt

Pgrking Area that require Resurfacing

& s = et e

6.3.11 Site Drainage

Drainage is understood to be of concern. A drainage plan for the site was not available. In
addition it is understood that the drainage channel in the designated user carpark, which is
currently blocked, will be filled in by the council thus reducing drainage capacity.

The Viridor Operations Manager believes that there is an interceptor which drains into the
car-park drainage system however the car-park drainage system is likely to drain to a
surface water drainage system and not to a foul sewer system (i.e. public sewer). Schedule
C. 6 of the site permit states that:

All drainage from surfaced areas shall discharge via a trapped gulley system to an
appropriately sized oil/petrol interceptor. Discharge from the interceptor shall be either to a
public sewer or via a sub-soil irrigation system laid as shallow a depth as possible. The
design of the soakaway must conform to B.S.6297 and no part of the soakaway system is to
be sited within 10 meters of any watercourse. The oil / petrol phase of the discharge shall be
disposed of at a waste disposal site, licenced to receive such waste®.

Drainage of surface water from the HWRC directly into the surface water drainage system
would not conform to the requirements as set out in the site permit and provided above.
Therefore, further investigation to determine the status of the drainage
arrangement should be undertaken.

¢ Usk CA Site, Waste Management Licence 4/93

Page 86

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 49



6.3.12 User Pedestrian and Vehicle Movements
Clear signage at the site entrance to the site indicate that the site accepts foot traffic only.
On arrival users are directed by signs to the adjacent designated parking area.

6.3.13 General Site House Keeping
The site was clean and tidy with no windblown litter observed on verges, boundary fencing
or under/behind containers.

6.3.14 Site Signage
In general, both off-site and on site signage was observed to be clear, in good condition and
at an appropriate height so that it was not obscured by traffic.

6.3.15 Containers and Storage Areas

Various containers are provided for the deposit of a range of materials. All containers where
observed to be in either reasonable or good serviceable condition.

6.4  Conclusions

The site is a well-managed but suffers from space constraints that mean that at peak times it
is failing to meet the needs of users.

The aspects of the site that have the potential to have a negative impact on the Health and
Safety on-site are:

e Users having to queue around the public car-park at peak times when containers are
being serviced;

e The risks associated with the use of stepped metal gantries to access waste
containers remains although it has been reduced with the upgrading of the gantry
surface and deployment of an additional staff member to assist users;

e Risk associated by users reversing into/out of the parking bays in the additional
operational area;

e The uneven surface of part of the additional operational area; and

e Although not a Health & Safety issue per se the status of the drainage arrangements
for the site is a concern with regards to compliance with the site permit.

6.5 Recommendations

e The constraints of the site mean that it will not be possible to remove the stepped
gantries if the site continues to use the current complement of containers and,
deploying smaller containers that are accessible from ground level will necessitate an
increase in the number of container changes required which increase the risks
associated with HGV movements through the public car-park and users queuing.
However, it is noted that 52% of waste deposited at the site is residual waste
therefore by removing the option for users to deposit this material at the site the
tonnage throughput and therefore the number of users will be reduced thus reducing
the overall risks associated with the site.

e Resurfacing and remarking the parking area in the additional operational area.

e Determining the arrangements for drainage on site and the potential for improving
these to ensure compliance with the site permit.

Page 87

WRAP — Monmouthshire HWRC Compliance and Health & Safety Review 50



www.wrapcymru.org.uk/ccp

el 6
P ag e 8 8 Help r\"\)l:les reduce I'eC)’Cl e
it:
.‘.o‘

its Carbon Footprint ai|gy|ChU



Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru
Welsh Local Government Association *

CLILC - WLGA

Waste Finance Data
Report 2017-18

June 2019




Executive Summary

1. Continuing the work begun in 2008/09, the WLGA Waste Improvement
Programme has, with the support of all 22! Welsh local authorities,
undertaken an analysis of the waste finance data for financial year 2017-
18.

2. The 2017-18 finance data shows that the recycling rate for Wales
decreased for the first time. Dropping from 63.8% in 2016/17 to 62.7%.
During this time Net and Gross costs both decreased slightly, dropping by
less than 1%. The graph below plots the indexed net cost of MSW waste
services from 2008/9 to 2017/18 with indexed performance over the same
time period.

Total net aggregated costs

180

160

[y
I
=

[y
(]
[=]

=
o
(=]

[0.1]
[=]

=)
o

Indexed Cost/Performance

I
[e=]

20

0
2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

e |ndexed cost Indexed performance

3. The data supplied by authorities via WastedataFlow has undergone a
quality assurance process by the Waste Improvement Programme. Data
was subsequently analysed using the WLGA'’s financial modelling tool. The
results of the modelling work are included in the body of this report.
Where possible, comparisons have been drawn with data from previous
years.

1 Partial data received from Denbighshire (Residual, Dry Recycling & Food waste).
Remainder has been estimated using 2016/17 expenditure

Page 90



4. Whilst a high level analysis is provided in some places the report does not
analyse national or local differences. Explaining why changes have
occurred is a role for the benchmarking process and is presented to Local
Authority officers during the annual waste finance seminars, a role for the
wider Waste Improvement Programme run by the WLGA in partnership
with the WG Collaborative Change Programme.

Key Findings

5. Between 2016/17 and 2017/18 recycling performance has decreased by
1.1 percentage points. Expenditure in real terms (adjusted for inflation)
reduced over the same time period.

6. In 2017/18, gross expenditure decreased slightly from £281.6m to
£280.6m, a decrease of 0.5%. CPI for the 12 months to April 2018 was
2.83% so this represents a greater reduction in expenditure in real terms.

7. Net expenditure on waste services was £242.5m increasing by just 30k
compared to 2016/17.

8. The difference in gross and net expenditure was smaller in 2017/18 due
to slightly less income being received from trade waste services.

9. Overall net expenditure on household waste services? (Dry Recycling,
Organic, Residual, CA and Bring) decreased by 0.6% in 2017/18 to
£231.2m. This represents a decrease in expenditure of just £1.3m
compared to the 2016/17 figure of £232.5m.

10.Investment in organic waste services has decresed very slightly in
2017/18. Expenditure decreased by 1.1% to £48m. During this period an
additional 11,744 (10%) tonnes of food waste was collected compared to
2016/17.

11.Expenditure on residual waste services decreased slightly from £85m to
£84m demonstrating the benefits of increased recycling, composting and
reducing frequency of collection.

12.Kerbside dry recycling costs increased slightly by £1m overall to £55.8m in
2017/18. During the same period, the mass of dry recyclate collected also
increased slightly by 517t.

13.HWRC expenditure decreased from £43 to £42m in 2017/18. At the same
time the proportion of Household waste received at HWRCs remained the
same at 31%.

2 figure excludes: trade waste, clinical waste, procurement of waste treatment, Consultants fees, awareness raising
costs and costs associated with other MSW which are recorded elsewhere

Page 91



14.Between 2016/17 and 2017/18 bring site expenditure decreased by
£83,000, a reduction of nearly 6%. During the same period mass collected
via the bring site network reduced by 2,933 tonnes (15%) continuing a
longer term trend.

15.The table below demonstrates the differences in net expenditure on the
household service elements:

16-17 17-18 % Performance
change | change?®

Dry £54,728,683 | £55,816,228 +2.0% | +0.2%
recycling
Residual | £84,753,568 | £83,799,039 -1.1% | -3.4%
waste
Organic £48,462,082 | £47,940,387 -1.1% | -0.6%
waste
CA/HWRC | £43,226,539 | £42,364,126 -2.0% |-2.2%
Bring £1,419,204 | £1,335,542 -5.9% |-15.5%
Total 232,590,076 | £231,255,322  -0.6% |[-2.3%

16.Overall re-use, recycling and composting rates have decreased for the first
time from 63.8% in 2016/17 to 62.7% in 2017/8. Changes to how the
end destination of wood is reported and a reduction in Incinerator Bottom
Ash (IBA) due to the closure of a facility, led to a 1.5 percentage point
decrease in overall recycling rate.

17.However, the the amount of material recycled at the kerbside (i.e from
household recycling collections) actually increased slightly. These changes
are summarised below.

Tonnes Tonnes Change
Recycled & | Recycled &
recycling % | % points
points contributed
contributed | to recycling
to recycling | performance
performance | 17-18

16-17
Kerbside 504,326 504,955 +0.9%
Dry 31.7% 32.6%
recycling &
Composting
IBA & | 97,144.32 84,092 -0.7%
Metals 6.1% 5.4%
from IBA

3 9% difference in tonnage collected between 2016/17 and 2017/18

Page 92



Contents

EXECULIVE SUMIMAIY ...ttt e e et e e e e e e e e e e aanaas 1
KeY FINAINGS ..o 3
INEFOAUCTION ... 6
Detailed FINAINGS .......oooiiiiiiiiieeeeee e 7
TOtal SEIVICE DALA ...ccooee oo 7
8T o) B ] = | PR 8
Waste ColleCted DY LAS........uiiie e e e e e eaaens 9
Household Waste ServiCe COSIES........uuuuuiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiise e eeeeeeeees 11
[ YA =T o3 Yo [ T USRI 13
Total dry recycling SErviCE COST......ccoeieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 13
What are the graphs telling US? .......ccooriiiiiiiiii e 15
(@] 1T o 1[0 o PP 16
TrANSTEE COSES it 18
TrealMENT COSTS ... e e e e eaanes 18
INCOIMIE .. et e e e e e e e e en s 19
OrganiC WaSHLE SEIVICES .......uuuuuuuuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiessnnsaseenenseeneneseaeeeeesasenneennnne 21
FOOA WASEE ONIY ...t e e e e e e eenens 21
GrEEN WASTE ONIY ...ttt eenneee 22
Co-mingled food and green Waste ............coovvviiiviiiie e e 24
(@] [Tt 1[0 o I o0 1] £ PSR 26
Separate food waste COIECHION ..........ccoveiiiiiiic e 27
Separate green waste COIECHION ...........uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaees 28
Combined food and green WaSte .........cooeeeeivviiiiiiiiie e 29
TreatMENT COSES ... e e e e et e eeeaaan s 30
Separate fOOd WASTE .........ciii i 30
Separate gre€n WASTE ........cooiiiiiiiiiie e 31
Combined food and green WaSte .........ccocoevivviiiiiiiii e 32
Transfer, disposal and INCOME.........ccoiiviiiiiiiiie e 34
Combined kerbside recycling & composting SErvices ..........cccoeeeeeeeeveveennnnnnnn. 34
RESIAUAI WASTE ...ttt e e e e e e et e e e e e e e eeeeene 36
(@F0]|1=Tox 1T0] g I o0 1] (=T 38
B = U S (= G 00 1 £ 39
Treatment / ProCeSSING COSES ....uuuiiiiiiiiiiiii e 41
DISPOSAL ..o 42
Household Waste Recycling CeNtreS........cooeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiie e eeeennns 44
BIING SIES ..o 47
Trade WASIE SEIVICE ....ccooiiiieiiiiie et 49
Nappy and other AHP COolIeCtioNS............ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee 49
CHNICAI WASTE ...t e e e e e 50
The Next Stage — Improvement GroUPS .......cooooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 51

5

Page 93



Introduction

The Waste Improvement Programme is funded by the Welsh Government and
has been in existence since 2007. This followed on from a programme where
all authorities underwent a ‘peer review’ of waste management services.
Initially focusing on assessing services in Welsh local authorities and sharing
good practice.

Work is currently targeted at supporting authorities in increasing efficiency of
waste management activities. This includes the collection of financial data on
delivering MSW waste services and the benchmarking of cost variations to
identify how services can be delivered at lower cost whilst improving
performance.

Process

All costs are based around the waste management Revenue Outturn (R/O) of
each authority, giving a control figure to cross reference to.

Local Authority waste expenditure data has always been collected consistently
(in line with the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice). Wastedataflow (a
database for collecting tonnage data from waste activities) has been adapted
in Wales to accept tonnage data and waste financial data creating a single
point of data entry. Once tonnage data and finance data is entered into the
system a series of reports can be generated.

As in previous years, data extracted from WasteDataFlow required a cleansing
to remove nomalies. This process took place between September 2018 and
April 2019. It is envisaged a similar period of data validation will be required
in future years. Work is undertaken by the Waste Improvement team in
conjunction with individual local authorities.

In some cases Local Authority figures in isolation may appear anomalous and
may not present the whole picture; this can be due to apportionment.
Apportionment may take place between shared services and between the
collection, transfer and treatment process.

During summer 2019 WLGA will convene a working group of finance and

waste officers from a range of authorities to review the guidance and
methodology to help ensure consistency of reporting.

Page 94



Detailed Findings

Total Service Data

1. From the data it can be seen that overall gross expenditure on waste
services during 2017/18 was £280,596,845 (£242,506,879 net of income).
This represents a decrease of £1,034,452 when compared to the 2016/17
figure of £281,631,297 a drop of 0.5%.

2. Total expenditure continues to fall following a period of significant
investment, supported by the SWMG (Sustainable Waste Management
Grant)?. The amount of direct support has been reducing over recent
years and local authorities have also reduced expenditure as a result of
severe budget cuts.

3. Between 2016/17 and 2017/18 the income local authorities received from
selling dry recyclables increased by 4% from £6,812,851 to £7,068,417 in
2107/18

4. Figure 1 shows how net expenditure on all waste services has changed in
the nine years since the finance project began. Costs have been adjusted
for inflation and are indexed using the 2008/09 data as a baseline. It can
be seen that expenditure in real terms has remained stable over the last
nine years, but has fallen for the last three. During the same period
recycling rates have increased significantly, from 35.6% in 2008/09 to
62.7% in 2017/18. However, this is lower than the 63.8% achieved in
2016/17.

5. This decrease was due to two main factors. First, changes to the the
reporting of wood recycling to better account for rejected material has led
to a decrease of 0.8 percentage points overall. Secondly, the amount of
Incinerator Bottom Ash has declined by 0.7 percentage points due to the
closure of a facility and and associated increase in waste sent to landfill for
a small number of authorities. However, the amount of waste recycled and
composted from the kerbside actually increased slightly, increasing by 0.9
percentage points.

4 Between 2015/16 and 2017/18 this was the Single Revenue Grant (SRG)

Page 95



Total net aggregated costs

180
160
140

120

100

80

60

Indexed Cost/Performance

40
20

0
2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

e |ndexed cost Indexed performance

Figure 1 — Total net costs

6.

8.

The total amount of SRG allocated to local authorities in 2017/18 totalled
£61.8m of this £58m was allocated against waste services.

10 out of 22 local authorities have demonstrated a reduction in
expenditure compared to 2016/17. The data collection exercise does not
determine “why” these changes have been made, but it is intended, via
the CSS facilitated benchmarking process to further investigate the factors
affecting service costs.

Use of Grants®

The graph in Figure 2 below shows total net expenditure on waste
services for each local authority during financial year 2017/18.
Contribution made by grant allocation is represented as ‘hatched’ area.
Expenditure is shown on a cost per household basis.

5 Grants = Sustainable Waste Management / Single Revenue Grant plus other grants received e.g. procurement
support, SCIF, RCAF,

Page 96



Total Net System Costs Per Household Per Authority
2017-18
350
300

250

200
£
150
- ! !
50 L s * ¥
AR N v ’ A, 7,
BLLLLL L5000 5 054222477
bggmmmmmc:m = 2 T W = v -
2t g3:285858 328838 :85¢8 873
msﬁv—'ggggwsgg S T 5 o £
a D 5> = 3 = @ = @ 2 5 “ ® 2 =
T = 2 = = = > 5 o = o = 9 = @
<~ 9 == z 3 gz ®° 2 4 S T3 “ 3
= g = = 3 =T 9
T m

# Grants mUrban Rural mValley

Figure 2 — Total System Costs per household 2017/18

9. This graph demonstrates that on a per household basis, grants are
distributed fairly evenly across the group. As the graph shows only
revenue grants, (capital grants are not shown) authorities that attribute a
greater proportion of Single Revenue Grant (SRG) to capital projects will
exhibit a lower value for revenue grant per household relative to the group
as a whole, whilst authorities in receipt of additional grants, such as RCAF,
SCIF and PFI payments, may exhibit higher relative levels of grant.

10.The majority (96%) of total net expenditure results from the provision of
services directly to the householder: Dry Recycling, Organic Waste,
Residual Waste, CA and Bring sites.

Waste Collected by LAs

11.The following graphs show the proportion of wastes managed for each of
the services provided by mass. This provides context against which the

costs can be assessed.

12.Kerbside residual waste and waste collected from HWRC (Residual and
Recycling) are the largest sources, each accounting for 31% of household

waste.

Page 97



Total Waste Collected per Household Waste Stream 2017-18

Anglesey
Blaenau Gwent
Bridgend
Caerphilly
Cardiff
Carmarthenshire
Ceredigion
Conwy
Denbighshire
Flintshire
Gwynedd
Merthyr Tydfil
Monmouthshire
NPT

Newport
Pembrokeshire
Powys

RCT

Swansea
Torfaen

VoG

Wrexham

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

W Residual m HWRC Dry Recycling Organic Bring

Figure 3 - Source of waste collected®

13.Figure 4 below shows the proportion of overall expenditure taken up by
each of the household waste service areas. Residual waste remains the
biggest area of expenditure accounting for between 21% and 47%. This is
a wide variation seemingly influenced by the tonnage of residual waste
collected and the availability of treatment options post collection. For
example Monmouthshire collected the least residual waste per household
in this year and was able to send all residual waste to EfW as part of
Prosiect Gwyrdd. HWRC accounts for 19% of total expenditure whilst
handling a significant proportion (31%) of all household waste collected.
This suggests that HWRC is proportionally a cheaper way of collecting

material.

6 Does not include trade, clinical, bulky or other MSW.

10
Page 98



% Expenditure Household Waste Services 2017/18

Anglesey
Blaenau Gwent
Bridgend
Caerphilly
Cardiff
Carmarthenshire
Ceredigion
Conwy
Denbighshire
Flintshire
Gwynedd
Merthyr Tydfil
Monmouthshire

Newport

=
3
3

Pembrokeshire
Powys

RCT

Swansea

Torfaen

<
5
&

Wrexham

-20%

=]
£

20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

W Residual (black bag or wheelie bin collection ~ WHWRC Dry {incl. glass, paper, cans, plastic) Organic Bring Sites

Figure 4 — Expenditure by waste service

14.The following data compares expenditure on household waste services
across Welsh local authorities. The Household Waste Service cost is
defined as the aggregated total of cost associated with Kerbside dry
recycling, Kerbside food waste, kerbside green waste, HWRCS, bring sites
and residual waste. Each element includes costs of collection, transfer,
treatment and disposal of waste. Costs associated with trade waste, trade
recycling, clinical waste, bulky waste, procurement of waste treatment,
other MSW and awareness raising costs are not included.

15.Graphs show costs on both a per household and per tonne basis. In
addition, colour coding of graph indicates whether authority is classified as
Urban, Rural or Valleys, further colour coding for dry recycling services
indicates the collection service profile of the authority. Level of grant
allocated to each service area by local authorities is shown as the
‘hatched’ area of the chart. As incomes generated by services will tend to
differ according to type of services in place, expenditure net of income
received is shown in the graphs. In addition to cost data, performance, in
terms of % MSW re-used, recycled and composted is shown, denoted by
the green dashes on the chart.

16.1t is not possible to differentiate between SRG and other smaller grants
when allocated against service area in WDF. Therefore grant contribution
shown in the following graphs includes other grants in addition to SRG.

11
Page 99



Total Net Household Waste Service Costs per Household
per Authority 2017-18

350

300 - - —

250 - -

200

150

100

50

o

.
Aasa|Suy NI |
wamo neuselg NI |
puagpug NI
Aydizey S
wiped S
anysuayewsed SN |
uoiBipatz) NI i
Avuod O |
auysysiquag Nl |
anysivy NI
ppauAmo NS |
mpALMAyen S |
aausyainowuo SN
LdN SN —— |
wodman S |
anysayoiquad S
simod NN |
1 S i
easuems N |
ueepiol SN |
o0A NN i
weyxasmd NN

# Grants mUrban mRural mValley == Performance

Figure 5 - Total household waste service cost per household

Total Net Household Waste Service Costs per Tonne per
Authority 2017-18

300

250

200
£ 150
100

50

Assaisuy N
wed N |
anysuayewse) NN
Amuod NN
aasyBiquag o
aqysivd Ao

womo nevzeld NG
puaspug >

Aydazed S

LoiEIPa12) NN\

prauino XN I
wpALAYen o
anysynowuoy I
LdN SN
wodman o
alysayouquad o l
simod NN
Ly N |
essuems AN |
uaepiol NI
90A NN i
wewxaip SN

r.Grants mUrban mRural mValley ==Performance

Figure 6 — Total household waste service cost per tonne

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

17.0verall net expenditure on household waste services during 2017/18 was
£231,255,322. This represents a decrease in costs of £1,334,755
compared to 2016/17, a decrease of 0.5%. During the same period, the

overall recycling rate for Wales decreased from 63.8% to 62.7%.

Page 100

12



Total Household Waste Service Costs with Recycling Rate

180

160

[y
I
=

[y
(]
[=]

=
o
(=]

[0.1]
[=]

=)
o

Indexed Cost/Performance

I
[e=]

20

0
2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

e |ndexed cost Indexed performance

Figure 7 — Household waste service cost since 2008/09

18.The longer term trend in household waste service costs is shown in Figure
7. It can be seen that costs, adjusted for inflation, have remained farily
stable since 2008/09 but in 2017/18 have reduced for the third
consecutive year. Recycling rates have increased significantly over the
same period but dropped by 1.1 percentage points in 2017/18.

Dry Recycling

19.The following graphs show costs associated with dry recycling services
provided by authorities on both a cost per household and cost per tonne
basis. Service performance, in terms of mass of dry recyclate collected as
a proportion of total MSW, is also shown as orange lines on the chart,
plotted using the axis on right hand side of graph.

Total dry recycling service cost

20.Figure 8 & Figure 9 show the total cost of providing a kerbside recycling
service. Costs shown are net of any income received. Data includes costs
of collection, transfer, treatment and disposal of recyclate. Colour coding
denoting type of collection system in place by authority and contribution
made by grant is retained, the contribution is higher compared to overall
expenditure due to grant expenditure being targeted towards recycling
services and prohibited from residual waste services.

13
Page 101



[ NN\

[ [ NN\,

. L \N\N\\N\\\
o, | N
5 | NN
G 0000
3 N
< [ -
g3 N
7N B \\\\
8 o [ SN
8 > [N NNNNANNNA
m.m (I NN
= [ -
2R | -
> N N\\\
0 [ NN\
> M N\
- | I
5 [ NN
L AN\\W

[ I

Wrexham

VoG

Torfaen
Swansea

RCT

Powys
Pembrokeshire
Newport

NPT
Monmouthshire
Merthyr Tydfil
Gwynedd
Flintshire
Denbighshire
Conwy
Ceredigion
Carmarthenshire
Cardiff
Caerphilly
Bridgend
Blaenau Gwent

Anglesey

7 Grants ®mTwin Stream m Kerbside Sort m Blueprint m Single Stream m Multi Stream == Performance

Figure 8 — Dry recycling service cost per household

Total dry recycling service cost per tonne per authority

2017-18

30%

500

25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

L NN\
i L NN

B NN

i NN

i L NN
I OO0
(I NN

I L

i [ NN

i [N
L NN

L NN ANNAAANANNN

i BRI

I ¥
(I N\

] NNNAWN
000

i AN

i L W\NN

i NANAN
[ NNNNNAN
i [

8S28R88R°
12 o~ o=

450
400
350

£ 250

Wrexham

VoG

Torfaen
Swansea

RCT

Powys
Pembrokeshire
Newport

NPT
Monmouthshire
Merthyr Tydfil
Gwynedd
Flintshire
Denbighshire
Conwy
Ceredigion
Carmarthenshire
Cardiff
Caerphilly
Bridgend
Blaenau Gwent

Anglesey

7 Grants ®mTwin Stream m Kerbside Sort m Blueprint m Single Stream m Multi Stream == Performance

Figure 9 — Dry recycling service cost per tonne

14

Page 102



What are the graphs telling us?

21.Both cost and performance vary significantly. Ideally, services should
deliver high performance, in terms of mass recycled, whilst exhibiting the
lowest cost possible. For example, Bridgend'’s dry recycling service makes
a significant contribution to their overall recycling rate, with 23% of total
MSW being collected via their kerbside collection scheme, whilst service
cost is one of the the lowest seen across the group at £22.70 per
household. What we want to see is a high value recorded against
performance (orange line) and a low value recorded for service cost (solid
bars) — the wider the gap the more effective and efficient the service.

22.0n occasion, the grant figure allocated against a particular service area is
greater than the actual net cost of the service itself. This normally occurs
when an additional source of income is allocated against a service. E.g.
sale of dry recyclate collected via kerbside dry service. To avoid
anomalous results being displayed within the charts, the data shown will
always be the net service cost excluding the grant portion. When the grant
allocated for a particular service is greater than the net service cost, the
lower figure is used and the grant contribution assumed to be 100% of
the net figure.

23.The range of values seen in the data is smaller than in 2016/17. However,
the median cost per household has increased from £36.60 to £39.60 per
household. The median cost per unit mass also increased from to £195.90
to £196.90 per tonne.

24.From the core data it is also possible to compare 2017/18 overall dry
recycling service expenditure with that of 2016/17, in addition it is also
possible to compare the grant contribution to dry recycling services over
the same period:

16/17 17/18 % change
Dry recycling £54,728,683 £55,816,228 +2%
Grant (SRG)’ £26,259,994 £26,670,226 +1.6%

25.Expenditure on dry recyclate services increased by 2% during 2017/18.
Whilst expenditure did increase the mass of material collected also
increased over the same period. Mass collected increased by 517 tonnes,
an increase of 0.2%. It can be seen that almost 50% of expenditure on
dry recyclate services is supported by grant funding.

7 This shows the proportion of overall grant that local authorities choose to allocate to
individual services. The overall grant received by local authorities in 2017/18 has decreased.

15
Page 103




26.The longer term trend in kerbside dry recycling costs is shown in Figure 10
can be seen that expenditure in 2017/18, whilst still above the 2008/09
baseline, has decreased in the last year.

Total Dry Recycling Service Costs with Recycling Rate

180

160

[y
=
=

[y
(]
[=]

M

Indexed Cost/Performance
=
)] [9.2] (]
(=] = (=]

e
[=]

20

0
2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

e |ndexed cost Indexed performance

Figure 10 — Kerbside dry recycling cost since 2008/09

Collection

27.From the data it is possible to plot the individual component costs of the
service. Graphs in 11 & 12 show the dry recycling collection cost on both a
per household and per tonne basis net of any income. Collection systems
vary across the group, colour coding shows what type of collection system
was in place during 2017/18.

28. Costs arising from the collection of the dry recyclate itself makes up the
majority of overall service cost; accounting for 80% of the service cost in
2017/18.

16
Page 104



Dry recyclate collection cost per household served per

authority 2017-18

60

L ANNAANNANN
L ONNNNAAY

L ANNNANNANAN

RN
NN\

L NNNNNANARN
L O\N\A

.

L ANNNANN

L NN\

L NNANNANRANAN

L NNNAANNRNNARNANY
L NN\

L
L \\\N
L NN\

L AANNAN

L NN

L AN\N

BN

L NNNNNNWN
I

50
40
£ 30

] =] =]
o~ —

Wrexham

VoG

Torfaen
Swansea

RCT

Powys
Pembrokeshire
Newport

NPT
Monmouthshire
Merthyr Tydfil
Gwynedd
Flintshire
Denbighshire
Conwy
Ceredigion
Carmarthenshire
Cardiff
Caerphilly
Bridgend
Blaenau Gwent

Anglesey

Multi Stream

m Single Stream

B Twin Stream  mKerbside Sort  m Blueprint

# Grants

Figure 11 — Dry recyclate collection cost per household served

Dry recyclate collection cost per tonne per authority

2017-18

400

350

L OANANANAANN
BN

L INNANAAAN
NN

L\

L NNNNANANKY
LN\

L

NN

[ NAN

L NNANAANANRNN
R OIS
[ \NNAN

L\
L \NN
[ NN

L \NNNAN

L AN

[\

RN

L \NNNANNAN
I

300
250

8
~ —
[an]

3 8 3 °
—l

Wrexham

VoG

Torfaen
Swansea

RCT

Powys
Pembrokeshire
Newport

NPT
Monmouthshire
Merthyr Tydfil
Gwynedd
Flintshire
Denbighshire
Conwy
Ceredigion
Carmarthenshire
Cardiff
Caerphilly
Bridgend
Blaenau Gwent

Anglesey

Multi Stream

m Single Stream

B Twin Stream  mKerbside Sort  m Blueprint

# Grants

Figure 12 — Dry recyclate collection cost per tonne collected.

17

Page 105



Transfer costs

29.According to data provided, few authorities incur costs from transfer of
recyclate following its collection. In some cases contractual arrangements
mean that these costs are included with treatment costs. Transfer costs
that are incurred are low relative to overall service cost. For brevity, charts
detailing transfer costs are not contained within the body of the report,
but are available on request.

Treatment costs

30.Figure 13 & 14 show the costs incurred from treatment of collected dry
recyclate. Costs are shown both as a cost per household served and a
cost per tonne. Treatment cost can be defined as the cost of handling
and/or segregating materials collected, such as treatment of materials at a
MRF.

Dry recycling treatment cost per household served per
authority 2017-18

25

20
15
f
10
R EEEEEEEEEEEEEE RS
2 o 2 £ g 3 o 2 2 = S S 4= 2 5 78 3 06 3
® > ® - Z I o 3 S 49 3 3 3 3 T 2 > g %
g8 2 3 =2 T % @ E = 88 € o e g 8 3 D
- o (= = = o 8’ m a 4 = — = [=1] =]
12} = =. - '-j" o
= =] = =% 5
1] w m = 9 =.
2 = = = T
T m
# Grants  ® Twin Stream Kerbside Sort mBlueprint  m Single Stream Multi Stream

Figure 13 — Dry recycling treatment cost per household served

18
Page 106



Dry recycling treatment cost per tonne per authority

2017-18
160
140
120
100
£ 80
60 /
w0 Z l
B i RLY
0 AN =3 B N A K
B2 000 00O DO =T T 2 2 9P O" R L 4 < s
2gz833338358¢83282:£335238;
o = cr:n - = E a 5 (=R > = E - (=2 = % =
g8 2 3 2 F 8 & ® = 2 = 3 e s ¢ 8 3 2
- o (= = = o 8’ 1] o 4 E- - ?g W 3
12} =
= =1 = ‘é = @
T m
# Grants  ® Twin Stream Kerbside Sort mBlueprint  m Single Stream Multi Stream

Figure 14 — Dry recycling treatment cost per tonne

31.1t can be seen that there is a wide variation in treatment costs across the
group. This likely reflects the differing recycling systems and contractural
arrangements in place across Wales, with authorities employing differing
treatment, methodologies depending on the collection system used. (e.g.
MRF, Sorting/Bailing only etc).

32.A number of authorities exhibit a negative cost for treatment activities and
therefore no bar is present (these are Blaenau Gwent, Conwy,
Denbighshire, Flintshire, Swansea Torfaen and Vale of Glamorgan). This
occurs when the income received from the sale of the recyclate treated is
greater than the cost of treatment activities themselves.

Income

33.Charts in Figure 15 & 16 show the amount of income received from the
sale of collected materials on a per household served and per tonne basis.
Incomes vary significantly across the group and reflect the differing
service configurations and the differing contractual arrangements in place
for the treatment of the material collected. As stated previously, income
overall from the sale of dry Recyclate increased by 4% in comparison to
the previous year.

19
Page 107



Income from sale of dry recyclate per household served
per authority 2017-18

%"o %’9» C 05'0 %'?‘o% %
Y, ¢, % S, %, %, o 6@5 %, O, 2 2 4’@ % ‘1;@
%, T, o, 5, 25 %, O, Pog, Rop P 5 Pos a0 4= L ¥
S O U Y U T, My TR, i Sop %% %, TR0 /,‘% 9 oo?,,>
0 —_
2 ]
-4
6
-8
£ -10
12
-14
-16
-18
20

B Twin Stream  ® Kerbside Sort  ®Blueprint M Single Stream = Multi Stream
Figure 15 — Income from sale of dry recyclate per household served

Income from sale of dry recyclate per tonne per
authority 2017-18

Q
) o
6}% /;)') ) %4%/) {Qo)
2% &G B S % 4 6 % 8 4/5 ) Z
0(’6\’}‘&00” 0@6’/)‘@3'»9‘ 4F b 7 “®
s, e, S, 05, % "%"éo-% 5, 98, %, % 4/ o, 50 5. L
S, O Ny Y s % 0, ‘//1@0'0}* N ";'?C)*"@@@o ‘9@
0
-20 I
-40
£ -60
-80
-100
-120

B Twin Stream  ® Kerbside Sort  ®Blueprint M Single Stream = Multi Stream

Figure 16 — Income per tonne from sale of dry recyclate

20
Page 108



Organic Waste Services

34.Data is split across three headings covering food-only collections, green-
only collections, and co-mingled green and food collections. In 2017/18 2
authorities, Monmouthshire and Wrexham collected food and green waste
co-mingled, although in Wrexham the 2 streams are kept separate for
treatment. Caerphilly also collected a small amount of co-mingled food

and green waste.
Food waste only

35.The total cost of providing food waste collection are shown in Figure 17
(cost per household served) and Figure 18 (cost per tonne collected). The
performance of the service (i.e. the contribution of recycled food to overall
recycling performance) is shown on the right-hand axis and can be seen
as the orange lines on the chart. It should be remembered that in practice
food waste is often collected with other waste streams- usually Dry
Recycling for kerbside sort authorities. In these cases the figures are

calculated using apportionment.

Total food waste service cost per household per authority

2017-18
40 14%
35 - 12%
30 - Em o 10%
25 - L %
- 6%
15 s - ”w
“ o 7 l!fé/ !.f/ 4%
R, 7
wwli5555398 5558375
B905555555% 55552557
VA N XA XA A BN XA XA XA
FE%999855295535338§25¢
FifziidiiEisd 3 i o 4iC:

# Grants m Urban Rural mValley == Performance

Figure 17 — Food waste service cost per household served.®

8 In some charts Wrexham shows a cost per tonne but no cost per HH due to Wrexham
collecting food waste together with green waste but treating them separately.

21
Page 109



Total food waste service cost per tonne per authority

2017-18
600 14%
500 - 12%
- — 10%
400 -
- - - 8%
£ 300 - --l - -

- || 6%
HIOND b -
i W
2%907%%%%%%7 %34%%%%%_ .,

?%?QQQQQEEE’EE%%EB’?%’S‘gé

T f®&Zs3:23z333:2 3235 7'83z°%¢

32§:%i8se8zz2: 9§33 ;3§ ¢

<§Qz gg gmg‘g‘% n—rg [V} 3

# Grants m Urban Rural mValley == Performance

Figure 18 — Food waste service cost per tonne

36.Both cost and performance vary across the group. There is wide variation
in yield as % of total MSW, from 5.4% to 12.4%, little difference to
2016/17. However, food waste recycled as % of MSW has increased
overall. Greater divergence between cost bar and performance bar is
likely to signify a higher performing service. For example, the service
operated by Bridgend, exhibits both a low cost and high yield. Food waste
increased its contribution to overall recycling from 6.4% in 2016/17 to 7.3%
in 2017/18. Tonnage increased by 11,500t and similarly median costs also
increased suggesting a rise in the cost of food waste services when
compared to 2016/17. Caerphilly and Carmarthenshire now collect food
waste separately and not co-mingled with green as previously the case in
2016/17.

Green waste only

37.The total net cost of providing separate green waste collection are shown
in Figure19 (cost per household served) and 20 (cost per tonne collected).
It is important to note that the cost is divided by the total number of
households not the number of users or subscribers. The performance, in
terms of the contribution of recycled food to overall recycling performance
is shown on the right-hand axis and can be seen as the orange line on the

chart.

22
Page 110



38.During 2017/18 Bridgend, Carmarthenshire, Denbighshire, Gwynedd,
Monmouthshire and Pembrokeshire were charging residents for the
kerbside collection of garden waste. Powys did not collect garden waste at

the kerbside.

Total green waste service cost per household per
authority 2017-18
20%

25
- 18%
20 16%
14%
15 - 12%
£ - 10%
-
10 - 7, 8%
/ Z 6%
Z Z ” Z |
5 ¥ v 4%
807 w%77 27 1 =
770722272700 %7 A Vi
= W = o o0 0o o 0 9o IO Z 2 T W = v -
28 o32985852F883¢8 22858873
m o = g = 32 3% : 2 g 3 5 3 T T S o x
[ ] > =R g = @ I o 5 = @ B @ 5
T = 2 = = & = 5 o = o = 2 = @
= 9 == I S g2 ® 2 4 = -3 ? 3
= g = = 3 9
S
T (1]
# Grants mUrban mRural mValley ==Performance
Figure 19 — Green waste service cost per household served.
Total green waste service cost per tonne per authority
2017-18
1,000 20%
900 = 18%
800 16%
700 - 14%
600 - _ 12%
£ 500 - 10%
- / - - ==
400 ﬁ - 8%
300 = 6%
= m’ - °
200 & I ﬁ 4%
100 , 7 ! I . I ’ 2%
P E P OO0 OO0 OO0 DO ZTEZ ZZ PP ERY S oS
£ 82 83883827998 25¢
® 2 %S =3 2 %2 43 35 3 S T 5 2 o 5
B8 2 3 2 T 5 & 2 = 3 = 5 2 g 8 35 ]
= 9 %= 7 3 z2 ° = 4 = -3 “ 3
1] =
= =1 = ‘é_ = @
8 = ® = 2 =
=3 g 3 ]

# Grants mUrban mRural mValley ==Performance

Figure 20 — Green waste service cost per tonne

23
Page 111



39.Again, a wide variation in both costs and performance can be seen across
the group. The divergence between cost and performance data seen for
authorities like Conwy, Anglesey and Flintshire would suggest that they
are relatively efficient services. There is a clear link between authorities
collecting the most incurring highest costs. Gwynedd and Carmarthenshire
both introduced charges this year; Gwynedd’s net costs dropped
significantly but contribution to recycling also dropped in line with this. It
is not possible to compare Carmarthenshire’s drop in costs as they didn't
previously provide a separate garden waste service. Ceredigion’s costs
appear to be high in comparison to other LAs on a per tonne basis, mainly
because of the relatively low tonnage of garden waste that is collected at
the kerbside.

40.Variations seen in yield and therefore cost per tonne/household are likely
influenced by a number of factors such as rurality, property type and
whether charging is in place.

Co-mingled food and green waste

41.Some authorities co-collect the food and green waste fractions. The total
cost of providing this combined food and green waste service are shown in
figure 21 (cost per household served) and figure 22 (cost per tonne
collected). The performance of the service, as mass collected as % of total
MSW, is shown on the right-hand axis and can be seen as the orange line
on the chart.

Total co-mingled food and green waste service cost per
household per authority 2017-18

35 0.16
-
30 0.14
25 0.12
20 o1
£ 0.08
15
? / 0.06
10 % -?J 0.04
5 ?‘ 2 0.02
0 ",: 0
P EE OO0 OO OO T O =2 2 T W = v -
25 2898358325853 :8£28¢3¢%
2 ®3£323%3&8333 3% 3 2 5 3
g2 2 3 2 % 8 & E =B = 3 s g ¥ 8 5 5
< 5 2 F g g' g ®° o : = - = ] 3
3 2 5 - 5
3 = = = ®
T m
# Grants m Urban Rural Valley == Performance

Figure 21 — Co-mingled organic service cost per household served.

24
Page 112



Total co-mingled food and green waste service cost per
tonne per authority 2017-18

180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20

IEISE NN

Aasa|Buy
puaspiig

UMD neuae|g

paed

allysuayjiewe)

Amuo)

uol8ipala)
alysysiquag

# Grants m Urban

LS LINOWUOI NN

o = 2 T T =
5 3 5 T3 2 8§
= = - = 3 5
w IS T T I
= © = [=] 3
= = R =
®oa 4 -3

-

a %

= =

1+

Rural Valley == Performance

Figure 22 — Co-mingled organic service cost per tonne

eISUEMS

0.16
0.14
0.12
0.1

0.08
0.06
0.04
0.02

usejio]
HOoA
WBYX I

42. For all organics collections it can be seen that there are wide variations in
costs across the group. The variation in costs is most pronounced when
comparing on a per tonne basis. Low yields from new services especially
from chargeable green waste services, coupled with elevated start-up
costs results in some authorities exhibiting higher service costs.

43.If all costs associated with various organic collection services are
aggregated, it is possible to compare total expenditure in 2016/17 with

that of 2017/18:
16/17 17/18 % change
Organic £48,462,082 £47,940,387 -1.1%
Grant (SRG) £24,222,438 £22,509,146 -7.07%

44.Food waste services are now well established by local authorities, fewer
changes are being made to services therefore costs are becoming more
stabilised. Performance in terms of total organic waste mass collected
from the kerbside decreased by 1,272 tonnes following an increase of

4,227 in 16/17.

Page 113

25




Total Organic Service Costs with % of MSW

300

250

]
=]
=]

150

100

Indexed Cost/Performance

50

0
2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

Indexed cost Indexed performance

Figure 23 — Organic waste costs since 2008/09

45.The longer term trend can be seen in Figure 23. The nine years since
2008/09 have seen significant investment in organic waste services. A
rapid expansion of food waste services took place with virtually all Welsh
households now served by a collection scheme. This expansion of services
has seen the total mass of organic waste, as a proportion of total MSW
rise greatly over the same period as shown by the orange line in figure 23.
However the mass organic waste collected at the kerbside decreased in
2017/18 by 0.6% despite an increase of nearly 15,000t of garden waste
and 11,744t of food waste from separate collections. The drop in organics
collected could be due to initial service changes i.e authorities moving
from co-mingled to separate collections. More authorities introducing
charging and restricting the frequency and capacity of garden waste
collections is also likely to effect tonnages.

Cost of organic waste service decreased by 1.1% but due to inflation of
2.83% this represents a greater reduction in expenditure in real terms.

Collection costs

46.From the core data, it is possible to further break down the whole system
costs and examine the various constituent costs such as collection,
transfer and treatment.

26
Page 114



Separate food waste collection

47.The food waste collection cost is shown in Figure 24 (cost per household
served) and Figure 25 (cost per tonne collected). Caerphilly and
Carmarthenshire now collect food waste separately and not co-mingled
with green as previously the case in 2016/17.

35

30

25

20

15

10

Food waste collection cost per household served per

!
.
B77
P =@
5 5 =
= 8 &
g2 2
3
2

Amydsoed

ppied
anysuayprewse) AN

authority 20

1,
A | Y
%ll/%
%%%%7%
sizi}
: § &

i Grants mWeekly

17-18

Figure 24 — Food waste collection cost per household served.

450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100

50

Food waste collection cost per tonne per authority 2017-

Aasaisuy [

wamo neuzelg oo NI

puaspug Wy

Aydsaes NN

TTCRIINANGNY |
anysuayewe) Sl

18

Z

) !ﬁ
%I 7
22977
A YA,
RSN
s § 58

i Grants mWeekly

!
1H
Ay
Z 77

B 75%%%%%%
£2z2z23738¢435s
SITiEETLE
iz B

m Fortnightly

!

V/
2!% 1
2227 !ﬁf

B 255485 %7%
2 2z2z23383¢3 s
SRR R B
iz @

m Fortnightly

Figure 25 — Food waste c ollection cost per tonne

Page 115

WELYXDIAN

WELYXDIAN

27



Separate green waste collection
48.The green waste collection cost is shown in Figure 26 (cost per household

Green waste collection cost per household served per
authority 2017-18

served) and Figure 27 (cost per tonne collected).

ot
—

L NNNANNN
|
L ONNANAN

L ________N\

n
AR
L N\ANNNNNANN

I

u

L NN
NN
[ NNAN
L AN\

L

L NNNN\N
L

NN

LN\
I

~ O 0 o= ™ =]
Lo B |

[an]

Wrexham

VoG

Torfaen
Swansea

RCT

Powys
Pembrokeshire
Newport

NPT
Monmouthshire
Merthyr Tydfil
Gwynedd
Flintshire
Denbighshire
Conwy
Ceredigion
Carmarthenshire
Cardiff
Caerphilly
Bridgend
Blaenau Gwent

Anglesey

s Grants mWeekly mFortnightly

Figure 26 — Green waste collection cost per household served.

Green waste collection cost per tonne per authority

2017-18

800

[ AN
L
AN
I

NN
NN

I
|
[N
R
g

L NN
N

LN

I

NN

LA\
H

288°

700
600
500

£ 400

Wrexham

VoG

Torfaen
Swansea

RCT

Powys
Pembrokeshire
Newport

NPT
Monmouthshire
Merthyr Tydfil
Gwynedd
Flintshire
Denbighshire
Conwy
Ceredigion
Carmarthenshire
Cardiff
Caerphilly
Bridgend
Blaenau Gwent

Anglesey

s Grants mWeekly mFortnightly

Figure 27 — Green waste collection cost per tonne

28

Page 116



Combined food and green waste

49. Costs for authorities collecting food and green waste fractions together are
shown in Figure 28 (cost per household served) and Figure 29 (cost per
tonne collected). Colour coding denotes frequency of collection.

co-mingled food and green waste collection cost per
household served per authority 2017-18
35

30

25
20
f
15 ,
10 ? ﬁ
: Z Z
Z Z
22T P L LT ETQ2EELTEEZzTFT IBR LIS
@ m = = = JEL‘DO = =
= s 2 2 45 3 3 2 2 = xsﬁéggﬂm—nmm
m - W@ 5 = Qggmj":"g T o =] =
4 23z 2a&8§ 2223 353 “ BS 3
< a = S T 7 3 g 5 = - = ] 3
[n) - = g- z|n—r o
= =] E4 s =z =
1] w m = 9 =.
2 = = = o

s Grants mWeekly mFortnightly

Figure 28 — Combined food and green waste collection cost per household served.

co-mingled food and green waste collection cost per
tonne per authority 2017-18

100
90

80

70

60

£ 50
40

30

20

10

AEYINOWUOA NN .

= = = o o o o 0 g I6 Z = 2 T W = v - =
2 8B 28 3333322283235 3935 387
» - @ 5 £ 32 § : 2 49 3 = T T 3 > x
g 2 3 2 F 8§ @& g 2 2 = g 3 8 5 2
- o =N = g % 8’ m o .Z' — ?g 3

= =1 = = 9

1) w [17] = =

= = = @

=
s Grants mWeekly mFortnightly
Figure 29 — Combined food and green waste collection cost per tonne

29
Page 117



50.1t can be seen that for all organic waste services, collection costs are by
far the greatest contributor to overall service cost, contributing to 71% of
the total service cost. It is also important to note that Monmouthshire and
Wrexham collect food and green waste co-mingled although in Wrexham
the 2 streams are kept separate for treatment.

Treatment Costs

51.0rganic material collected at the kerbside will require some form of
treatment. Costs incurred will be dependent on several factors including
overall mass sent for treatment and treatment methodology employed.
Additional regulation applies to food waste requiring in-vessel treatment to
be undertaken. This additional requirement is likely to result in higher unit
treatment costs for both food waste and combined food and green waste
services compared with those for segregated green waste.

Separate food waste

52.The food waste treatment cost is shown in Figure 30 (cost per household
served) and Figure 31 (cost per tonne collected).

Food waste treatment cost per household per authority

2017-18
12
10
8
£ 6
e s
A /
: 2577807 1, 7
222222872 R7 ., Z
2 g 2 72%2%25%2% R4% Z
‘Wb’ 77.%272%27 B7%72%%7%
o RN WA N WA
?E?QQQQQEEE’EEZZES’R%’S“Cé
& 8 22 3 3 3 2 2 2 2§ 3 2 95 26 3
::5:33%3232:2335:3 s$:238 " §§°¢
= a = = T 7 5 g - g = % w > %
] A
# Grants mUrban Rural mValley
Figure 30 — Food waste treatment cost per household served.
30

Page 118



n

NN
[N
L\
[ AN
L__NNN
AN
DN
L

NN
LN\
L NN

L NNNAN
DN
RN,

L NN
NN

l

H

I
NN

Food waste treatment cost per tonne per authority 2017-
18

Wrexham

VoG

Torfaen
Swansea

RCT

Powys
Pembrokeshire
Newport

NPT
Monmouthshire
Merthyr Tydfil
Gwynedd
Flintshire
Denbighshire
Conwy
Ceredigion
Carmarthenshire
Cardiff
Caerphilly
Bridgend
Blaenau Gwent

Anglesey

# Grants B Urban ®Rural mValley

Figure 31 — Food waste treatment cost per tonne

Separate green waste

[an]

L)

2

3

2 NN
< = T
2 S LN
7 5 O
S ©

o g

© e

3= 2

r o 3 I
8 -

C d -

£S5 53 -
Ge  on -
.m 2 g S !f//m
28 ¢ F//////J
= 4 g C NN
25 % R
B M g u
0] o =

5 2 QAR
) ©

:2 ¢ -
W o C I
S o ]
U~ b

53 AT
Ianb aw-v [=)] [=4] [ o [Wp] = 28] (o] — (]
= o

™M

LN

Wrexham

VoG

Torfaen

Swansea

RCT

Powys
Pembrokeshire
Newport

NPT
Monmouthshire
Merthyr Tydfil
Gwynedd
Flintshire
Denbighshire
Conwy
Ceredigion
Carmarthenshire
Cardiff
Caerphilly
Bridgend

Blaenau Gwent

Anglesey

# Grants mUrban mRural mValley

Figure 32 — Green waste treatment cost per household served.

31

Page 119



Green waste treatment cost per tonne per authority

300
250
200
£ 150
100
/)
50?,I 7?
0o 4 BZN7
> =20 020
cimag-:-:-s
f o2 2%
= =
S E

# Grants mUrban

2017-18
oz
2720 =l
[w] o )|
S & 5% %
g 53 5
:a%—;
z =
° =

3JIYsYInowuop

Figure 33 — Green waste treatment cost per tonne

1dn [

Hodmap

Rural mValley

aMIys ayoIqIad

sAmod

104 .

easuemg Q.

uaepiol [l

LTI

weucasyy,

54.Wide variation exists across the group for green waste treatment costs,
mainly due to the variation in tonnage collected between LAs. The group

average is £50 per tonne.

Combined food and green waste

55.Treatment Costs for authorities collecting food and green waste fractions
together are shown in Figure 34 (cost per household served) and Figure
35 (cost per tonne collected).

Page 120

32



Co-mingled food and green waste treatment cost per
household per authority 2017-18

Lo e ¥ L L = A N B ¢ + RN o]

Aasa|Buy
JUaMD neuae|g
puaspuig
Aljiydase)
Hipled
aliysuayyiewe)
uol8ipala)
Amuo)
alysysiquag
aliysjuil4
ppauAmo

[YPAL JAYLIBIN
AJYSYINOWUOA
1dN

Hodmap
aliysayoiquiad
sAmod

124

BISLEMS

uaepio]

DoA

WEYXaIA

# Grants mUrban mRural mValley

Figure 34 — Combined food and green waste treatment cost per household served.

Co-mingled food and green waste treatment cost per
tonne per authority 2017-18

70
60
50
40
£
30
20
10
0
P 2 @ o o o o 09 3o T T 2 2 P I =E YL OIJ<L8
2 8322233585358 8535%2¢5 233532383
m:“gu:gagnggg T T > g x
8 2 3 2 T & & ® = 8 £ 3 e s 8 3 2
< 0 == 7 3 z2 ® 2 4 5 - “ 3
12} = =. -
2 z 3 Sz 4
=l =y =2 = 3
T m
# Grants mUrban mRural mValley
Figure 35 — Combined food and green waste treatment cost per tonne
33

Page 121



56.

Transfer, disposal and Income

A number of authorities are required to transfer collected material to
treatment facilities. Costs incurred are relatively low in comparison with
overall service cost, so for brevity are not included in main report.
Similarly, costs incurred from disposal of non-compostable material
(contamination) and incomes generated by organic waste services are low,
data is therefore not included in main report.

Combined kerbside recycling & composting services

57.

58.

In order to provide efficient services many authorities offer collections of
more than one waste stream using the same vehicles and crew. For
example, many authorities routinely collect food waste and dry recyclate
together, albeit in separate compartments, on the same vehicle. As costs
for more than one service area are shared as a result, local authorities are
required to make a reasonable apportionment of costs between services to
enable them to complete their annual financial returns. Whilst the
apportionments made are reasonable, there is a potential for error to
occur. It is therefore useful to consider the combined costs of all services
delivered at the kerbside in order to mitigate any potential error from
apportionment.

Figure 36 and 37 below show the aggregated costs for all kerbside
recycling services offered by local authorities. i.e. the aggregated total
cost of dry recycling, food waste, green waste and combined food & green
waste services. Not included are residual waste services and other smaller
scale activities such as bulky waste, trade waste and clinical waste
collections.

34
Page 122



[ AN\
| L NN
| [ ANWAN

i [ NN

i L NN
I NN

I EERXN

i [ NN

i NN

i I

i L NNNNNY

I AN

i L AN

i LN\
i L NN

I NN

I NN

i L O\

i L W\\N

i AN
L NNNAN

i _—

mooooo
18642

[an]

Kerbside dry recycling and composting cost per
household per authority 2017-18

160
140
120

Wrexham

VoG

Torfaen
Swansea

RCT

Powys
Pembrokeshire
Newport

NPT
Monmouthshire
Merthyr Tydfil
Gwynedd
Flintshire
Denbighshire
Conwy
Ceredigion
Carmarthenshire
Cardiff
Caerphilly
Bridgend
Blaenau Gwent

Anglesey

# Grants mUrban mRural mValley ==Performance

Figure 36 — Kerbside recycling and composting services — per household

45%
40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%

0%

L NN
i [ NNNNN

(B NN

i L NN

i L NN\
I 0NN
AN

i L NN

I EEERNNNN

i L NN\

I RSN

] NNANNAAANN

i [ NN

i L \N
i L AN
L ANNANNANA

L NN

i L NN\

i [ \NN

i AN
L AN
i LN

= -]
g8 2

Kerbside dry recycling and composting cost per tonne per
authority 2017-18

450
400
350
300
250
200
150

Wrexham

VoG

Torfaen
Swansea

RCT

Powys
Pembrokeshire
Newport

NPT
Monmouthshire
Merthyr Tydfil
Gwynedd
Flintshire
Denbighshire
Conwy
Ceredigion
Carmarthenshire
Cardiff
Caerphilly
Bridgend
Blaenau Gwent

Anglesey

# Grants mUrban mRural mValley ==Performance

Figure 37 — Kerbside recycling and composting services — per tonne

35

Page 123



59.Some variations in costs can be seen across the group, though most
authorities are exhibiting combined service costs of less than £70 per
household with a group median of £63.08, a drop of £4.46 per hh from
2016/17. Performance also varies across the group with between 22% and
42% of total MSW diverted via kerbside collection of material. Most local
authorities range between £51.70per HH - £102.80per HH.

Residual Waste

60. The charts below show the aggregate cost of providing collection, transfer,
treatment and disposal of residual waste. They show service costs net of
any income (where applicable).

Net Residual Waste Service Cost per Household per

Authority 2017-18

180 45%
160 — 40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%

0%

140 - -
120 == -
100 = - = —

80

60

40

20

anysaoiquad [l

.
(=]
AesaiSuy I
wamp neuseld I |
puaspug
Alnydiaed
wipsed I
anysuaypeuse) NS |
uoiBipasa) R
Avuod
anpysiquag I i
allysiuin4 _
ppauimo
wpAL AR
I
LdN i
vodmaN
|
simod [N |
104 |
easuens [N
ueepol [
oA [N |
weyxain I

anysyinowuoy [N

mUrban mRural mValley == Performance

Figure 38 — Residual waste service cost per household

36
Page 124



Net Residual Waste Service Cost per Tonne per Authority

2017-18
500 45%
450 - - 40%
400 - - 35%
350 om - = 30%
300 25%
£ 250 - -

20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

200
150
100

50

[=]
womo nevserq N
IUCIEE | ]
siee) I
i
i
onysiuyy [
i
wpALIAREN
i
LdN
vodmaN - I
i
i
104 i
easuens
uoeyiol I
I
weuxany

= O o o0 - -

%’ =, [=1] m o g o § m (=] g
@ =) S 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 )
o oa 2 3 3 =x ] =2
o I w = & = 3 = w
) 3 = @ - a o o
- =N = =

:8 B =g :

3 5 2 =

= = 3

o m

1+

m Urban Rural mValley == Performance

Figure 39 — Residual waste service cost per tonne

61.Performance data shows the proportion of MSW collected from the
kerbside that is residual waste. Therefore, lower figures indicate a better
performing service overall i.e. greater proportion of the total waste
arisings is recycled. For example, Monmouthshire operated a low cost
residual waste collection service relative to the group. Performance data
indicates that the proportion of total MSW that is residual is one of the
lowest across the group.

62.From the core data it is also possible to compare 2017/18 overall residual
waste service expenditure with that of 2016/17:

16/17 17/18 % change

Residual waste £84,753,568 £83,799,039 -1.1%

63.2017/18 saw a decrease in residual waste service costs, with net
expenditure decreasing by almost £1m when compared to the previous
year. In 2017/18 residual waste collected decreased by 14,230t. In
2017/18 all 22 Welsh authorities collected residual waste on at least a
fortnightly basis, with Conwy trialling 4 weekly collections.

37
Page 125



Total Kerbside Residual Waste Cost with % of MSW

120

100

80

60

40

Indexed Cost/Performance

20

0
2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

e [Ndexed cOst s ndexed % of MSW

Figure 40 — Kerbside residual waste cost since 2008/09

64.The trend over the last nine years is shown in Figure 40. It can be seen
that residual waste collection costs have dropped significantly since
2008/09 and continues to fall. However since 2015/16 the rate of fall is
decreasing. This is likely to be linked to the plateauing of recycling
performance.

Collection costs
65. The following graphs show residual waste collection costs.

38
Page 126



Net Residual Waste Collection Cost per Household per
Authority 2017-18

50
45
40
35
30

20
15
10

puaspig I
Aydiaed
wipe
aaysuvaypewsed
frwvo)
anwsysiquaa
pauino
wpAL Aoy
LN
vodnan
adsaoiqued [
sinod [N
104
easuers
uaepior [

anysyinowuo [N

oon NN
weuxan:

Hh
M
(=] (951
sosorpuy
wamo neusers
wortipao)
anysywyd [

Figure 41 — Residual waste collection cost per household

Net Residual Waste Collection Cost per Tonne per
Authority 2017-18

180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20

1dn
vodmon
anysayouquad [
104

puaspue [
wpsed
saysuayrewed |
Avuoy I
aausysiquaa |

simod | I
essuems
useyio) N

Aydaaed |
oon N
weyxaunn - N

anysivd [

prauino I
ypAL AN -

"
[=]
fesaisuy
womo nevserq
vorsipaso) N
anysymowuowy [N

m Weekly m Fortnightly

Figure 42 — Residual waste collection cost per tonne

Transfer costs

66.A significant number of authorities are required to transfer residual waste
collected prior to onward treatment or disposal. Costs incurred are shown
in Figure 43 and 44.

39
Page 127



Net Residual Waste Transfer Cost per Household per

Authority 2017-18

(=)
—

Wrexham

VoG

Torfaen
Swansea

RCT

Powys
Pembrokeshire
Newport

NPT
Monmouthshire
Merthyr Tydfil
Gwynedd
Flintshire
Denbighshire
Conwy
Ceredigion
Carmarthenshire
Cardiff
Caerphilly
Bridgend

Blaenau Gwent

PN Anglesey

20 M~ W o= Mmoo O

B8

m Valley

m Urban mRural

Figure 43 — Residual waste transfer costs per household

Authority 2017-18

Net Residual Waste Transfer Cost per Tonne per

Wrexham

VoG

Torfaen
Swansea

RCT

Powys
Pembrokeshire
Newport

NPT
Monmouthshire
Merthyr Tydfil
Gwynedd
Flintshire
Denbighshire
Conwy
Ceredigion
Carmarthenshire
Cardiff
Caerphilly
Bridgend

Blaenau Gwent

P Anglesey

=] L =]

30
25
2
£ 15
1

m Valley

m Urban mRural

Figure 44 — Residual waste transfer cost per tonne

40

Page 128



Treatment / processing costs

67.A growing number of authorities are adopting treatment technologies for
managing their residual waste. Those authorities which exhibit treatment
costs are shown in Figure 45 &46.

68.The cost of treatment or processing waste is shown. At present 17
authorities incur costs for treatment of residual waste at a combined net
cost of £34.9m. Treatment costs have increased by £1.2m from £33.7m in
2016/17 to £34.9m in 2017/18. In some cases not all residual wastes are
treated. The ongoing procurement of treatment facilities will mean that a
continuing growing number of authorities are likely to incur waste
treatment costs in the future.

Net Residual Waste Treatment Cost per Household per
Authority 2017-18

140
120
100
80
60
40

20

A
[en]
Aasa|Buy
uamo neuae|g _
puaspa [
Alydseed [
#ped
aliysuayyiewe)
uol8ipala)
Amuo)
alysysiquag
anysivyd [
ppauAmo
mpALAye
AJYSYINOWUOA
1dn [
Hodmap _
aliysayoiquiad
sAmod
1y e
easuems [
uaepiol [
DoA
wevxain -

m Urban Rural mValley

Figure 45 — Residual waste treatment cost per household

41
Page 129



Net Residual Waste Treatment Cost per Tonne per
Authority 2017-18

250
200
150
100

50

Lin
vodman -

aMIys ayoIqIad

104

easuens

DoA

wpe)

allysuayjiewe)

uaepiol [

Amuo)
sAmod

Acioe) N

aaysauny |

ppouino I
wpALAYe
anysyinowuoyy N

uol8ipala)
alysysiquag
WX M,

"
[en]
Assaisuy
uamo neuae|g _
puazpug

m Urban mRural mValley

Figure 46— Residual waste treatment cost per tonne

Disposal
69.Figure 47 & 48 show the cost of disposing of the residual waste
collected. These are generally based on fixed price contracts and costs
will vary based upon local circumstances (such as availability of landfill
options nearby), length of contract and date of contract
commencement. Data is shown on a cost per household basis and as
a cost per tonne.

42
Page 130



Net Residual Waste Disposal Cost per Household per

Authority 2017-18

Wrexham

VoG

Torfaen
Swansea

RCT

Powys
Pembrokeshire
Newport

NPT
Monmouthshire
Merthyr Tydfil
Gwynedd
Flintshire
Denbighshire
Conwy
Ceredigion
Carmarthenshire
Cardiff
Caerphilly
Bridgend
Blaenau Gwent

Anglesey

m Valley

m Urban mRural

Figure 47 Disposal cost per tonne of Residual waste

Net Residual Waste Disposal Cost per Tonne per

Authority 2017-18

600

500

400

£ 300

200

100

0

Wrexham

VoG

Torfaen
Swansea

RCT

Powys
Pembrokeshire
Newport

NPT
Monmouthshire
Merthyr Tydfil
Gwynedd
Flintshire
Denbighshire
Conwy
Ceredigion
Carmarthenshire
Cardiff
Caerphilly
Bridgend
Blaenau Gwent

Anglesey

m Valley

m Urban mRural

Figure 48 Disposal cost per tonne of Residual waste

43

Page 131



Household Waste Recycling Centres

70.As before, cost is shown on the left-hand axis whilst performance, in
terms of mass recycled via HWRC network as a proportion of total MSW,
is shown on the right. Costs shown include both recycling and residual

fractions dealt with at HWRCs.

Net HWRC Service Cost per Household per Authority

2017-18
60
50 -
40
-
£ 30 -
2o—| 7 =
10 7 ﬁ
v/ v/ 7 /'l
ulZ2770%2%7% A B A,
5720895895838 838§32
SR EEEREEEEEEEEEE R
® = 3 = = @ 2 = 8 = 5 = 8 3
< 9 %= Z 3 z2 ® = 4 = -5 “
= g = = g = 9
g s ® 5 2 =
=3 g 3 ]

# Grants ®mUrban m®mRural mValley == MassRecycled as % of MSW

Figure 49 — HWRC site service cost per household

Page 132

oon NI

weyxasn [N

40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%

0%

44



Net HWRC Service Cost per Tonne per Authority 2017-18

200
180
160
140
120

£ 100
80

60

40

20

puazpug N\
Aydiee) NN |

Aasa|Buy

(=]
womo neuselq PR

# Grants

yered NI
I
Amuod N |
AU YBIGUAA AR

uol8ipala) Y

allysuayjiewe)

m Urban Rural

sAmod

easuems N l
usepol
AN
weyxaspn [N

ppauAmo
BNUSUINOWUOW 05N

aaysivy) I |
1
wPALAROW
|
LdN i
Hodmap Y | l
|
I
L4 NN

BNYSNOIqUAG NN

m Valley = Mass Recycled as % of MSW

Figure 50 — HWRC service cost per tonne

40%
35%
30%
25%
- 20%
15%
10%
5%

0%

DoA

71.Performance data indicates that contribution made by HWRCs to overall
recycling rates can be considerable. In the case of Carmarthenshire,
Pembrokeshire, Wrexham and Monmouthshire 25% or more of total
MSW is recycled via HWRCs. Once again, divergence between cost and
performance bars is likely to indicate a more efficient service. Wrexham,
where cost per household and cost per tonne indicators are around the
lowest of authorities, yet with 28% of total MSW recycled through HWRC
site network, they are amongst the highest performing authorities.
2017/18 shows an increased variation in the contribution to recycling
performance with authorities ranging from 12% to 34%.

72.From the core data it is possible to compare 2016/17 overall HWRC
service expenditure with that of 2016/17:

16/17 17/18 % change
HWRC £43,226,539 £42,364,126 -2.0%
Grant (SRG) £7,395,356 £7,064,027 -4.5%

73. It can be seen that expenditure on HWRCs decreased in 2017/18 which
was likely due to closure of 3 sites and a 3% reduction in throughput of both
recycling and residual waste. However during this time the proportion of
MSW received at HWRC has remained unchanged at 31% since 16/17.

Page 133

45




Total HWRC Cost with Recycling Rate

140

120

0 /M

80

60

40

Indexed Cost/Performance

20
0
2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

e |Ndexed cost e |ndexed performance

Figure 51 — HWRC site expenditure since 2008/09

74.0ver the longer term, it can be seen that expenditure in 2017/18 is very
close to the 2008/09 baseline. The mass of material re-used, recycled or
composted via the HWRC site network as a proportion of total MSW has
improved over the same period.

46
Page 134



Bring Sites

75.The figures shown reflect the service cost divided by number of
households (Figure 52) and by mass collected (Figure 53).

Net Bring Site Service Cost per Household per Authority

2017-18
9 14%
-
8 12%
.
. 10%
5 8%
£
4 6%
-
3 ’/, 4%
2 7
| - 7 % 1
0 /B . A‘#------- ? B e oy o - 0%
P E P00 o0 o0 09 D0 T 22 P 3R Y 4ds
23332383388 35:883%83¢28352283;
® 3 %3 £ 2 2% 283 75 3 T T 3 3 Z X
g 23 =3 8 & T 22 = 3 S 3 £ 3 5
- o (= = = o 5_ 1] o 4 E- - g W 3
12} =
3 2 5 iz 2
2 = ° 2 = 3
T m
r.Grants mUrban mRural mValley == Performance
Figure 52 — Bring site costs per household
Net Bring Site Service Cost per Tonne per Authority 2017-
18
60 14%
50 12%
20 10%
8%
£ 30
> 6%
20 - ? 2%
10— I , ,; 2%
0“---- 43-------.4’----- 0%
§§§§QQEQE§§§§%%E§%%§§§
2 o 2 8 g 3 o0 2 2 = S 3 4= 3% 7438 3063
T o W g = =4 3 T v 3 5 5 S T = £
8 2 3 2 F 8 & ® =82 = 35 S g “ 8 5 5
< 5 2 F =3 g' g ® o ‘% =1 - = ] 3
5 z 3 sz Ey
3 = = = ®
T m
r.Grants mUrban mRural mValley == Performance
Figure 53 — Bring site costs per tonne
47

Page 135



76.1t can be seen that both cost and performance vary widely across group.
This largely reflects the differening levels of provision across authorities.
However in some cases the costs of collecting these waste are included
by other services such as HWRC.

77.From the core data it is possible to compare 2017/18 overall Bring site
service expenditure with that of 2016/17:

16/17 17/18 %o change
Bring £1,419,204 £1,335,542 -5.9%
Grant £451,427 £329,624 -27%

78.1t can be seen that bring site expenditure decreased by nearly 6%. In
2017/18 authorities allocated less grant to bring site services, a decrease
of 27%. During the same period, mass collected via the bring site
network reduced by 2,933 tonnes (15%) continuing a longer term trend.

79.1t is likely that mass of material collected via bring site network is
reducing due to comprehensive kerbside collection systems and it is likely
the number of sites will decrease due to high levels of contamination in
recycling from bring sites. However Bring sites do continue to make a
significant contribution to recycling rates for some authorities. Powys and
Carmarthenshire collected 5% and 15% of MSW respectively from Bring
sites.

Total Bring Site Cost with % of MSW

120
100

80

40

Indexed Cost/Performance
[=}]
(=]

20

0
2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

Indexed cost Indexed % of MSW

Figure 54 — Bring site expenditure since 2008/09

48
Page 136




80.0Once again the trend over the longer term can be examined. Both
expenditure and mass recycled via the bring site network have fallen
steadily since 2008/09.

Trade Waste Service

Figure 55 shows the total trade waste service cost (net of income).

Trade Waste Service Net Costs 2017/18

500000
400000
300000
200000

100000

W 0 |
;BB BBz @ BcsRERCREGR
0000 B S ERE2SsEELE 8B EERECE <=
w @ T & c 5 § £ = |4 2 = 5
C=:|u x 9 3”5;;‘5‘ AO‘ e
-200000 < & o 8 £ 35 o o o £ B8 =]
c = © = T £ o
b = a %c g
-300000 ~ £ g g
o

-400000
-500000

B Urban Rural Valley

Figure 55 — Trade waste service cost®

81.Some trade waste services are operated by collecting trade waste co-
mingled with household waste: tonnages and associated costs are often
apportioned from average bin weights therefore costs shown above may
not be wholly representative of true service cost. All but 6 authorities
operate a surplus where income received exceeds expenditure.

Nappy and other AHP Collections

82.Currently eight authorities provide a collection service for nappies and
other AHP that is separate from residual waste and other hygiene/clinical
collections; six of these authorities send the waste to be treated. Costs
per tonne associated with such services are shown in Figure 56. Cost per
tonne remains high and varies significantly from £21.97per tonne -

9 More detailed information on Trade Waste services can be obtained from the Trade Waste
Benchmarking Group which is facilitated by Waste Improvement Programme.

49
Page 137



£1,158per tonne. Variation in costs could be due to a number of factors
including; staff and vehicles dedicated to the service, haulage costs,
tonnages collected, in house versus contractor service costs etc.

Absorbent Hygiene Products (AHP)
Cost per tonne

1400
1200
1000
800
600
400
200

T m @ OO0 0 0 O o TJmoo =2 2 T W = v =
S = 2 ¥ 2 @ 9o &8 = % g S @ - ¢ H = © g :c-;;
@ o 2 2 g » =2 =2 = 5 = 5 = = 2 5 - 8 I & o
m 5 m 7 & 3 & 5 T 2 5 = s T =] x
w @ O = =} @ = & T m = 3 S = @ g ° 5
m = I = S m, = 5 a = © Z o =] ]
- o = 5 o 1] o = - @ 3
o = ® 5 5 =z = m
= =1 = s =2 =
1] w m = % =.
2 = = = o
M Urban Rural Valley

Figure 56 — Nappy/Absorbent Hygeine Products (AHP) Cost per tonne

Clinical Waste

83.Nine authorities provided clinical waste collection and these costs are
included in Figure 57. These costs include clinical waste collections on
behalf of Local Health boards as well as other separate hygiene

collections.

50
Page 138



Clinical Waste Overall Net costs 2017/18

250,000
200,000

150,000

« 100,000

50,000

Anglesey
Bridgend
Caerphilly
Cardiff
Conwy
Denbighshire
Flintshire
Gwynedd
NPT
Newport
Powys
RCT
Swansea
Torfaen
VoG

Ceredigion
Mer thyr Tydfil

-50,000

Blaenau Gwent
Carmarthenshire
Monmouthshire
Pembrokeshire

Urban Rural Valley

Figure 57- Clinical waste Costs

The Next Stage — Improvement Groups

1.

2.

4,

The Annual Waste Finance Report is a quantitative report to track
expenditure over time. Authorities also receive an individual financial
summary report detailing their own authority’s Waste Expenditure and
their position relative to the other Welsh authorities.

These are intended to form the basis for further analysis in the
benchmarking work. Shortly after three benchmarking papers will be
available to authorities with more detailed analysis of collection costs in
the three main waste collection services Residual, Dry Recycling and Food
Waste.

Following the completion of these reports the improvement phase begins
which seeks to use the findings from the data to contribute to service
improvement. WIP will facilitate Improvement groups consisting of local
authority officers which will meet to consider findings and make
recommendations or identify next steps.

The aim of this is to utilise the knowledge and experience of LA officers to
make recommendations for service improvements. This replaced the
previous process whereby the data was used to devise recommendations
which were then monitored annually by the Wales Audit Office.

51
Page 139



5. This process is illustrated in the diagram below:

WASTE IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAMME (WIP)

April

| WP Finance

CSS decide | Samicares2 1st CSS meeting to
on detailed | set 3 x benchmarking
improvement service areas
groups New CSS & WIP - E
Group to
examine finance

report

IMPROVEMENT
OUTER CIRCLE

2—3

S wip wip September

improvement Finance Benchmarking P

groups led by Report Paper

fachitators BENCHMARKING

Representatives Dats collacrod from INNER CIRCLE

ocal authorities

"::‘ al‘:’p""’{‘;‘a;" Data from local Finance and

:y c;s G‘::upe authorities analysed | Benchmarking

Lead Officer Sept/Dec Benchmarking process
- B to be held later in the

Good' Pracﬂco year to accommodate

specific improvement support

and dovetail with
finance process

Ties CSS more
into the process

6. CSS Heads of Waste met in May 2019 to agree two topics for further
analysis by officer groups

1. Issues with fly tipping data and development of Fly-tipping
Enforcement Performance indicator
2. Consistency and methodology of Finance and benchmarking data

The groups will meet summer 2019 and report back to CSS Heads of Waste in
September.

52
Page 140



February 2017

WLGA Waste Finance Project 2015-16
Wil tialifel Local Authority Bulletin — Monmouthshire

OVERVIEW

m  Monmouthshire’s overall net expenditure on household waste services
(Residual, Dry recycling, Organic, CA and Bring sites) for 2015/16 was
£4,960,719.

m  This represents an expenditure of £123.90 household per annum (£2.38 per
household per week).

m  When compared with the other local authorities in Wales on a per household
basis, Monmouthshire are ranked as second lowest cost out of 22 authorities
(median expenditure per household is £161.40, lowest expenditure £118.80).

m  Overall expenditure on household waste services has reduced by 7% when
compared to 2014/15.

INDIVIDUAL SERVICES
Dry Recycling

m  Total Net service cost; £30.70 per household.
Ranked 6™ out of 22, median cost £39.20, Lowest cost £9.20

m  Collection cost; £20.20 per household.
Ranked 4t out of 22, median cost £30.70, Lowest cost £9.20

m  Post collection costs (Transfer, Treatment & Disposal) £10.60 per household.
Ranked 15t out of 22. Median cost is £9.60, lowest cost -£6.70. (£6.70
income per household).

m  Service collected a total of 10,590 tonnes, which equates to 257kg per
household. Ranked 3™ of 22 authorities. Median mass per household 183kg,
highest mass 328kg.

Organic Wastes

Monmouthshire were one of 4 authorities operating a combined food waste and
garden waste collection service form the kerbside.

m  Total net service cost; £29.70 per household served.
Ranked 3 of 4, median cost £27.40, lowest cost £21.50

m  Collection Cost; £12.10 per household served,
Ranked lowest cost of 4, median cost £14.20, lowest cost £12.10.

Page 141



m  Post collection costs; £17.70 per household.

The 3 lowest cost out of 4, median cost £13.50, lowest cost £8.70.

m Service collected a total of 7,604 tonnes per annum, which equates to 185kg
per household. Ranked 2" of 4 authorities. Median mass per household
162kg, highest 233kg.

HWRC Sites

m  Total net service cost; £32.40 per household.

n Ranked 15 lowest cost out of 22, median cost £28.63, lowest cost £13.58.

m  HWRC sites handled 21,745 tonnes of waste at an average of 528kg per

household per annum. (Ranked highest out of 22, median 290kg, highest
528kg). Of this total, 13,695 tonnes was recycled which represents a
diversion rate of 63% (Ranked 19t of 22, median 77%, highest 100%).

Residual Waste

Total net service cost; £27.50 per household served.
Ranked 2™ of 22, median cost £62.15, lowest £20.89.

Collection Cost; £8.18 per household served
Ranked 2" out of 22, median cost £24.80, lowest £7.62.

Post collection costs; £19.32 per household.
Ranked 3 of 22, median cost £35.49, lowest £3.89.

Page 142



-
= g
¥  monmouthshire
&\ sir fynwy
Name of the Officer completing the evaluation Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal — The
Carl Touhig proposal sets out the measures necessary to increase recycling,

maintain budgets and rationalize services. It includes the closure
of Usk HWRC, opening hours aligned to capacity and continuation
of booking system.

Phone no: 01633 644135
E-mail: carltouhig@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Name of Service area Date 02/09/2020

Neighbourhood Services Version 2

Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the

i)
8 evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.
D
|_\
I
w



Protected
Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

., e RV\ ]

reassignment

Age Closing Usk HWRC will reduce the volume of There are perceived negative impacts 99.99% of residents visiting the site do
traffic entering Usk to dispose of waste that can | that closure of Usk will impact negatively | so in vehicles and changes to lay out in
be recycled at the kerbside. Reduced town on older residents without vehicles.. 2018 dicouraged walk-ins. This was due
centre air pollution will benefit all ages, . ) ) to the H_SE gwdar_lce on pedestrians

. Older people are less familiar with online | and vehicles sharing space on waste
especially the young and the older who are booking systems and the use of this sites should be deterred.
more vulnerable to the health impacts of air system may negatively impact them.
pollution The booking system has been used
People who work may struggle to access | over 15,000 times since its introduction
sites if site opening hours are restricted. | and 80% of users self-service. The
contact centre is available to book in for
those without access to a smart phone,
. tablet or computer.
g The sites will be open on the weekends
D and at 8am 3 days per week. The
;‘ booking system ensures residents are
N not joining long queues and at present
the maximum waiting time on site is
under 15 minutes. There was
overwhelming support for reduced
hours on weekends and in the winter in
the public consultation.

Disability The booking system ensures that no-one Longer journey times accessing Usk is equi-distance between Llanfoist
waits in long queues and that visitors are Llanfosit, Five Lanes or Mitchel Troy and Five Lanes at 10 miles. The
assured access. Llanfoist, Five Lanes and from Usk. additional journey time to site will be
Mitchel Troy have vehicle ramp to improve : . offset by reduced waltl.ng times on site

: : During Covid we have been unable to and easy access to skips.
access for disabled residents. Usk does not assist residents depositing waste and it
have suitable access for disabled or infirm is unknown how long this situation will
residents and is accessed via metal steps continue.N
and gantries.
Gender N/A




Describe any positive impacts your

Describe any negative impacts

What has been/will be done to

4T "\RV\ 1

Welsh Language

Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?
Marriage or civil N/A
partnership
Pregnancy or N/A
maternity
Race N/A
Religion or Belief N/A
Sex N/A
O
D
D
_Sexual Orientation N/A
N
é N/A

Poverty

Increased milage costs may impact
negatively on families living in poverty.

Through Covid 19 there has been a
substantial increase in households
using kerbside services. Kerbside
collections increase recycling, reduce
unnecessary costs and journeys to
HWRCs for residents.

2. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal. There’s no need to put something in every box if it is

not relevant!




Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A prosperous Wales

Efficient use of resources, skilled,
educated people, generates wealth,
provides jobs

Higher recycling rates support the creation of jobs
and creates wealth within the circular economy.

The booking system will allow residents to visit at
times that are convenient and guarantee quick turn-
around. This reduces down-time on the site and for
visitors.

A resilient Wales

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and
ecosystems that support resilience and
can adapt to change (e.g. climate
change)

The proposed measures will increase overall
recycling rates and reduce residual waste, reducing
our carbon footprint. The proceeds from the re-use
shop and proposed new re-use shop will be invested
in projects to tackle the climate emergency, such as
tree planting.

Maintaining the positive behavioural changes in the
ways people manage waste.

Impacts are understood

;DU Closure of the Usk HWRC will improve air quality in
%A healthier Wales the town centre, which will reduce health problems
p-People’s physical and mental such as asthma, heart and lung disease. In addition,
gNellbeing is maximized and health removing heavy vehicles from the Usk car park will

make the car park safer

A Wales of cohesive communities
Communities are attractive, viable,
safe and well connected

Any changes to waste collections and infrastructure
are challenged with accusations of increased

flytipping.

There is no data correlation between closure of
facilities and increased flytipping.

Closing Usk HWRC will reduce traffic in the town
making the roads safer for pedestrians and more
attractive and safe for visitors.

Anti-litter and flytipping campaigns are running
locally and nationally.

Continuing with the booking system will avoid
problems of queuing traffic affecting surrounding
roads

A globally responsible Wales
Taking account of impact on global

well-being when considering local

Recycling is a key driver for Wales and the Circular
Economy agenda places Wales as a world leader in

Reducing, reusing and recycling waste reduces
consumption of resources and reduces carbon




Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? What actions have been/will be taken to
Describe the positive and negative impacts. mitigate any negative impacts or better

contribute to positive impacts?

wellbeing

social, economic and environmental sustainability and the well-being of future

generations.

emissions, reducing our impact on global climate
change

recreation

A Wales of vibrant culture and N/a
thriving Welsh language
Culture, heritage and Welsh language
are promoted and protected. People
are encouraged to do sport, art and

A more equal Wales
People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or benefit all.
circumstances

Reliance on transport to visit HWRCs makes Wales less | Continue to improve the collections infrastructure
equal- good kerbside collections with high recycling rates | and increase materials recycled at the kerbside

afrd

How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?

o ol

LV()S

ustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met

Are there any additional actions to be taken to

Principle this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain mitigate any negative impacts or better
why. contribute to positive impacts?

Balancing The proposal sets out the direction of waste for the next contract | A full range of options to mitigate any negative impacts
short term term of 10 to 15 years. Making decisions now will guide the are included in the main report.
need with services we need and can afford for the long term.
long term and
planning for
the future

Long Term




Sustainable Development

Principle

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met
this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain
why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

Working
together with

We have consulted with stakeholders and residents on the
proposals. We have worked closely with Viridor as our
current contractor to manage the sites during this period of

Continue to work with neighbouring authorities and Welsh
Government on waste changes that may impact wider
than MCC. Continue to investigate a Wales-wide network

O1-T "\RV\ 1
oVl vvYtd

other . .
M‘ arners to uncertainty and worked with Welsh Government and the 21 ggan\{[ngtséthat are not affected by cross border waste
P : other Welsh authorities and Hereford and Forest of Dean to '
deliver ) :
. ensure the reopening of HWRCs does not impact on
. objectives . : e
Collaboration neighbouring authorities.
_ We have consulted with residents and their views have been There was a reliance on generic consultations in the
Involvmg taken into consideration within the report. The consultation was original report recommending the closure of Usk in 2019
those with promoted through social media including on the Change.org as the report sought much wider decisions. This was
an interest petition to keep Usk HWRC open. We have met with the Town accompanied by robust data to suppot the decision taken.
and seeking | Council regarding the proposals to close Usk. Many of the Althoggh the re_c_ommendatlon remc';uns the Same but
their views | recommendations have been taken through Member Workshops, | there is recognition that a consultation with residents
Strong Communities Select and Cabinet previously and will be specifically on proposed changes to HWRCs prior to
Involvement returning through these functions. Cabinet 2019 would have been beneficial.
The booking system substantially reduces queing times on
Putting site. Improvements in the system will be investigated to
resources drive up the current self-servicing from 80% to 90% and
Into reduce pressure on the Contact Centre.
preventing
problems HWRCs have not contributed positively to the recycling
occurring or | efforts in Monmouthshire and have undermined the work of
Pravantion getting kerpsm!e recyclln.g. reS|dent§. Restrictions on HWRCS will
worse maintain the positive behavior changes experienced

through Covid19;




why.

Sustainable Development Does your proposal demonstrate you have met
Principle this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain

Are there any additional actions to be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

wellbeing globally responsible Wales.

goals
together and
on other

Integration bodies

Considering | These decisions impact directly on Monmouthshire residents but
impact on all improving recycling rates in Monmouthshire will help support a

4. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on the following important responsibilities: Social Justice,
Corporate Parenting and Safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect any of these responsibilities?

Describe any positive impacts your

Describe any negative impacts

What will you do/ have you done

levels can recycle substantial quantities of
household waste free of charge, without needing
a car to go to a HWRC

SE proposal has your proposal has to mitigate any negative impacts
«@ or better contribute to positive
® impacts?

'_]§Social Justice Maintaining a comprehensive kerbside recycling

do scheme means that all residents of all income

Safeguarding N/A

Corporate Parenting | N/A

5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?




The report includes data from

Wastedataflow on recycling rates,

WLGA Benchmarking data on performance and costs,

MCS internal data sets on site usage and booking system, flytipping,
Eunomia and WRAP on HWRC provision in Monmouthshire,

Public consultation on Future Provision of Waste Services

Resource Futures compositional analysis .

6. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have

they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

NCT "\RV\ 1
Ual 9vtEd

The changes to the services proposed or to be considered further as a consequence of this report have significant positive contributions to make to the Wellbeing
Goals. In particular it has strong benefits for a Prosperous Wales, by supporting the ongoing development of a low carbon economy. There is also potential to
contribute to Cohesive Communities, by working collaboratively and in partnership with our communities to reduce the impact that waste has upon our communities.

7. ACTIONS: As aresult of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if

applicable.

What are you going to do

When are you going to do it?

Who is responsible

8. VERSION CONTROL: The Equality and Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stage, such as informally
within your service, and then further developed throughout the decision making process. Itis important to keep a record of this




process to demonstrate how you have considered and built in equality and future generations considerations wherever

possible.
Version | Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following
No. consideration
1 Cabinet Dec 19 Closure of Usk was put in abeyance awaiting additional
compositional analysis and data collectiom
2 Stong Communities Select Sept 20 Inclusion of consultation and additional data.
3 Cabinet Oct 20

TGT abed




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 153



vGT obed

Household waste recycling
centres



Household Waste Recycling Centres

Covid 19 closed all sites on 237 March

Llanfoist and Five Lanes reopened May 26" with booking system
Decision made to take all materials on site

80% slots were booked per day for first two weeks

Bookings have declined since opening

Bookings decreased to 65% capacity in July and 58% in August

Extra capacity also available within current operating hours as
currently have two hours downtime built in

Mitchel Troy opened 15 September
Usk remains closed due to Covid 19 guidelines and restrictions



HWRC

June 2019 visitor
numbers

9GT abed

Usk was not counted
but tonnages would

suggest average 170
cars per day

Mitchel troy Total number of entrants in June: 7184

Average Tuesday Wednesday |Friday Saturday |Sunday

8am - 9am 30 16 24 24 25

9am - 10am 26 20 37 49 37|

10am - 1lam 30 33 42 38 45

11am - 12pm 42 30 35 ao|es|

12pm - 1pm 30 35 34 49 37

ilpm -2pm 24 25 20 41 50

2pm - 3pm 30 36 35 37 43

3pm -4pm 32 30 28 41 42

4pm - 5pm 21 24 18 36 27

Spm - 6pm 14 20 19 23 18

Average Total: 277 274 292 387 375

Five Lanes Total entrants in June: 9736

Average Monday Tuesday Wednesday |Friday Saturday ISu nday
8am - 9am 20 5 20 22 3s| 34
9am - 10am 38 27 33 43 43 39
10am - 11am 41 39 42 42

1lam - 12pm 39 40 37 36 e

12pm - 1pm 27 36 30 33 45

lpm -2pm 41 29 39 50 48 49
2pm - 3pm 46 a2 3z| S| a7 a7
3pm -4pm 35 30 =7 45 42 49
4pm - 5Spm 35 33 28 40 41 38
S5pm - 6pm 21 20 18 Z5 19 17
Average Total: 339 311 314 397 407 451
Llanfoist Total entrants in June: 16598

Average Monday Tuesday Thursday Saturday ISundav
8am - 9am 31 8

9am - 10am 3

10am - 1lam

llam - 12pm

12pm - 1pm

1pm - 2pm

2pm - 3pm

3pm -4pm

4pm - 5pm

Spm - 6pm

Average Total:

Average per day

342.0952

389.4533

663.92



* Booking system usage - Llanfoist 360 slots available per

/ST abed

HWRC

day including van and trailers, booking required 72hrs in

advance
02/07/2020 19 16/07/2020 327 30/07/2020 307 13/08/2020 289 27/08/2020 296
03/07/2020 145 17/07/2020 316 31/07/2020 301 14/08/2020 310 28/08/2020 302
04/07/2020 179 18/07/2020 303 01/08/2020 110 15/08/2020 253 29/08/2020 250
05/07/2020 170 19/07/2020 222 02/08/2020 127 16/08/2020 176 30/08/2020 238
06/07/2020 163 20/07/2020 253 03/08/2020 201 17/08/2020 216 31/08/2020 210
07/07/2020 226 21/07/2020 270 04/08/2020 164 18/08/2020 130 01/09/2020 201
08/07/2020 0 22/07/2020 0 05/08/2020 0 19/08/2020 0 02/09/2020 0
09/07/2020 294 23/07/2020 315 06/08/2020 296 20/08/2020 294 03/09/2020 265
10/07/2020 288 24/07/2020 311 07/08/2020 303 21/08/2020 259
11/07/2020 241 25/07/2020 298 08/08/2020 249 22/08/2020 203
12/07/2020 230 26/07/2020 243 09/08/2020 211 23/08/2020 197
13/07/2020 233 27/07/2020 238 10/08/2020 241 24/08/2020 243
14/07/2020 262 28/07/2020 251 11/08/2020 170 25/08/2020 172
15/07/2020 0 29/07/2020 0 12/08/2020 0 26/08/2020 0




1.

..-r*"

o

NG 2 ",_.',f*qv* 1 WA % E,'
= gt 10 W LN .;
-y v
g -

HWRC

e Llanfoist Visits

8GT abed




HWRC

* Booking system usage - Llanfoist 360 slots available per
day including van and trailers, booking required 72hrs in

ral oY

6GT abed

advgnbc

03/07/2020 123 17/07/2020 319 31/07/2020 263 14/08/2020 284 28/08/2020 284
04/07/2020 109 18/07/2020 213 01/08/2020 106 15/08/2020 169 29/08/2020 218
05/07/2020 136 19/07/2020 172 02/08/2020 89 16/08/2020 129 30/08/2020 125
06/07/2020 137 20/07/2020 167 03/08/2020 148 17/08/2020 151 31/08/2020 133
07/07/2020 128 21/07/2020 197 04/08/2020 117 18/08/2020 121 01/09/2020 115
08/07/2020 186 22/07/2020 219 05/08/2020 139 19/08/2020 96 02/09/2020 137
09/07/2020 0 23/07/2020 0 06/08/2020 0 20/08/2020 0 03/09/2020 0
10/07/2020 250 24/07/2020 302 07/08/2020 273 21/08/2020 253
11/07/2020 181 25/07/2020 217 08/08/2020 195 22/08/2020 137
12/07/2020 191 26/07/2020 187 09/08/2020 155 23/08/2020 136
13/07/2020 160 27/07/2020 174 10/08/2020 162 24/08/2020 175
14/07/2020 219 28/07/2020 157 11/08/2020 122 25/08/2020 119
15/07/2020 209 29/07/2020 184 12/08/2020 110 26/08/2020 103
16/07/2020 0 30/07/2020 0 13/08/2020 0 27/08/2020 0




HWRC

* Five lanes
Visits

09T abed

ok
§
by 5
I 2
» % =
% .
% '
i s
<"

= i"_\?.
e




Household Recycling Centres
Opening hours and booking-in system

Booking-in system
* Llanfoist and Five Lanes reopened with a booking in system
* Very well received by public and site staff

® We would like to keep it on a permanent basis and are taking this decision
% through Scrutiny and Cabinet
H

(@]

"Opening hours — decision also going through Scrutiny and Cabinet

Cabinet agreed a review in Sept 2019....options that have been considered are:
Option 1) 8 hour day (8am — 4pm): estimated cost £690k (estimated saving £140k)

S{J(’)c&n) 2) Close an extra day at Llanfoist and Five Lanes: £730K (estimated saving

Option 3) Both: £640k (estimated saving £190K)
Current estimated staffing costs based on MCC pay rates: £830k




Household Recycling Centres
Second reuse shop at Five Lanes

* Circular economy bid has been submitted for the buildings to
house a re-use shop at Five Lanes

* Will find out in October if we have been awarded the money

29T obed

* Does not include cost of groundworks and installation so
further funding bid will be necessary to cover costs and get
up and running.



€97 abed

Recommendations to Scrutiny and Cabinet:

To rationalise the service provision of HWRCs:

 continuation of the booking system

* Full closure of Usk HWRC

* revised opening hours 08:00 to 16:00
 additional day closure at Five Lanes and Llanfoist

* This will inform our specification for the service which needs to be re-
tendered as soon as possible for contract start date October 2021.



9T abed

Usk Recycling Centre



GoT abed

Usk Recycling Centre

e Decision to close Usk from March 315t 2020 taken in December 2019

* Decision in abeyance awaiting further options review and
consultation

e Officer recommendation to scrutiny and cabinet remains at the full
closure of Usk



99T abed

Usk Compositional analysis of residual waste

2019 and 2020 _
compositional analysis of Usk HWRC residual
Usk residual skip

Over 52% of material
entering Usk is deposited in
the residual skip compared
to 39% in Five lanes

Material deposited as
residual that could be

recycled at the kerbside is w Way

proEortlonaIIy higher than o . N

at the other sites we g R
Garden B DY B Glass

Higher number of black
bags with more recyclable
material inside

B Metal W Other recyclable W Residual



HWRC options and EQIA

Build another site in Usk — quotes for Mitchel Troy £1.5m to move to lower area.
Already own the land and it’s a waste site — unaffordable for Usk given low usage,
planning issues with moving waste facilities, cost etc

Unmanned facility on site or elsewhere in Usk — Powys removed unmanned facilities as
they were prone to abuse from traders, flytipping, cost of clearing, permits and
planning issues. Wales moved from bring banks as kerbside recycling rolled out. The
%nly materials that could be stored at unmanned sites are collected at kerbside

H

Recycling only — disposal of black bags ranked 4t in importance, in Usk it was 5%
Not reflective of actual on site usage data, residents could become agitated if no
facilities available for certain items

EQIA — Usk poor recycling performance, too small, not suitable for infirm (ramps,
lighting, loading access), drainage and H&S issues flagged, cars and vehicles adding to
air pollution in TC, discourages uptake of kerbside collections etc, takes 6% of the waste
but equates 17% of staff costs



HWRC Survey Responses

Five Lanes Count 330
Llanfoist Count 206
Mitchel Troy Count 233
Usk Count 182
'UG rand Count 951

D
€ What is most important to you — Ranked 1 being lowest and 5

5 being highest

Helpful staff
Wide range of facilities for recycling

How far | have to travel to site
Black bag/rubbish is accepted

Area for putting items aside for re-use/resale

Ease of access to skips on site e.g. No steps

A reuse shop on site open to the public

Stopping business waste being brought to site
Commercial vehicles are restricted e.g. Vans and trailers

Area for sorting black bags on site (to increase recycling)

4256

4218
4102
3889
3686
3585
3342
3047
2953
2651

Wide range of facilities for recycling

Helpful staff
How far | have to travel to site

Area for putting items aside for re-use/resale

Black bag/rubbish is accepted

Stopping business waste being brought to site
Commercial vehicles are restricted e.g. Vans and trailers
A reuse shop on site open to the public

Ease of access to skips on site e.g. No steps

Area for sorting black bags on site (to increase recycling)

515

469
467
417
391
390
383
332
314
312



HWRC Survey Responses

How often do you visit the site

How often do you visit the site Usk Mitchel Troy Llanfoist Five Lanes
More than once a week 27 14 9 5
Once a week 59 42 27 21
fornightly 20 41 29 48
U Monthly 32 50 55 89
% Occasionally 22 77 72 158
= Never 1 1 3
8 Total 161 225 192 324

17% of Usk visits are more than once a week compared to 6% MT, 5% LL and 1.5% FL
37% of Usk visits are once a week compared to 19% MT, 29% LL and 5% FL

14% of Usk visits are occasional compared to 34% MT, 38% LL and 49% FL



HWRC Survey Responses

FIVE LANES

other

.. recyclables
Electrical items

Black bags

DIY waste

o
jb)

«Q )
(D Variety
=
~ recycling (glass ~

bottles, tins,

cans, paper
and cardboard)

Garden waste

MITCHEL TROY

other

recyclables
Electrical items

Black bags

DIY waste

Variety\
Household

recycling (glass
bottles, tins,

cans, paper and
cardboard)

Garden waste

USK

other
recyclables
Black bags

Electrical items

DIY waste

Variety

recycling (glas
bottles, tins,

cans, paper and
cardboard)

Garden waste

LLANFOIST

other recyclables

Electrical items Black bags

DIY waste

Variety

Household
recycling (glass
bottles, tins,
cans, paper and

cardboard) Garden waste



Flytipping

Year on Year comparison for April, May, June, July, August
2020/21 — Apr 119, May 116, Jun 107, Jul 129, Aug 68 = Total = 539 (-10 for verified data)
2019/20 - Apr 113, May 115, Jun 73, Jul 132, Aug 54 = Total = 487



e BN o

MW Bomastiee

= i, My Monmouthshire

= Service

Map  Satelite

Swansea

P My mcomt

a

sy W Yy Mosmouman

E U:. My Monmouthshire




¢/ T abed

Questions?



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

(@4 monmouthshire
WO sir fynwy
SUBJECT: GARDEN WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE
MEETING: STRONG COMMUNITIES SELECT COMMITTEE
DATE: 28™ SEPTEMBER 2020
DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: ALL

11

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

PURPOSE:

The waste and recycling service provision across the County must continually evolve to
meet challenging statutory targets, volatile markets and increasing costs. This reports sets
out measures that will be necessary to achieve national statutory recycling targets, minimise
budget pressures and provide sustainable garden waste services going forward. Following
the review commissioned by Cabinet on 20/12/19, this report has full findings of the review
for consideration, including changing frequency of collection and change of container for
garden waste.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
That the Strong Communities Select Committee conducts pre-decision scrutiny of this report

and through its scrutiny, considers any further recommendations it may wish to make to the
Cabinet. The recommendations for Cabinet are:

)] To approve the change of frequency of collection of garden waste from weekly to
fortnightly.

i) To approve the change of container from an 80 litre garden waste bag to a 240 litre
wheeled bin.

iii) To consider and approve the charge levied for the future service.

Key Issues: Delivery of garden waste service

The chargeable garden waste collection service has now been in operation for over 7 years.
The service commenced at £8 per permit per annum and is now £18 for a nine month
seasonal service and is planned to remain so for the 2021 season. The price increases have
reflected a reduction in grant funding from Welsh Government that helped subsidise the
scheme and a better understanding of cost of delivering the service over several years.

The garden waste service is highly regarded by our 11,600 customers and provides a cost
effective alternative to taking garden waste to the household waste recycling centres.

Prior to December 2018, garden waste was co-collected and mixed with food waste and
sent to for disposal at an in-vessel composting facility. Due to co-collection the costs were

Page 175



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

apportioned by an estimated percentage. In 2018 the council secured a long term food waste
treatment contract with a substantially lower gate fee, producing electricity at a Bridgend
Anaerobic Digestion plant.

A separate garden waste treatment contract with a local Abergavenny based company was
also secured in 2018. This means that both material streams have been collected separately
in 2019 for the first time and therefore collection costs can be accurately determined.

This year’s garden waste service collection costs have been calculated at circa £660,000
per annum against income generated at £330,000. Subsidising garden waste collections
across Wales is commonplace. For many authorities it is the only way of achieving the
recycling targets and as such services are heavily subsidised. For many residents without
transport it is the only way of sending garden waste for treatment.

Balancing the potential recycling fines against the cost of providing the service is clearly
important as is providing a highly regarded service at an affordable price.

Options for Consideration

Option A — weekly reusable bags

The modelling within Appendix 1 demonstrates that if we were to remove the full level of
subsidy for the current weekly reusable bag service, an annual charge of £36.28 per permit
would need to be introduced to fully cover collection costs.

Option A: income required to cover cost of service delivery £660,000.

Option B — fortnightly wheeled bin

The modelling demonstrates that the introduction of a fortnightly service using wheeled bins
would require an annual charge to the customer of £29.62 per bin to fully cover costs. This
is achieved through a reduction in the number of collection vehicles and crew members.
Option B: income required to cover cost of service delivery £500,000.

Option C - fortnightly bags

The modelling demonstrates an annual charge of £28.82 per permit would be required.
Option C: income required to cover cost of service delivery £525,000.

Option D - weekly wheeled bins

The modelling demonstrates an annual charge of £53.63 per bin would be required.
Option D: income required to cover cost of service delivery £650,000.

The figures quoted above are based on retaining our current customer base.

A fall in customer numbers however, will pose a financial risk as again, we will see a shortfall
in income compared to cost of delivery. Therefore, for each option, we may need to consider
an additional increase in cost to cover any potential shortfall.

Page 176



3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

4.1

With this in mind, we have modelled the charges we would need to impose to cover costs
with a 15% decrease in customer numbers. These are shown highlighted in red within
appendix 1 and would bring the ‘Option A’ weekly bag charge to just under £43 and the
‘Option B’ fortnightly bin option charge to £35. The £35 for fortnightly bins would bring us
closer in cost to our neighbouring authorities currently charging for garden waste collection.
(These charges are included for comparison in appendix 5).

The cost per litre for all four options has been included within Appendix 2. It shows that the
fortnightly wheeled bin service represents best value for money for the customer, with a
lower annual charge and a lower price per litre than the weekly reusable bag service, which
as shown, costs nearly twice as much per litre in comparison.

It has been identified that delivering garden waste collections as a stand-alone service with
reusable bags (Options A and C) requires very large rounds with increased manual handling
for crews, which, could become a potential concern for their health and well-being.
Prolonged exposure could bring increased risk of muscular-skeletal injury for our collection
crews and we need to mitigate this as far as possible. The manual handling issue would be
exacerbated even further with the fortnightly bag ‘Option C’ as each resident would
potentially have twice the amount of bags out for collection each week, we therefore feel
that Option C is not operationally acceptable and should not be considered further.

Fortnightly collections, using 240 litre wheeled bins (Option B), is best practice and would
reduce manual handling for crews therefore reducing risk of injury whilst providing adequate
storage for residents.

Consultation with service users in 2018 (Appendix 6) was 50/50 on the acceptance of
wheeled bins as an option, they are likely be more acceptable in comparison to the
increased costs of permits for the bagged service.

A second consultation has been developed to gather feedback on proposals. This has been
sent to all current garden waste customers and pushed out on social media channels for all
residents, results will be published and made available to members following the closure on
the 25" of September 2020.

New vehicles for the garden waste service need to be procured as soon as possible to
replace our current 2012 plate Refuse Collection Vehicles (RCVs) in time for delivery March
2021 therefore a decision is pressing.

OPTIONS APPRAISAL - Delivery of garden waste service

Appendix 2 provides an overview of the four options modelled for the garden waste
collection service. Some of the key factors included in Appendix 2 are outlined below:

e Manual handling issues created by garden waste bags — The garden bags have
always been one of the heaviest waste streams to collect due to the composition of
the garden waste, exacerbated once the waste becomes wet. When the garden
waste was co-collected with food waste prior to 2018 the manual handing issues were
mitigated through reduced exposure to our crews. The collection rounds were

Page 177



arranged so that only around a quarter of properties on each collection round were
garden waste customers meaning only food boxes were collected from the majority
of households. Following the change of garden waste service to a seasonal
standalone service, the collection crew on those vehicles only collect garden waste
which could lead to an increase in muscular skeletal issues within our workforce.
Wheelie bins will alleviate these manual handling issues and will be beneficial for our
workforce in the future.

Cost — As outlined above the garden waste service has traditionally been heavily
subsidised by the authority but while the garden waste was co-collected with food
waste it was difficult to accurately determine the cost of collection of the garden
waste. Now the garden waste is collected separately the costs involved with garden
waste are much clearer. To continue the service into 2021 with all subsidy removed
the cost per bag will need to be £36.28, this is a significant increase from the £18.00
that was charged in 2020. All of the modelled options for 2021 are a significant
increase from 2020 but moving to a wheelie bin service would offer our customers
the best value for money. As outlined in Appendix 2 due to the increased capacity of
a wheelie bin the cost per litre is much better than the current service.

Environmental impact — The current garden waste service has many issues in
terms of its environmental impact, the garden waste bags are replaced very regularly,
at the moment we are selling around 17,000 bags per annum, and of these around
12,000 are replaced each year. The average lifespan of a wheelie bin is 10 years,
and could be re-used, they would become an asset to the authority, if a customer
decided not to renew the service we would collect the bin from them and have the
ability to re-sell that bin to a new customer. The current service also relies heavily on
permits being printed and sent to each customer each year. A wheeled bin service
would not require any permits to be printed, each bin would be fitted with a microchip
that would be read by the collection vehicle at point of collection, and it would inform
the crew if the bin is a valid customer. The wheeled bins will also be made from 90%
recycled material. This is beneficial from a cost and future generation’s wellbeing
basis.

Receptacle size — The current garden waste bags we sell to our residents are
beneficial for our residents who currently receive an assisted collection.

A potential disadvantage to moving to a wheeled bin service may be that some of our
residents may struggle to move a large bin to and from their garden. This could lead
to an increase in assisted collection requests that would put pressure onto our
collection crews.

As an alternative to wheelie bins for our more vulnerable customers we would
continue to offer the reusable bag, this would be taken on a case-by-case basis and
we would work with our residents to find the best solution to meet their needs. This
would also allow us to utilise the current stock of bags that we have in storage.

The benefit to a larger storage receptacle would be an increased winter storage
capacity for the residents who struggle during the winter non-collection months.
Residents would be able to fill their bin during the non-collection months and when
the service resumed in March it would be collected. During the Covid-19 outbreak

Page 178



4.2

5.1

that we have experienced this year we had to suspend the Garden Waste collection
service to protect the other key services our residents rely on, if we had wheelie bins
in place it would have been much easier to help our customers. They could have
continued to fill their bin during lockdown and when services were resumed, the bin
would have been emptied with very little disruption for our customers. As a non-
statutory service garden waste is going to always be one of the first services to be
stopped during an emergency and a wheelie bin could be a valuable asset to our
customers moving forward if we do experience additional spikes with the current
pandemic or other emergencies in the future.

Attached as appendix 5 is a comparison of the proposed garden waste service offered by
neighbouring authorities.

EVALUATION CRITERIA

The criteria used to evaluate the success of these proposals include: a reduced level of

subsidy for the garden waste service; customer retention rate; reduction in staff sickness absence
resulting from manual handling injuries; lower fuel costs and reduced CO2 emissions from less
frequent collections collecting a higher volume of waste

6.

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

7.2

7.3

REASONS

Long term exposure to lifting the current garden waste bags may lead to muscular skeletal
issues and injuries and the transition to a wheelie bin collection service would eradicate the
possible problem.

The increased costs associated with reducing the subsidising of the garden waste collection
service can be offset but giving our customers a larger capacity for their garden waste. This
will a better value for money service.

Reducing the environmental impact of the garden waste collection service is important for
working toward the Council’'s policy commitment to reduce its carbon emissions and the
wellbeing of future generations.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

If the authority proceeded with Option B there would be no financial impact on the
service. The cost of the wheeled bins would be spread over 5 years and would be paid for
from savings generated from not having to provide permits or bags.

All other savings generated via reduced collection frequency and the unit price increase will
need to be re-aligned within the recycling and waste department to offset investment in other
service changes such as the roll-out of the Polypropylene recycling bags and manage the
existing extreme financial budget pressures.

These changes will be made in line with the roll out of polypropylene recycling bags
approved by cabinet in 2017 meaning that the operatives affected would be redeployed in
line with Monmouthshire’s protection of employment policy.

Page 179



8.0

8.1

8.2

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS IMPLICATIONS (INCORPORATING
EQUALITIES, SUSTAINABILITY, SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING):

The changes to the services proposed or to be considered further as a consequence of this
report have significant positive contributions to make to the Wellbeing Goals. In particular it
has strong benefits for a Prosperous Wales, by supporting the ongoing development of a
low carbon economy. There is also potential to contribute to Cohesive Communities, by
working collaboratively and in partnership with our communities to reduce the impact that
waste has upon our communities. There are no negative impacts on the Well-being Goals.

The potential that larger wheeled bins could be difficult for older people or those with
disabilities to move was identified. An alternative option identified as highlighted in the body
of the report. There are further no significant positive or negative impacts on the protected
characteristics, safeguarding or corporate parenting. The principles of Long term,
Prevention, Integration, Collaboration and Involvement have been used throughout the
development of these proposals (see Appendix 4).

CONSULTEES:

Enterprise DMT 2" Dec 2019
Strong Communities Select Committee March 215t and 15" October 2019
Cabinet member

BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Appendix 1 - Garden waste service cost modelling
Appendix 2 - Options appraisal for garden waste service

Appendix 3 - Equality and Future Generations Evaluation
Appendix 4 - Garden Waste service comparison with neighbouring authorities
Appendix 5 — Results from 2019 public Garden Waste consultation

AUTHOR:
Dewi Lane, Senior Collections Officer, Neighbourhood services (Recycling and Waste)
CONTACT DETAILS:

Tel: 01291 691309
E-mail: dewilane@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 180



TQT abed

Garden waste modelling

Option D
Proposed weekly

Equivalent bin
allocation

1.0

1.0

1.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

3.0

3.0

Option A
Current service 2019/20
No of Fortnightly
No of permits |customers [Litreage Total bags
1 7099 160 7099
2 3248 320 6496
3 784 480 2352
4 301 640 1204
5 121 800 605
6 44 960 264
7 3 1120 21
8 8 1280 64
9 2 1440 18
10 7 1600 70
11617 18193
Annual Costs Current
Vehicles 96875
Receptacles 20000
Staff 313095.8904
Veh maint and fuel 200000
system costs 5000
Permits 25000
TOTAL 659970.8904
Required charge to cover costs £36.28
Required charge to cover costs with
15% reduction in customers £42.68

3.0

Option B
Proposed fortnightly wheeled bins 2021/22
Equivalent bin [No of Fortnightly
allocation customers |[Litreage Total bins
1.0 7099 240 7099
2.0 3248 480 6496
2.0 784 480 1568
3.0 301 720 903
4.0 121 960 484
4.0 44 960 176
5.0 3 1200 15
6.0 8 1440 48
6.0 2 1440 12
7.0 7 1680 49
11617 16850
Annual Costs Proposed
Vehicles 74350
Receptacles 64800
Staff 249876.712
Veh maint and fuel 105000
system costs 5000
Permits 499026.712
TOTAL
£29.62
£34.84

4.0

Option C
Proposed fortnightly bags 2021/22
No of Fortnightly
No of permits [customers Litreage Total bags
1 7099 160 7099
2 3248 320 6496
3 784 480 2352
4 301 640 1204
5 121 800 605
6 44 960 264
7 3 1120 21
8 8 1280 64
9 2 1440 18
10 7 1600 70
11617 18193
Annual Costs Proposed
Vehicles 74375
Receptacles 40000
Staff 249876.7
Veh maint and fuel 105000
system costs 5000
Permits 50000
TOTAL 524251.7
£28.82
£33.90

Annual Costs
Vehicles
Receptacles

Staff

Veh maint and fus
system costs
TOTAL



wheeled bins 2021/22

No of Fortnightly
customers |[Litreage Total bins
7099 240 7099
3248 240 3248
784 240 784
301 480 602
121 480 242
44 480 88
3 720 9
8 720 24
2 720 6
7 960 28
11617 12130
Proposed
96875
35533.3333
313095.89
] 200000
&5 5000
Q 650504.224
D
H
(00)
N £53.63

£63.09




Fortnighly Wheelie bins

Vehicle - 26t/18t

Vehicle - 7.5t

Spare allocation (1/2 26t, 1/3 van)
Bins (pru-borrowed over 8 years)
Staff 3 drivers, 5 loaders

Cover staff (50 days per employee)
Vehicle maint and fuel
Management/office staff

Delivery crew - 2 men

Delivery vehicle

system costs

costs

One-off Implementation

Current

Vehicle - 26t x 2

Vehicle - 18t

Vehicle - 7.5t

Spare allocation (1/2 26t, 1/3 van)
Bags

Staff 4 drivers, 6 loaders

Cover staff (50 days per employee)
Vehicle maint and fuel
Management/office staff

system costs

permits

costs

costs
45000
13125
16225
64800
217000
32876.71
105000
75000
52000
10000
5000
636026.7

50000

45000
22500
13125
16250
20000
272000
41095.89
200000
75000
5000
25000
638095.9

Fortnightly bags

Vehicle - 26t x 2

Vehicle - 7.5t

Spare allocation (1/2 26t, 1/3 van)
Bags

Staff 4 drivers, 6 loaders

Cover staff (50 days per employee)
Vehicle maint and fuel
Management/office staff

system costs

permits

costs

Weekly Wheelie bins

Vehicle - 26t x 4

Vehicle - 7.5t x2

Spare allocation (1/2 26t, 1/3 van)
bins

Staff 3 drivers, 5 loaders

Cover staff (50 days per employee)
Vehicle maint and fuel
Management/office staff

system costs

permits

costs

45000
13125
16250
40000
217000
32876.71233
105000
75000

5000

50000
524876.7123

45000

45000

16250
35533.33333
217000
32876.71233
105000
75000

5000

50000
520410.0457



This page is intentionally left blank



Options Appraisal Garden Waste Collection Service

G371 abed

) Frequency of Cost per Annual capacity Comparative cost per
Recepticle . . . ;
collection container (Litres) 80 litres
Option A Bags Weekly £36.28 3120 £0.93
Option B Wheeled bin Fortnightly £29.62 4800 £0.49
Option C Bags Fortnightly £28.82 1600 £1.44
Option D Wheeled bin Weekly £53.63 9360 £0.46




Positives

Service is familiar to our residents

Manual handling issues are removed

Permits no longer required due to microchips in bins

Storage issues reduced

Best value for money

Increased capacity from bags

Bins will not need to be replaced as frequently as bags

The cost of this service is cheaper than weekly collection

9QT abed

Permits no longer required due to microchips in bins

Storage issues reduced due to needing fewer bins than bags

Bins will not need to be replaced as frequently as bags

Manual handling issues are removed
-




Negatives

Service costs will double from the current level

No increase in capacity for the extra cost

Manual handling issues remain leading to increased risk of muscular skeletal issues within our collection teams

Increased cost from current

Too large for some customers

A significant increase in cost from current

No increase in capacity for the extra cost

/8T abed

Storage issues for double amount of bags

Each customer will need to double the amount of bags

Double the amount of bags replaced each year

Double amount of permits printed each year

Manual handling issues increase further

Collection rounds become very large

Extremely expensive

Capacity will be too much for most customers

Too large for some customers




This page is intentionally left blank



.é_
Q

Gl

monmouthshire

Qo sir fynwy

Dewi Lane

Name of the Officer completing the evaluation

Phone no: 01291 691309
E-mail: dewilane@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Garden Waste Cabinet report.

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal —

Moving the garden waste collection service to a wheelie bin
receptacle and fortnightly frequency

Name of Service area

Neighbourhood Services - Waste

Date

2717120

Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the
evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.

NOT
O

Y
o] Protected
Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Age

This proposal does not have any positive
impacts on older people with mobility issues.

The introduction of wheelie bins could
have an adverse impact on older people
in Monmouthshire with mobility issues
who rely upon this service.

Any negative impacts caused to older
residents with mobility issues arising
from the introduction of wheelie bins will
be mitigated by the offer of the
continued use of the existing assisted
collection process.

Another mitigation that will be made
available is to offer those adversely
affected, the continuation of the current
brown bag service.




Protected
Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Welsh Language

Disability The proposal does not have any positive impacts | The introduction of wheelie bins could Any negative impacts caused to older
for people with disabilities. have an adverse impact upon the people | residents with disabilities arising from
of Monmouthshire with disabilities who the introduction of wheelie bins can be
rely upon this service. mitigated by the offer of the continuing
use of the existing assisted collection
process.
Another mitigation that will be made
available is to offer those adversely
affected the continuation of the current
brown bag service.
Gender none none
reassignment
S —
égMarrlage or civil none none
@mpartnership
|._\
ggDregnancy or The proposal does not have any positive impacts | The bags or wheelie bins would Any negative impacts caused to single
. for single pregnant women. There would be no . . cecs pregnant women arising from the
maternity difference with the brown bags or wheelie bins potentially be Jus_t as difficult to introduction of wheelie bins can be
manoeuvre for single pregnant mitigated by the offer of the use of the
women. existing assisted collection process.
Race none none
Religion or Belief none none
Sex none none
Sexual Orientation none none
All promotional material is bi-lingual none




Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What has been/will be done to
Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?
The proposed change to the garden waste The introduction of a wheelie bin will The increased cost of the wheelie bins
service has increased value for money have an increased cost up from the is largely due to the removal of the
Poverty compared with current service. current £18 that was charged in 19/20. £300,000 subsidy currently applied to
People living in poverty may not be able | the bags, if this subsidy continues there
to afford this service. will be little to no increase to the cost of
introducing and wheeled bin. The
increased price of a wheeled bin is
modelled to fully cover the collection
cost of the garden waste service. We
can also work with residents who may
not be able to afford the service to offer
other options, these can include utilizing
HWRC’s and home composting.
B. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
% with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal. There’s no need to put something in every box if it is
P not relevant!
©
et Does the proposal contribute to this goal? What actions have been/will be taken to

Well Being Goal

Describe the positive and negative impacts.

mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A prosperous Wales

Efficient use of resources, skilled,
educated people, generates wealth,

provides jobs

Recycling and the circular economy will help create
a more prosperous Wales. More jobs, better quality
exports, more wealth. The increase in cost for a
wheelie bin may lead to a reduction in participation
in the garden waste service leading to a lower
recycling rate. The introduction of wheelie bins could
also lead to an increase in participation, some
residents during the consultation have indicated they
currently do not use the service but a wheeled bin

This can be mitigated with an advertising campaign
promoting the new bins as an asset to the resident,
the increased capacity, value for money and winter
storage could increase the amount of customers
using the service.




Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?

Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

would convince them to use the service due to
increased capacity

A resilient Wales

can adapt to change (e.g. climate
change)

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and
ecosystems that support resilience and

Recycling is crucial in improving the environmental
impact of waste. Reuse contributes to the circular
economy and the reuse shops income is used to
support climate change program

Providing better services at the kerbside will reduce
the need for residents taking waste to sites as
single car journeys

A healthier Wales
People’s physical and mental
wellbeing is maximized and health

Tmpacts are understood

The introduction of wheelie bins will have health
benefits for our collection staff, it will improve their
manual handling problems and promote health and
wellbeing in the workplace.

=T "\R

D . .
DA Wales of cohesive communities
~Communities are attractive, viable,
afe and well connected

High quality waste services are key in reducing the
impact of waste on communities

Managing waste as a resource, tackling fly tipping
and litter and the environmental crimes that blight
communities

A globally responsible Wales
Taking account of impact on global
well-being when considering local
social, economic and environmental
wellbeing

Wales is a leader in recycling. Higher quality
recycling that takes account of proximity principles
and encourages manufacturing places Wales at the
forefront global responsibility. By reducing
collections of Garden waste to fortnightly it will
reduce the emissions from the collection vehicles
and reduce the road risk of the collection vehicles.

Continue to investigate treatment opportunities for
recycling in Wales and grow the reuse shops using
waste as a resource at a local level

A Wales of vibrant culture and
thriving Welsh language

are promoted and protected. People
are encouraged to do sport, art and

recreation

Culture, heritage and Welsh language

none




Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A more equal Wales
People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or

circumstances

Recycling services can be used by all residents. Creation
of jobs in recycling gives greater life chances to all in
securing employment.

The use of assisted collections and the continuation
of bags for certain residents will allow all resident
who want to use the service to be able to use the
service.

3. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?

Sustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met

Are there any additional actions to be taken to

Collaboration

Principle this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain mitigate any negative impacts or better
why. contribute to positive impacts?
i Balancing Recycling has been identified as a national priority in Wales.
SE short term Increasing recycling and reducing the use of raw material is key
o) & need with to one planet living. Reducing access to easy waste disposal and
® increasing access to easy recycling is a priority.
U5 long term and 9 y recycling 1s a priority
© planning for
w
he futur
Long Term the future
Working We will continue to work with partners across Wales to
together with | deliver high quality recycling and promote the circular
M‘ other economy
partners to
deliver
objectives




Sustainable Development Does your proposal demonstrate you have met Are there any additional actions to be taken to
Principle this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain mitigate any negative impacts or better
why. contribute to positive impacts?
Involving All residents were given the opportunity to consult on the Residents views on waste changes and full consultation
those with proposals in this report in 2019. The results of the report are on trials backed up with robust data will continue to shape
an interest attached in appendix 6. decisions going forward
and seeking
their views
Involvement
Putting Recycling waste and increasing reuse has a quantifiable Improve services at the kerbside and for reprocessing in
resources benefit on reducing carbon. Climate change is continuing | Wales to reduce waste miles and treat waste in line with
into and the impacts will be felt by the most disadvantaged first. | € proximity principles.
preventing
.o problems
D '
@ oceurring or
(@ Prevention  getting
b= worse
®
Considering | Recycling positively impacts on the environmental, social and Improve the quality and quantity of recycling available to
impact on all | economic wellbeing goals. Wales and the UK reprocessing markets.
wellbeing
goals
together and
on other
Integration bodies

4. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on the following important responsibilities: Social Justice,
Corporate Parenting and Safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect any of these responsibilities?

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has

What will you do/ have you done
to mitigate any negative impacts
or better contribute to positive
impacts?




Social Justice Reuse supports social justice and provides low
cost reusable items for all. Recycling creates
wealth from waste and access to jobs across a
wide range of industries.

Safeguarding none none

Corporate Parenting | none none

5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

The evidence for the proposal has been shaped by the consultation with our residents in 2019. We have also used financial and operational modelling to ensure the most
efficient service possible. We have also used data of our health and safety record to inform our collection methods moving forward.

T ﬁRV\ 1
[ ot qg

S

6. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

The proposals have been taken to Strong Communities Select on several occasions as part of the equality and future generations evaluation. Recycling positively
impacts on social, environmental and economic future of Wales and supports long term sustainability. We understand there is a risk introducing this new service but with
effective communication with our residents and customers we can mitigate these issues. We will continue to work with our customers on and individual basis to ensure the
service can be accessed by all, we will do this with the use of assisted collections and the extension of the bagged service.

7. ACTIONS: As aresult of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if
applicable.



What are you going to do When are you going to do it? | Who is responsible

Review success of interventions against Quarterly ongoing Waste team
Increased recycling

8. VERSION CONTROL: The Equality and Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stage, such as informally
within your service, and then further developed throughout the decision making process. Itis important to keep a record of this
process to demonstrate how you have considered and built in equality and future generations considerations wherever

possible.

@ ersion | Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following
%No. consideration

Ly Cabinet

! Dec 2019

), .

T2 Scrutiny Sept 2020

3 Cabinet October 2020




Price Comparison with neigbouring Authourities

Authourity Recepticle Collection Period Cost
Forest of Dean 2401 Wheeled bin Fortnightly £39
Hereford Single use sacks Weekly f4
Gloucester 2401 Wheeled bin Fortnightly £44
Powys 240l Wheeled bin Fortnightly £35
Powys 120l Wheeled bin Fortnightly £30
Newport 240l Wheeled bin Fortnightly £0
Torfean 2401 Wheeled bin Fortnightly £0
Monmouthshire Proposed 240l Wheeled bin Fortnightly £35

/6T abed




86T obed

Comments

Discount for residents receiving housing benefit




66T abed

Special Issues

50x80! White sacks can be purchase instead of a wheelie bin. This has to be applied for, currently less than 100 people using that service.

No alternative, if resident cannot store bin they cannot have service

45| Paper sacks offered to hard to reach properties

Hessian sacks offered as alterative for hard to reach props, assisted collections must place bin as close to highway as poosible and bin must be visable




This page is intentionally left blank



Garden Waste
Consultation
Responses 2019




Do you currently use the
Garden Waste Service?

mNo mYes




no, Why not?

To expensive for size of bag

Cost

The price increase of the permits was so rapid. £9 to £18 in 4 years.
Cost

Cost

Too expensive, no collection for autumn leave fall. This was an included service in council tax and has now become an extra luxury service. We previously had 5 bags during autumn.

Since it changed to the limited seasons rules. It was expensive enough paying for two bags to put out weekly after council tex but | felt the fact that it would only be seasonal ( with no Christmas tree collection ) was very
poor.

The cost of the permit.
Have an acre for my garden and that's too much to go in any bags \
Too expensive not to be all year round

Too costly \
Too expensive. \
| tried to manage without it because of cost. \
Having to pay for this service which was originally free

Cost size of bags no service through winter
We take it to the recycling centre in Monmouth

No need

| pay council tax. When the garden waste is mixed in with my normal waste at the centre then why should | pay extra? Ridiculous. They go up every year and you don't even collect all year round! Forcing more money out of
people. £200 a month tax | pay to y

Cost

We take it direct to Usk recycling depot

Yes too expensive for less time

Cost

i have just bought two permits for 2019 but would rather use a wheelie bin as it is easier
| home compost

Applying this year

When a few became payable, our budget is already very tight.
Too expensive

the bags were not tough enough for garden waste

too expensive i already pay rates

Too expensive



Are you happy with
current Garden Waste Service

= No mYes




If no, Why not?

TOTALLY UNFAIR AND WE HAVE TO PAY THIS ONTOP OF COUNCIL TAX

It should start in February. | have had to take a car load of waste to the tip every week in February. These tips have been very busy because if this
and it is not an environmentally sound method of disposing of garden waste

Bag to small

Bags do not last well and quickly break/get holes/ handles split apart.
Permit sometimes falls out so collection is not made.
Expensive.

Increased cost for reduced service

Prone to neighbors steeling permit with bag

Now a seasonal service but the same price as the former year-round service. This means that leaves which are gathered in the late autumn are not
collected. Additionally you do not now collect Christmas trees

Need to collect Xmas trees on 2 days of the year.

I've never h;u pay elsewhere and restricting the months doesn’t seem sensible as Nov and Feb are often tidy the garden months. Also I'm having
hassle withm app trying to get my permits - can't find how. All in all feeling very frustrated wasting an

«Q

Because gar@\ waste just doesn't stop on the days you stop collecting it, with our weather conditions plants continue to grow or die during the 4
months youpdoR't collect, resulting in fillings bags and trips to the tip. We also use our brown bag for al

Would prerge container - wheeled bin.

| strongly object to being charged for this service. The cost is excessive and is anextension to council tax. Given the high cost of council tax we
should not need to pay more
Bags are heavy and difficult to carry when full. Bin men never put bags back w

Expensive. Poor bags

Preferred the 12 month collection; we have guinea pigs whose used bedding (sawdust and straw) we put in with our garden waste. 3 months of no
collection is a lot of used bedding.

Needs to be a collection for a longer period, especially due to warmer weather. It’s now February &amp; | need to mow grass which will need
collection.

Loose base tends to get thrown away with first collection of new bag. Then less robust.

A collection after Christmas would be useful. Not always possible to cut back shrubs /hedges etc by November especially with warmer autumns and
extended growing season.

I think it should be a house permit against more than one bag

| am happy with the actual service but would like it to continue through November. There are so many autumn leaves which need collecting.

Cost

The cost does not seem to be value for money when collections are not year round. Our bags are often blown away so we have to go hunting for them
which is frustrating when we have a front wall (low height) that they could be put over.

Because other councils have wheelie bins for garden waste.
The bags reduced in capacity so no longer large enough to fit all of the garden waste in.

Cost, limited amount.

It should be free. Also, I’m constantly having to clean up after collections as the operatives are quite happy to spill the contents over the road.

| appreciate that the volume of waste in winter months is lower but the lack of collections is an issue . Even fortnightly collections would be preferred.

| need it for 12mths of the year not 9 - | own 4 rabbits 4 guinea pigs and pets aren't seasonal. Also the bags stopped just as all the leaves were dropping from the trees and |
ended up slipping on wet leaves which | wouldve been sweeping up &amp; puttin

Having to pay
Bags ever smaller and service reduction

Permit falls out of bags and bags disintegrate and rip easily.

I would need two bags and | feel with the cost of the council tax at £219 per month this should amply cover the cost of the bags.

1 do not like that it does not continue in the winter months. It can be difficult to get to a recycling centre so | have a collection of garden waste building up over the winter.

the permit system is OK - its the bags | have an issue with - see below comments on wheelie bins.
However | think that garden waste permits should not attract a separate fee - costs should be included in the general community charge

Shouldn't have to pay

See last comment

Only for 9 months a year if you do gardenong you know you have waste all year not to mentoon christmas tree collection cancelled
I garden all year round. Bags are too small.

It’s expensive considering it’s Mar-Nov.

They often get lost because the bags aren’t robust enough.

| would like it all year round

| find the bags difficult to keep/use.
They can rot, and generally look abit untidy after a years use.

I also don’t think they are big enough. I’ve got a small garden, and | need at least 3 to do the lawn properly. | end up having to take bush clippin
The permit system is fine but the bags disintegrate far too quickly

Having to pay for this service which was originally free



Do you want a Wheeled bin
for your Garden Waste?

= No mYes




Would you prefer longer
term contracts?

mNo mYes




Would you pay extra
for a winter service?

mNo mYes




	Agenda
	4 Craffu cyn penderfynu ar Ddarpariaeth Canolfannau Ailgylchu Gwastraff y Cartref yn y Dyfodol (gan gynnwys Brynbuga).
	1b Submission from Usk Town Council
	1c WRAP CCP_Monmouthshire HWRC HS Report v1.0
	1d WLGA Waste Finance Annual Report 2017-18 FINAL
	1e 170131 Waste_Finance_Report_2015-16_Monmouthshire
	1f EQIA FG Evaluation HWRC VERSION 2 sept 20 - updated from Dec 19 FINAL
	1g select slides - Future provision of HWRCs

	5 Craffu cyn penderfynu ar y Gwasanaeth Gwastraff Gardd.
	2b Appendix 1
	2c Appendix 2
	2c Garden waste EQIAFGE 2020 appendix 3
	2d Appendix 4
	2e Appendix 5


